' T -
ANNUAL

m ERUETERLT

China Resources Microelectronics Limited
(RRESEEFMKZIZEBRAT)

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(Stock Code A& 1X5% : 0597)

REPORT 2008 # #

gtSemlconductor —

__ﬁ__., mpa_‘xrm China =

%ﬁmaw$§ 2NE






CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED
ERMETFARLT

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 iR

CONTENTS
B &

2-9 Corporate Profile and Positioning RAEA M ERL
10-11 Financial Highlights MEHE

12-13  Five-year Financial Summary T FEMBHHE
14-15  Historical Milestones P2

16-17  Chairman’s Report FREMES

18-33  Management Discussion and Analysis BEENWEONT
34-44  Corporate Governance Report TEERME
45-52  Directors and Senior Management EERRRER
53-94  Report of the Directors EEemEE
95-97  Independent Auditor’s Report B ZEA SRS E
98 Consolidated Income Statement e lEmR
99-100 Consolidated Balance Sheet mEEERRE

=
101-102 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity — #R& #Em & &) &
103-104 Consolidated Cash Flow Statement melenRgx
105-195 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  #7 & 81 1% 2% i &
196 Investor Relations REEBER



CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICSLIMITED ¥ B M EFHR A 7

Corporate Profile and Positioning
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CORPORATE PROFILE

China Resources Microelectronics Limited (“CR Micro” or the
“Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands. The Company was listed on the main board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in August
2004 (Stock Code 0597).

In March 2008, CSMC Technologies Corporation (“CSMC”) and China
Resources Logic Limited (“CR Logic”) completed the amalgamation
of both companies’ semiconductor businesses under CSMC
(the “Amalgamation”). CSMC was renamed as China Resources
Microelectronics Limited.

CR Micro, together with its subsidiaries (the “Group” or “we”),
is a leading manufacturer in the development and operation of
semiconductor business in China. Its activities cover open foundry,
Integrated Circuits (“IC”) design, IC testing and packaging as well as
discrete devices. The Group has become a leading supplier of analog
ICs in China and positions itself as a leading analog semiconductor

company in China.

As one of the top five semiconductor producers in China, CR Micro
and its major subsidiaries, namely CSMC Technologies Corporation,
Wuxi China Resources Semico Co., Ltd., Wuxi CR Micro-Assemb
Tech. Ltd. and Wuxi China Resources Huajing Microelectronics Co.,
Ltd. etc, are renowned enterprises in the microelectronics industry
in China.
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The Group’s main businesses include:

Open Foundry Operation

CSMC Technologies Corporation, one of the subsidiaries of CR Micro,
is currently the largest 6-inch open foundry operator in mainland China.
In 2008, the total production capacity of 6-inch wafer of the Group
has attained a significant scale of 110,000 wafers per month in three
6-inch wafer fabrication production lines and with 0.35um capability,
providing various technical platforms such as CMOS, BiCMOS, DMOS,
BCD and Bipolar for customers.

In March 2008, CR Micro entered into an agreement for the formation
of a company, which owns and operates an 8-inch wafer foundry
manufacturing line, with China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited
(“CRH”). This enabled the Group to enhance its capability and to
increase its access to advance process technologies and productive
capacity to compete with other players in the industry and supply the
growing domestic market.

IC Design Operation

The Group’s core IC design house, Wuxi China Resources Semico
Co., Ltd., is one of the leading Chinese fabless design houses in terms
of technology and scale, utilising state-of-the-art digital and analog
technologies to design and develop semiconductor IC products such
as Micro Controller Unit and audio and video processing SoC (System
on a Chip) applied in electronics such as television, Hi-Fi, portable
digital electronic products, green lightings, automobile, teaching
instrument, etc.

IC Testing & Packaging Operation

The Group formed a joint venture named as Wuxi CR Micro-Assemb
Tech. Ltd., with STATS ChipPAC Ltd., a leading global IC assembly
and testing foundry operator. The joint venture, being one of the key
enterprises focused in IC testing and packaging foundry operations in
mainland China, mainly engaged in the provision of IC assembly and
testing foundry services for internationally well-known semiconductor
enterprises with its leading wire bond packaging testing technology in
mainland China and a packaging capacity of over 3 billion wires per
month. The Company holds 75% equity interest of the joint venture.
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Discrete Devices Operation

Wuxi China Resources Huajing Microelectronics Co., Ltd. is a leader in
the development and manufacturing of power semiconductor discrete
devices in mainland China. With an annual manufacturing capacity
of 1.5 million 4~6-inch wafers for discrete devices, this company
is a major supplier of discrete device wafers and finished products
in mainland China. The aforementioned products developed by the
Company are applied in promising sectors including energy saving
lightings, home appliances, industrial control devices and personal
computers.

POSITIONING

The Group is positioned as a leading analog semiconductor company
in mainland China. It has become a leading supplier of analog ICs in
mainland China market by capitalizing on the eminent position of China
as the global manufacturing powerhouse and its burgeoning domestic
market, unique design and process technologies of the Group as well
as synergy from close cooperation among internal industrial chain. The
Group’s strategy is to maximize shareholders’ value by utilizing the
cost advantages of Chinese manufacturing platforms and leveraging
on the technological edge accumulated year by year during the Group
development.

The semiconductor market in mainland China is growing rapidly
in recent years. The synergy effect of the Group’s semiconductor
business amalgamation will expand and enhance the efficiency of the
operations of CR Micro as well as strengthening our leading position
as one of the largest players in the semiconductor industry in mainland
China.
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President Elvis DENG Mao-song e AN
(resigned on 20 March 2008) (R—ZTENFE=A=-+HBE)

Chief Financial Officer Frank LAl Ni Hium BEMKE 4
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Executive Directors

Non-Executive Directors
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(formerly a Non-Executive Director,
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(appointed on 20 March 2008)

LI Fuzuo

(appointed on 20 March 2008)

Du Wenmin

(appointed on 20 March 2008)

WANG Guoping

(re-designated as an Executive
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YU Yu

(resigned on 20 March 2008)

CHEN Nan-xiang
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Independent Non-Executive
Directors

Audit Committee

Remuneration Committee
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Kum Loon OON

Ralph Sytze YBEMA

KO Ping Keung

(appointed on 20 March 2008)
Mark HSUE Chi Nan

(resigned on 20 March 2008)

Kum Loon OON

(Chairperson)

Ralph Sytze YBEMA

DU Wenmin

(appointed on 20 March 2008)
YU Yu

(resigned on 20 March 2008)

Ralph Sytze YBEMA

(Chairperson, appointed on 20 March
2008)

Kum Loon OON

(appointed on 20 March 2008)

Frank LAl Ni Hium

(appointed on 20 March 2008)

Ken ONG Thiam Kin

(Chairperson, resigned on 20 March
2008)

Mark HSUE Chi Nan

(resigned on 20 March 2008)
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Nomination Committee

Company Secretary and
Qualified Accountant

Auditors

Legal Advisor

Registered Office

Principal Place of Business

Ralph Sytze YBEMA
(Chairperson)

Kum Loon OON

KO Ping Keung

(appointed on 20 March 2008)
Peter CHEN Cheng-yu

WANG Guoping

(appointed on 20 March 2008)
Mark HSUE Chi Nan

(resigned on 20 March 2008)
CHEN Nan-xiang

(resigned on 20 March 2008)

Frank LAI Ni Hium
Certified Practising Accountant
(Australia)

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Richards Butler
in association with Reed Smith LLP

Scotia Center, P.O. Box 2804
George Town, Grand Cayman
Cayman Islands

British West Indies

No. 14 Liangxi Road
Wuxi, Jiangsu
214061
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Place of Business in
Hong Kong Registered
under Part Xl of the
Companies Ordinance

Share Registrar and
Transfer Office in
Hong Kong

Website Address

Rm. 4003-4005, 40/F
China Resources Building
26 Harbour Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited

Rooms 1806-1807

18th Floor,

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

WWW.Crmicro.com
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Financial Highlights
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2008 2007 Year-on-year
HK$’000 HK$’000 change
—EEN\F —TELF BEE
THET FHT
(Restated)
(Note 1)
(E31))
(BHE1)
Turnover PN 3,118,692 2,991,625 4.3%
Total earnings before interest KRetFIERX - HE
expense, taxation, depreciation ERBHEANEF
and amortization (“EBITDA”) #%5 (TEBITDA]) 200,208 702,369 (71.5%)
Net cash inflow from operating KETREIEER
activities He R AN FRE 466,600 479,274 (2.6%)
Depreciation and amortization YT Ny (473,592) (363,528) 30.3%
Finance costs BhE R AN (92,293) (66,087) 39.7%
(Loss) profit before taxation FRELAT (B5HR) & T (365,677) 272,754 (234.1%)
Taxation FHIE (17,242) (41,101) (58.1%)
(Loss) profit for the year FR (ER) &F
(“Net (loss) profit”) (M(E8) =RFEED (382,919) 231,653 (265.3%)
As at 31 December W+=ZA=+—H
Total assets BEME 7,131,388 6,840,507 4.3%
Total equity 4R 3,083,818 3,253,494 (5.2%)
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR MRS 856,877 839,210 21%
Borrowings EBE 2,429,481 1,778,002 36.6%
(Loss) earnings per share SR (EE) &2F)
Basic (HK cent) AR GBI (6.33) 4.00 (258.3%)
Diluted (HK cent) (Note 2) s (B (H5x2) N/ATE H 3.97 N/A i A
Net assets per share (HK cent) BREEFE (B 50.99 54.62 (6.6%)
Ratios (Note 3) b= (KiEE3)
Gross margin (%) FE & (%) 18.64 26.29 (29.1%)
Net profit margin (%) BB A R)(%) (12.28) 7.74 (258.7%)
Current ratio (times) MENELE (%) 1.31 1.18 11.0%
Quick ratio (times) BN E (fF) 0.90 0.83 8.4%
Net debt to equity (%) FEE BRI R (%) 51.00 28.85 76.8%



Financial Highlights
B % B =

Note 1:

The consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 December 2007 was
restated by applying the principles of merger accounting in accordance with the
Accounting Guideline 5 “Merger Accounting for Common Control Combinations”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”) (“merger accounting”) after the Amalgamation during the year.

The presentation currency was also changed to Hong Kong dollars from United
States dollars according to the directors’ determination which is preferable in
presenting the operating results and financial position of the Group after the
Amalgamation.

Note 2:
No diluted earnings per share for 2008 has been presented as the potential
ordinary shares resulted from the Equity Incentive Plan and Share Option

Scheme are anti-dilutive.

Note 3:

Shareholders’ equity/number of shares issued as at
the end of the accounting period

Net assets per share

Gross profit margin Gross profit/turnover x 100%

Net profit margin Net profit/turnover x 100%

Current ratio = Current assets/current liabilities

Quick ratio = (Current assets — inventories)/current liabilities

(Total debts less bank balances and cash)/total
equity x 100%

Net debt to equity

B EET -

BE_ZZLF+ A=+ HLFENGRKRERT
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Five-year Financial Summary

AFEHBHEMRE

(Note 1) (Note1) (Note1)
(BfFEE1) (BRFEET) (BRFEET)
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
=Z2ENFE _—_TTLF ZZTETRX —TTHF —ZTTNF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
(Restated) (Restated)
(Note 2) (Note 3)
THET FAT FAT FAT FAT
(E71) (E31)
(Hf3F2) (M47E3)
Consolidated income mEWER
statement
Turnover PN 3,118,692 2,991,625 887,955 607,407 621,854
EBITDA EBITDA 200,208 702,369 266,312 134,118 213,802
(Loss) profit for the year FRN (BB) &F (382,919) 231,653 49,454 (53,213) 79,200
Operating cash inflow EEE D MmA 466,600 476,404 244,164 140,242 155,479
As at 31 December
R+=A=+-—H

(Note 1) (Note1) (Note1)
(PfFEE1) (BRFEET) (BRFEET)
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
—EEN\FE —_TELF ZTIETRX —2ERF —ZTEWF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
(Restated) (Restated)
(Note 2) (Note 3)
THET FAT FAT FAT FAT
(&71) (E31)
(Hf3F2) (BRFEE3)

Consolidated balance sheet iR EERBER
Non-current assets ERBEE 4,571,362 4,187,968 1,427,871 1,250,867 1,088,658
Current assets mENEE 2,560,026 2,652,539 542,293 487,439 41,978
Non-current liabilities FErRIaE 2,097,468 1,339,524 120,475 71,580 -
Current liabilities mMEAE 1,950,102 2,247,489 518,498 449,144 303,858
Total equity ERAR 3,083,818 3,253,494 1,331,191 1,217,582 1,246,778



Notes:

1. No restatement was made in 2004, 2005 and 2006 in respect of the
effect on applying the principle of merger accounting. The presentation
currency was changed from United States dollars to Hong Kong dollars
with exchange rates by the end of respective years.

2. The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2007 were restated for merger accounting and change in presentation
currency after the Amalgamation. Details are set out in note 2 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

3.  The consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 December 2004
was restated following the adoption of new HKFRS which are effective for
accounting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2005.
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Historical Milestones

BERE®

1997

CSMC Technologies Corporation was
founded by Dr. Peter Chen

PRIFFE TR R L ERRBERA A

1998

Leased 5-inch and 6-inch wafer foundry
production facilities from China Huajing
Group

M B R B R R ST k6T
sm B EE R

1999
Operating breakeven after 15 months

& 2168 A& =W P

2001
Complete transition from 5-inch to 6-inch

STAX 5T [R65 - E5&

2003

Acquired 0.35um 6-inch equipment line from Agere &
Chartered Semiconductor

Strategic partnership with Chartered Semiconductor
Completed US$52.2M private placement

MAgere MAF T+ E B8 A6 <1 0.35UK A E 4R AR 15
HR R R i T SRS L RR
TEAK5,2208 £ LS

2002
Fab 1 was ISO14001 and OHSAS18001 certified
&a Bl —HEISO14001 & OHSAS 18001 275



Historical Milestones

BERE®

2005 2007

Cooperated with IMECAS to set ~ BCD development and
up operation in Beijing production

Launched 0.35pm process R FBBCDHIT A E
DMQOS technology mass

production

EE AR B i F AT & (ER b R R

7% & B #R

ERA0.35MR T A B

£% FADMOSH: i 17 32 & B

2004
Listed on the main board of Hong Kong Stock Exchange

EREBBPAER EH

2008

Business amalgamation with CR Logic

CSMC was renamed as China Resources Microelectronics
Limited

Formation of a company with CRH in 8-inch wafer
manufacturing line

HEEBBEGEA
ERLEPFRRERWETARAF

HERNEEKY —RKEES\ETRELERFNAF

2009
Privatisation proposal from CRH
FHEENLALRZ

2006

CR Logic became the controlling shareholder
Transform to an analog foundry

H EBBUK RIERAR R

)RR (Bl X T 858
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Dear Shareholders,

The year 2008 was a difficult year for China Resources Microelectronics
Limited. During that year, the worldwide semiconductor industry was
hit significantly by the global financial crisis as well as successive
economic downturn. The Company’s performance was also affected
by the significant decline in the demand of consumable electronics
devices and related inventory adjustments by customers. The
Group’s sales orders dropped substantially since October 2008 which
influenced the Group’s product selling prices and capacity utilization
rates of manufacturing facilities. The Company recorded a net loss of
HK$382.92 million, including HK$314.12 million one-time loss arising
from the closure of a manufacturing facility. The overall gross margin
went down to 18.6% from 26.3% last year, and the Group’s revenue
generated from mainland China decreased by 10.1%.

To consolidate the semiconductor businesses throughout the China
Resources group and create value to shareholders, the Company and
China Resources Logic Limited have completed the amalgamation of
the semiconductor businesses of both companies into CR Micro in
March 2008. After the Amalgamation, the Company became one of
the top five semiconductor manufacturers in mainland China, whose
businesses cover open foundry service, IC design, IC testing and
packaging services, and discrete devices. These businesses remain
distinct from one another and operate independently. However, with
the upstream and downstream synergy arising from the amalgamation,
the Group is able to offer incremental value to customers through
Turnkey services which further improve existing customer relationships.
The amalgamation not only strengthened the synergy among each
business segments within the Group, but also provided a stronger
operational base and financial resources to resist risks. We are
optimistic to consolidate our leading position as one of the largest
players in the Chinese semiconductor industry.
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MEFH26.3% T EE18.6%  MAKEFH
REESZFH A TR A10.1% °
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On 23 April 2008, the shareholders of the Company passed resolutions
in the extraordinary general meeting to approve the formation of
company with China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited (“CRH”)
to establish an 8-inch wafer manufacturing facility in Wuxi, Jiangsu
Province of China, in which the Company indirectly holds 19% of
shares. Such arrangement provides an opportunity for the Group to
consolidate and expand its market position and customer base in the
immediate future, and also increases its access to advanced process
technologies and productive capacity to compete with other players
in the industry and meet the growing domestic market.

By executing analog product strategy, the Group as a whole remains
sound and the financial position of the Company remains solid. Through
this strategy, we also expect to benefit from the economic growth
in the PRC through the nation-wide domestic demand stimulation
strategy as well as the global recovery.

Finally, on behalf of the Company, | would like to take this opportunity

to thank all of our shareholders, business partners and our employees
for your support and confidence in us.

~

Mr. SONG Lin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2009

RZZBZNFEAZ+=R AARRRERRK
FRRgLtBBRZRLERER (RE) AR
RA(TERER]) K — B QA AL BT &
BEHHRY —HSETRERETR  MAR
AIRIEE R A Z AR HI19%M M - BELHEAR
SESUERSRZREREFAEMSHALBAR
FER  RARARRES T ASEN TEKFME
EREN  UWERHRTHSFANMREBmXED

EREMRERE  AEBENEBESMADR
f5eef - AT BHRRDETE - RATE
HY - BB P BAEE R it 2 B R A A 7 BRS T
REFAPERRAREREEER - ARAHKEE
BBZ RIS A% -
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BUSINESS REVIEW OF THE YEAR

Overview

The Company was significantly affected in the recent financial crisis
and market downturn. By executing analog strategy and business
diversification, the Group maintained its business and revenue,
especially in the IC testing and packaging business. However, to
resist the pressure of demand shrinkage and inventory adjustment
of customers, the Group took several programs to improve efficiency
and save costs, such as temporary employee lay-off, salary cut and
closure of a manufacturing facility. As a result, the Company recorded
a significant loss in the 4th quarter of 2008, which resulted in a loss
of HK$382.92 million for the whole year, including the aforementioned
facility closure loss amounting to HK$314.12 million, about 82.0% of
the Group’s loss for the year.

During the year, the consolidated turnover of the Group increased by
4.3% to HK$3,118.69 million from HK$2,991.63 million in the last year.
The Group’s EBITDA decreased by 71.5% to HK$200.21 million from
HK$702.37 million in the last year.

Business Review
The following table shows the geographical breakdown of the Group’s
revenue for the five years ended 31 December 2008:

FREEGORE
e
ARBZOHEMERETEREFERE -3

BEMRRERBEEERZ T AEESAER
HEB M  CEEICHAMBRER I @E -
A REREPERZHEMEFTHBNES
AEBCRMNE THEARSHERBERAE
IR IR E élﬂ & MR —RIRE TR
At - ARRR_FTNFEOFTEEBEANES
| %ﬁliiﬁiﬁ% 8292{8 7T  BIEATMIE X
HBAMER3. 141288 T - (hFAAEBEER
#982.0% © °

FHN AEENGESEEFEAEFH29.9163
BATLIERKIZ%EI118IEE L - AEEH
EBITDAMR % & #97.02371& /8 T ] L71.5%=
2.002118%8 7T °

ETEIER
TREVNZRWESTAEERE_ZTN\F+
A=+—RHIEEEFEHEA :

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
“EENE ZTTEHE TTREF —TTREF ZTTME
HK$°000 % HK$'000 % HK$000 % HK$000 % HK$000 %
TERT THEL TET TET TET
The mainland China B A 2,196,425 70.4 2,442,111 81.6 601,382 67.7 412,062 67.8 364,843 58.6
Asia, other than the # B AFE LA
mainland China T [& 520,558 16.7 418,056 14.0 170,822 19.2 118,170 195 162,744 26.2
United States B 311,331  10.0 104,152 35 84,304 95 43,841 7.2 43,380 7.0
Europe BUM 90,378 29 27,306 0.9 31,447 36 33,334 55 50,887 8.2
Total st 3,118,692 100.0 2,991,625 100.0 887,955 100.0 607,407 100.0 621,854 100.0
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BUSINESS REVIEW OF THE YEAR (Cont’d)

Technology Migration
The table below shows the Group’s revenue by process mix for the 2
years ended 31 December 2008:

FEEBOME ()

B#MR
TREVNBE-_FTTN\F+_A=1t—HILMA
FERIZBHASOMOAEERA :

2008 2007
—EENE —ERLF
HK$’000 % HK$’000 %
FET FAT

Analog R 1,830,764 58.7 1,777,243 59.4
Non-analog AR 426,507 13.7 577,595 19.3
Testing & Packaging i EE eSS 599,719 19.2 418,838 14.0
Others Hih 261,702 8.4 217,949 7.3
Total @t 3,118,692 100.0 2,991,625 100.0
Employees =]
Employees are the Group’s greatest assets. To link the interests EERAELEHZEEMNEE - AEEFmHEEE
of the Group and of its employees is an essential dynamic for EBRFBHME  NOEEBRRERNEKEZESH

corporate development and formation of competitive edge. After
the Amalgamation in the year, the Group had 7,708 employees as
at 31 December 2008. The Group has maintained a good working
relationship with its employees over the year.

In the highly competitive semiconductor business, strong human
resources are essential for continuous growth. The management
successfully leverage on the strengths of both local Chinese employees
and international expertise. The Group also prides itself for its track
record of recruiting and developing local managerial, technical, and
operating personnel. Currently above 99% of the Group’s staff are
citizens of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), including the
majority of its managers. As at 31 December 2008, about 58% of the
Group’s employees hold college or graduate degrees.

The Group makes contributions to publicly or privately administered
pension insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary
basis. Employer’s pension cost charged to the consolidated income
statement was HK$56.77 million in the Period.

2N c FREBAHZE  RZZEZENEFT
A=+—8 X&EBEERE7,708% - TN -
AEBEEBRFERITFOBEK -

\IHHH*

FEBEBOBFREAIN  BANANERE
EFERRAMGEN - EEERNERTE

AiEE RERETNESDS - AEETNEHERE
RBERAMNER BT hEEES THRHRE
B - AEERABBEIONNEIR/RPEARHK
B (THE]) BAAT - BEKEHEOKLE -
RZFBENFF+ZA=1+—8  "&EEHE8%H
BEHEBARBNIALEE -

AEBEBBHME - EHOMERERENRRHALA
ERRASRBFEELHT - REA - REE
Yeas R HIBR ) B R INE AN 5,677 & BT °
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OPERATING RESULTS

The following table shows certain information relating to Group’'s F&XRZ%|GEAE
results of operations for the two years ended 31 December 2008, as — B IF {EFEE R & ¥4
extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements of the  #lJ3#8kE RHIKE R A MERE

K o

_ gl
BEEE

same period:
Consolidated Income Statements HEWER
For the year ended 31 December
Bt A=t-BLEE
2007
(Restated) Year-on-year
2008 “ETLF Rate
—BENE (Z31) BEEEE
HK$’000 % HK$’000 % %
THET FAET
Turnover WA 3,118,692 100.0 2,991,625 100.0 4.3
Cost of sales SHER AR (2,537,396) (81.4) (2,205,194) (73.7) 15.1
Gross profit EF| 581,296 18.6 786,431 26.3 (26.1)
Operating expenses: BB
Other income Hftb A 142,757 4.6 98,823 3.3 44.5
Selling and distribution costs SHE K SHRCAR (89,357) (2.9) (69,332) (2.3) 28.9
Administrative expenses THEHR (374,152) (12.0) (268,854) (9.0) 39.2
Research and
development expenses MERFEER (187,006) (6.0) (140,019) 4.7) 33.6
Other operating expenses Hibh Qe (117,775) (3.8) (68,208) 2.2) 72.7
Finance costs BB A (92,293) (3.0) (66,087) (2.2) 39.7
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries &M B A Bz 84,972 2.7 - - -
Loss on closure of a AR — R E TR
manufacturing facility MEE (314,119) (10.1) - - -
(Loss) profit before taxation BEAT (EB18) %HA (365,677) (11.7) 272,754 9.1 (234.1)
Taxation fimE (17,242) (0.6) (41,101) (1.4) (58.1)
(Loss) profit for the year FR (BE) &EF (382,919) (12.3) 231,653 7.7 (265.3)
Attributable to AT &I -
Equity holders of the Company AN RIRIEEA A (371,535) (11.9) 231,253 7.7 (260.7)
Minority interests DY ER (11,384) (0.4) 400 - (2,946.0)
Dividend declared and paid BEEREIAERE = -
(Loss) earnings per share Bk (BE) &F
- basic (HK cent) — 2R (L) (6.33) 4.00 (258.3)
~ diluted (HK cent) — 858 () N/A FiE 3.97 N/A TiEF
Operating Data REYiE
Depreciation and amortization Wree Ry 473,592 363,528 30.3
Capital expenditure BEARFAY 767,571 1,071,998 (28.4)
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OPERATING RESULTS (Cont’d)

Turnover

Turnover increased to HK$3,118.69 million for the year ended 31
December 2008 from the HK$2,991.63 million recorded in previous
year, an increase of 4.3% or HK$127.06 million. Such increase was
mainly contributed by the expansion in the Group’s IC testing and
packaging business, which increased approximately HK$180.46 million
or 43.0% growth within the year in terms of revenue. A detail analysis
of the revenue performance by business segment is set out in note 8
to the consolidated financial statements.

Cost of Sales
Cost of sales consists principally of:

- depreciation;
- direct materials;

— manufacturing overhead, including utilities, spare parts, repair

and maintenance, rent, and indirect labor; and

— direct labor, including salaries for employees directly involved in
manufacturing activities.

Cost of sales increased by 15.1% to HK$2,537.40 million in 2008 from
HK$2,205.19 million in 2007. The increase in cost of sales in the year
was mainly due to increase in depreciation, energy, raw material and
labor cost after the expansion of production lines.

BEEE (8)
BEE
BEEEH _TT+F R HR29.916318 78 T 18

EHEE_ZTZNF+_A=+—HILFEHN

31.186918E T + K 4.3%3K1.27061BE T © %

ERFEZHAEENEK SRR TR EBER

FTER - FRERIHERER1.8046E8 T3k

mo% EEBOHMEEERRNFAITZES
RERE &R MITS -

HERE

HERATEBHE

- WE

- HEMR

- BUERMIEEMR (BEKE.-
& HekEZESEI): &

i - w1 RR

- HEHT
o

BRERSEREERDHNERD

HERAB-ZZZTLFM22.0519BF TR
15.1% %2 — T T \F125.37408 8 T - F R
EXRAHERETERANBEREEREGITE - 85
o RME RS TRANEE -
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OPERATING RESULTS (Cont’d)

Gross Profit

Gross profit decreased to HK$581.30 million for the year ended 31
December 2008 from HK$786.43 million in previous year. Gross
margin decreased to 18.6% from 26.3% mainly due to the increase
in the cost of raw materials, labour and utilities, as well as decrease
in capacity utilization rate. In particular, the capacity utilization rate
of open foundry business decreased to about 70% from 87% in
the previous year, which was mainly due to the overseas economic
environment softening and domestic demand depression. Furthermore,
the gross profit for overseas business suffered from the appreciation
of Renminbi (“RMB”).

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and amortization of
intangible assets included in cost of goods sold, selling and distribution
expenses, administrative expenses and research and development
expenses are as follows:

TEXRE (8

EH
ENBH-_ZETLFEZ78043EB T TREHE
TENF+ZA=1+—HIFEM58130EH
JC o EFMEABE26.3% N EE18.6% * I EH
REME - BB FIKEES B AR A LR R ERE
FIBETRAE - CEARASERTAEEF
REHA EFRE87T% TREENTO% © EER B
KBRS SKRBUE P - BEoh + /AN
XBENBAARE ([ARE]) AEMZE -

E R

FEAHERA  SHERDHER - THRERUK
MELRFEBRANYME  BEMRKBENTEAL
B EERNBENT

2008 2007

(Restated)

—EENEF —ETAF

(&%)

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FAT

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment mE - BEMERENITE 465,403 355,784
Amortization of technical know-how Al A a4 5 4,197 3,945
Amortization of prepaid lease payments AT S #E iR 3,992 3,799
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Taxation
The details of taxation charged to the consolidated income statement
for the two years ended 31 December 2008 are as follows:

FEXRE (8

HiIE
REBE-_ZZN\F+_A=+—"HULMAFEH
A RS RIBRORIAFBLT

2008 2007
(Restated)
—EENE “ETLF
(&%)
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
The tax charge comprises: HIEASZ8IE
Current taxation BV EARR 18
PRC Enterprise Income Tax R 1 2 TSR 23,417 48,520
Hong Kong BB 201 712
Over provision in prior year BEFERERE (3,812) (7,599)
Deferred tax EIEFRIE (2,564) (532)
17,242 41,101

On 26 June 2008, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed the
Revenue Bill 2008 which reduced corporate profit tax rate from 17.5%
to 16.5% effective from the year of assessment 2008/2009. Therefore,
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2007: 17.5%) of the
estimated assessable profit for the year.

Profits tax arising in the Mainland China is calculated based on the
applicable tax rates on assessable profits.

On 16 March 2007, the PRC promulgated the Law of the PRC on
Enterprise Income Tax (the “New EIT Law”) by Order No. 63 of the
President of the PRC. On 6 December 2007, the State Council of the
PRC issued Implementation Regulation of the New EIT Law.

RZZEZENFE XA *+/‘*\EI BB FEBRB
(ZEENFRAMEHER) - ERBIESIRDE
FIS R EE175%/Dzi165% BE-ZETTNE
ZETNFEFERER - Bt - BBFEHED
&Z!Sifﬁﬁﬂ%%ﬂmﬂ@%% —ETHF
17.5%) 515 °

‘:F'Wﬂﬁx/\%?ﬂ(imﬂ’]ﬁﬁ ST THAR IR FE SR T i A i 3
B EE

RZZBZLF=RA+RE > PEARKME RS
BHERER A“GSﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁ@JIi%Fﬁ BiRD)
(THFARRE]D - R-_ZEZELF+_HANRE  H
B B8] 75 e B A sz #T TS BOE R BB AR R -
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OPERATING RESULTS (Cont’d)

Taxation (Cont’d)

Under the New Law and Implementation Regulation, the Enterprise
Income Tax rate of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC was reduced
from 33% to 25%/increased from 15% to 25% progressively from
1 January 2008 onwards. The relevant tax rates for the Group’s
subsidiaries in the PRC for the year ended 31 December 2008 range
from 15% to 25% (2007: 15% to 33%).

Certain subsidiaries obtained approval from the relevant tax bureau
and are qualified as High and New Technology Enterprise would be
subject to a tax rate of 15% for both years.

In addition, certain subsidiaries operating in the Mainland China
were exempted from tax applicable in the Mainland China for two
years starting from the first profit making year after utilisation of
the tax losses brought forward, or year ended 31 December 2008,
whichever is earlier, and were granted a 50% relief for the following
three years.

Dividends
The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the
financial year ended 31 December 2008.

TEXRE (8

BiIE (88)
BEFBEREHRME A —EENFE—H—H
B AEENTEMNBARBSMHNCERMSE
B R B33% T F8 E25% & # B15%IE N &=
25% c REENTFEMBRARIN _ZETENE+=
A=+—HLtFE  BANEEMRENT15%E
25% (ZZEZLF : 15%%£33%) °

MOMBARE B FANEHBARGIE X6
B AR MEE - EANF R EFR15%H
KB

BESN - B TR BE R EE A M E A R AERE
ARMBEEREHEEENEE  H—_FTTN\F
+_ﬂ:+*5¢¢F(W%Z?$¢F)tﬁ
MEMRER R RERNTRLEMAEN - I
REE =F R 250% T BERMEH -

4
EEZTERRNBE_TTN\F+_-_A=1+—H
LEABRFERRLE -
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OPERATING RESULTS (Cont’d) LERE (48
(Loss) earnings Per Share Sk (5BE) &F

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is based  FRREARREEER | THER T 8UEE -
on the following data:

2008 2007
(Restated)
—gBNE -—TTLH
(&%)
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
(Loss) earnings for the purposes of calculating A EEREAREEIRANmE
basic and diluted earnings per share ® (EBE) &BF (371,535) 231,253

Number of shares

ZERHAE
2008 2007
—EBN\E —TTiH
Weighted average number of shares for AT ESRERBFMS
the purposes of calculating basic earnings /N 19 T mAR B B
per share ('000) (FA) 5,866,039 5,782,287
Effect of dilutive potential shares: EBEEERONOTZE
Share options — Equity Incentive Plan ('000) B E — IR EE)ET 8 (FRR) N/A ~E A 30,822
Share options — Share Option Scheme ("000) fE A — AR B (FRR) N/A FiEH 5,627
Weighted average number of shares for RETEEREE AT
the purposes of calculating diluted earnings B NiEFEERREE (F&R)
per share ('000) N/A FiEH 5,818,736

No diluted earnings per share for 2008 has been presented as the HRERG EEHELENEELERA RS
potential ordinary shares resulted from the Equity Incentive Plan and {Ef ' SRILE 25— NFRESFRESEF -
Share Option Scheme are anti-dilutive.
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OPERATING RESULTS (Cont’d)

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As at 31 December 2008, the Group’s cash on hand was HK$856.88
million, representing an increase of HK$17.67 million compared with
that of 31 December 2007. Among the cash balances, 42.9%, 11.9%
and 45.2% were denominated in RMB, Hong Kong dollars and US
dollars respectively. The Group’s cash has principally been applied to
the expansion and upgrade of the production facilities and equipment
of HK$574.36 million and investment in 8-inch wafer manufacturing
line with CRH of HK$281.28 million.

The table below sets forth the cashflow of the Group for the two years
ended 31 December 2008, as well as the cash and cash equivalents
at the end of each of the two years:

TEXRE (8

REBEERELER
RZZEZENGF+A=+—H AEEBEZA
8.5688EB L  W_EZELF+-_A=+—H1F
m,767& BT - MEMBZF  42.9% B AR
B 11.9% BB T R45.2%BETT o NEBRIR
CEEZERANEERBRIENER RARIEG
57436 B TR EEHEERFIRER N\ET &
El4EERT2.8128(BB T o

TRINEAERBHE—_FT N\F+_A=+—H
IREFENReRERZMEFERNES K
R EED

2008 2007

(Restated)

—BEN\F —ETLF

(&%)

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FHET

Net cash generated from operating activities KEEBEEMNIRS TR 466,600 476,404
Net cash used in investing activities KEEBE AR (844,858) (823,939)
Net cash generated from financing activities ME RSN G FEE 388,089 884,844
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents Re MBS EYREINFRE 9,831 537,315
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes NS FE SR A B A L 2 7,836 2,629
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year  F#IR % NIREGHEY 839,210 299,266
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRIREGNIRESZEEY 856,877 839,210




Management Discussion and Analysis

EEESNWmE DM

OPERATING RESULTS (Cont’d)

Indebtedness
The borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2008 and 2007 were
as follows:

FEXRE (8

Etid
rEEHEZE_ZEEN\ER_ZETLF+_A=+
—HMEENT

2008 2007

(Restated)

e

(&%)

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHExT FHET

Secured bank loans BIRHRITEER 128,603 178,028

Unsecured bank loans EIIRIRITIEE 2,300,878 1,699,974
Less: Amount due within one year shown B ORBBEE T —F AN

under current liabilities Z I (515,891) (603,256)

Amount due after one year shown as FERBEET —FREE
non-current liabilities | 1,913,590 1,174,746

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had total bank borrowings of
HK$2,429.48 million, of which HK$515.89 million was short-term in
nature which carried interest at rates ranging from 1.55% to 6.85% per
annum. The long-term portion of HK$1,913.59 million carried interest
at rates of 0.80% to 3.78% per annum and was repayable within 5
years. Bank borrowing of HK$1,300.00 million, with maturity date in
March 2012, was guaranteed by CRH.

Capital Expenditures

The Group requires capital to build, expand, upgrade and maintain
its production facilities and equipment. The Group incurred a capital
expenditure of HK$767.57 million in 2008, mainly including HK$243.05
million spent on upgrading of 6-inch wafer manufacturing lines,
HK$101.30 million spent on investment in 8-inch wafer manufacturing
line, HK$223.86 million on construction of IC testing and packaging
facilities and the rest spent on discrete device manufacture and other
supporting facilities.

The Group will continue to implement its prudent capital management
policy and optimize the allocation of its capital resources.

RIEZNEFE+-_A=+—H AEBHBR]T
fiat%f2429481u;a7t E 5158918 78 T ke HAER

TEFRFERENF155EE6.85E+ 8 - KH
#8717 B 3k19.135918 % JL 1% FF F1) £ 0.80/2 £3.78
BB BEAFRER - EP13EBTRITE
BEHEBREBRREER  NBEEBAE—=F
=A-

BXFAX

Zixﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬁtx%é“ B RFARMEELEE

BHEERE AEER_ZEZTN\FELARAZA
7.67571E8 T 0 EA2.43051E 8 T AR F 6
TRELEERL  1.0130EBTANKE SE T &
BlEEL » 2.2386E B L AR EEER T KA
KSR - R TRIBRIRAR D 328 5 Hl3E R E
fthSZ R 5% A o

AEEREENTEENERNFIHE  LE
TEEARERDE
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OPERATING RESULTS (Cont’d)

Charge of Assets

As at 31 December 2008, certain Group’s assets with carrying values
of HK$134.09 million were pledged with banks to secure certain
banking facilities.

Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

(a) Capital commitments
As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the Group had the following
significant capital commitments:

TEXRE (8

BEERE

RZBEZENF+ZA=+—0 A5EEREEAS
1.3409B BT E TEEC BTG RITUNESSE
FERITEE ©

RERSAREE
(a) BEAFEE
B’\_gg)\i)&_? FLE+-A=1+—
 REEHBEREARAENT

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—H
2008 2007
(Restated)
—EENF —ETLF
(&E51))
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHExT FET
Capital expenditure in respect of EARBIBYME - BEME&E
acquisition of property, plant and equipment F&E &G
Authorised but not contracted for EREERTY 356,968 2,711,486
Contracted but not provided for (Note) ERIAVEREE () 47,230 890,623
Note: Bt
Pursuant to an agreement entered into with a company related to a minority #2582 — 5 [ 8 MAOEBBRERNEBEAR ((BH))
shareholder of a subsidiary (the “Vendor”) in 2006, the Group has undertaken E@:gg_\ﬁﬁiﬁ’]—@ﬁ% CREEEE RZTT
to make incentive payment of US$5,000,000 (equivalent to HK$38,752,000) +tFZ_F—ZFRK  —BAREBRERZ BRI SEN

to the Vendor in the event that the cumulative revenue from the assembly and
testing services provided by the Group arising from orders placed by customers
of the minority shareholder or any of its subsidiaries for the years 2007 to
2010 exceeds an agreed amount. However, no fair value was ascribed to the
undertaking as at the balance sheet date, as the directors consider that the
agreed amount is unlikely to be achieved based on the Group’s assessment.

BARME P AT B MR A RIS A 25T ka8
T B - BlgmE S X1 845,000,000% 7T (FHE
588,752,000/ 7T) © AT+ RBEAEBHEITH T
EERATARESNRTCEE  WLTERENEE
W ARER FERMAFE -
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OPERATING RESULTS (Cont’d)

Commitments and Contingent Liabilities (Cont’d)

(b)

Operating lease commitments

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
which fall due as follows:

EERE (8)
RERSAEE (R)

(b)

ERAERR
REE R - AEERT T HEEEAERR
RBEF &4 5EE T -

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2008 2007
(Restated)
—EENF —ETLF
(E75)
HK$’000 HK$’000
F&T TFET
Within one year —F R 6,218 5,451
In the second to fifth year inclusive “ERF (BEEEMRT) 7,403 6,497
After five years HF%& 1,893 2,847
15,514 14,795

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2008, the Group has issued guarantees of
HK$1.98 million (2007: HK$3.75 million) to a bank in respect of
the mortgage loans borrowed by the employees of a subsidiary.
Management anticipates that no material liabilities to the Group
will arise from such guarantees.

Save as disclosed above, the Group does not have any other
commitments or contingent liabilities.

(c)

HRERE

RZBZENF+ZA=+T—H T&BEAEH
EMBRARIEINERESEAITL1088E
T (ZEZTLF : 3758%80) m—MIRITE
HIER - ERERF LAERETSHAE
BEEATMNERARE -

B EXCTIREREE SN - AR A ) L A
ERHREE -
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OPERATING RESULTS (Cont’d)

Legal Liabilities

For the year ended 31 December 2008, the Company was not involved
in any material litigation or arbitration and no material litigation or
claims was pending or threatened or made against the Company as
far as the Company is aware of.

Basis of Preparation and Changes in Accounting Policies

In the current year, the Group has applied, several new standards,
amendments and interpretations (“new HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), which are
effective for the Group’s financial year beginning 1 January 2008. In
addition, the Group has elected to adopt the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standard (“HKFRS”) 8 “Operating Segments” in advance
of its effective date. The adoption of the new HKFRSs has had no
material effect on how the results and financial position of the Group
for the current or prior accounting periods have been prepared and
presented. The details are set out in note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Going Concern

On the basis of current financial projections of facilities available, the
Group has adequate financial resources to continue its operation
for the foreseeable future. For this reason, the going concern basis
continues to be adopted in preparing the financial statements.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

The Group undertakes certain sales and purchases transactions
denominated in foreign currencies, hence exposures to exchange
rate fluctuation arises. The Group manages its foreign currency risk
by closely monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rate. The
Group and its subsidiaries are mainly exposed to currency fluctuation
of United States dollars and RMB. The management believes that,
considering the working capital position of the Group, the Group will
have sufficient foreign exchange to meet its foreign exchange liabilities
as they become due. It is the Group’s policy not to enter into derivative
transactions for speculative purpose.
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Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2008, the gearing ratio, calculated as net
borrowings divided by total equity was 51.0%, compared with 28.9%
as at 31 December 2007.

Other Significant Matters

Businesses Amalgamation

On 4 December 2007, CR Logic and the Company jointly announced
a proposal which would result in the amalgamation of both companies’
semiconductor businesses under the Group. Under the proposal,
the Group acquired the semiconductor businesses of CR Logic,
being all its semiconductor operations other than China Resources
Semiconductor Company Limited which operates a 4 inch fab in Tai
Po, Hong Kong, by issue of consideration shares at an aggregate
issue price equal to approximately HK$1,448.90 million, representing
the net asset value of the companies being acquired based on the
management accounts of such companies as at 30 June 2007 net of
dividend payable.

On 13 February 2008 (the “Amalgamation Date”), ordinary resolutions
were duly passed at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company
in relation to the acquisition of the semiconductor businesses from CR
Logic by the Company and the allotment of the shares of the Company
to certain directors of the Company or such other connected persons
who are holders of share options granted by CR Logic in respect of
cancellation of their options.

On 5 March 2008, 3,153,640,010 shares of the Company were issued
as consideration of the aforementioned amalgamation proposal and
option cancellation.
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OPERATING RESULTS (Cont’d)

Other Significant Matters (Cont’d)

Disposal of subsidiary

On 19 March 2008, the Company and its indirectly wholly owned
subsidiary, Jolly China Investment Limited entered into an agreement
with CRH and its wholly owned subsidiary, Joyous China Investments
Limited for the formation of CSMC Asia Limited (formerly named as
Asia Champion Investment Limited, hereinafter referred to as the
“CSMC Asia”), pursuant to which, the Company has disposed its entire
interest in, and shareholder’s loan to, Qualibest Enterprises Limited to
the CSMC Asia for a consideration of approximately US$58.44 million
(equivalent to HK$455.78 million) which is satisfied by the issuance
of shares by the CSMC Asia to the Group, amounting to 19% equity
interest of the CSMC Asia (which is classified as available-for-sale
investments, see Note 19 to the Consolidated Financial Statements).
The consideration was determined based on the net liabilities of
Qualibest Enterprises Limited as at the date of disposal adjusted for
the market value (net of deferred tax) of land owned by a subsidiary of
Qualibest Enterprises Limited based on an independent professional
valuation at that date and the shareholder’s loan assigned by the
Group to the CSMC Asia of HK$457.77 million (to be capitalised as
capital contribution of the CSMC Asia). The disposal was completed
on 30 April 2008. The principal activity of Qualibest Enterprises Limited
and its subsidiaries are to engage in wafer fabrication in the PRC.

On 24 November 2008, the Group and CRH issued a financial
guarantee in which 19% contributed by the Group to the extent of
US$140 million to a bank of a term loan facility agreement granted to
the available-for-sale investment, CSMC Asia of which US$26.6 million
(representing the 19% interest held by the Group) was attributable
to the Group. The fair value of the financial guarantee at the date
grant amounted to US$7.28 million (approximately HK$56.79 million)
which was based on a valuation conducted by an external valuer. The
valuation was primarily determined by reference to the default valuation
method model to estimate the value of the guarantee by considering
the potential economic impact of the guarantor. The fair value to the
extent of HK$10.79 million (representing the 19% interest attributable
to the Group) was regarded as a contribution to the investee company
by the Group and has been adjusted to the carrying cost of the
investment in that investment.
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Other Significant Matters (Cont’d)

Closure of a manufacturing facility

At 31 December 2008, the Group recorded a loss of one-time
impairment of HK$314.12 million in relation to closure of a manufacturing
facility that is not located in Jiangsu Province, PRC. The assets are
used in the Group’s open foundry business. To re-act the current
market condition, the directors reviewed the business strategy of the
Group and the carrying value of the Group’s manufacturing assets,
and determined that a number of those assets were impaired due to
obsolete technologies, excess capacity consolidation as well as plan to
relocate part of this production line to another area. In particular, this
production line’s financial performance was not satisfactory and didn’t
provide consistent marginal contribution over the past three years.
Therefore, certain items of property, plant and machinery, technical
know-how, inventories were identified as obsolete and impairment
losses in respect of those assets have been recognized in the year.
The recoverable amount of the property, plant and equipment has
been determined on the basis of their value in use.

In addition, employee severance payment and compensation to
landlord and suppliers, which are assessed in accordance with
the relevant rules and regulations and the agreements with the
counterparties, are expected to be incurred for the removal of the
production line.

PROSPECTS FOR THE YEAR 2009

Following the significant downturn for semiconductor industry together
with global economy in 2008, year 2009 will be a year of adjustment to
the semiconductor business worldwide. To mitigate the operation risks
during this period, the Group took actions to reduce its manufacturing
capacity, including the closure of a manufacturing facility. Going
forward, the Group will continue to manage its cost according to
market situation.

We believe the Group’s geographic business focus positions the Group
well to benefit from faster growth when markets recover. Meanwhile,
the Group’s continued focus on analog semiconductors development,
such as power management, LED lighting, etc, is in line with general
market trends. Benefiting from last year’s Amalgamation, the Group
is in a better position in terms of financial and business resources
to maintain its operations. We are optimistic that the Company will
live through the economic downturn and further enhance its leading
position as one of the largest domestic operators in the China
semiconductor industry.
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HONG KONG CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

Save as disclosed below, for the year ended 31 December 2008, the
Company complied with the Code on Corporate Governance Practice
(the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”).

The Chairman of the Board, Mr. SONG Lin did not attend the Annual
General Meeting (“AGM”) on 28 May 2008 due to other crucial
business on that date. The Chairman is aware that it deviated from the
provision E.1.2 of the Code which stipulates that the Chairman should
attend the annual general meeting of the Company. However, the
Chairman has asked Vice Chairman, Dr. Peter CHEN Cheng-yu to act
on behalf. Vice Chairman and the Chairpersons of Audit, Remuneration
and Nomination Committees and the Chief Financial Officer attended
the meeting. The Company considers that their presence is sufficient
for (i) answering questions from and (ii) effective communication with
shareholders presented at the AGM.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

The Company has adopted Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules. The Company has made specific enquiry to all
Directors, and all Directors have confirmed that, for the year ended 31
December 2008, they have complied with required standard of dealing
set out in the Model Code.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company recognizes its responsibilities to shareholders and aims
to protect and enhance shareholders’ value through proper corporate
governance. The Group is committed to ensuring transparent, open
and accountable disclosures.

The Board continuously upholds the appropriate standards of corporate
governance within the Group, thereby ensuring that the business is
conducted in an honest, ethical and responsible manner.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (Cont’d)

The Board understands its responsibility to prepare the financial
statements, the annual and interim reports in a balanced manner.
This similar responsibility extends to include other price-sensitive
announcements and other financial disclosures under the Listing
Rules. The Board will also report to regulators any information which
is required to be disclosed pursuant to the statutory requirements.
The statement of the auditors’ about their reporting responsibility on
the financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report
on pages 95 to 97.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year 2008, the Board consists of eleven Directors, including
the Chairman of the Board, four of whom are Executive Directors
and members of the management. There are seven Non-Executive
Directors, of whom three are Independent Non-Executive Directors.
The Board benefits from the experience and expertise of each
Director. All Board members understand their duties to take decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company.

The Board’s primary role is to protect and enhance long-term
shareholders’ value. It sets the overall strategy for the Group, ensures
effective management and provides proper supervision of the Group’s
business conduct.

The Board is responsible both for how the Company is managed and
the Company’s direction. Approval of the Board is required for the
strategies of the Group, annual budget, major acquisition and disposal,
dividend policy, appointment and retirement of Directors, remuneration
policy and other major operational and financial matters. Day-to-day
operations of the Group are the responsibility of the Company’s
management.

On 24 March 2009, each Independent Non-Executive Director has
provided a written statement confirming of his/her independence to
the Company pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
assessed that each Independent Non-Executive Director continues to
be independent.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND BOARD COMMITTEES MEETINGS EEEZERESZEETT
The attendance of Directors in Board meetings and Board committees R_ZEZN\FE  EEZNEZCLENEEELE
meetings during the year 2008 are as follows: EERNEFEAT :

Audit Remuneration

Nomination

Committee Committee Committee

Board meetings meetings meetings

meetings ERERS FHEES REZES

Name ®A Exged = = %

Number of Number of Number of Number of

Attendance/ Attendance/ Attendance/ Attendance/

Eligibility Eligibility Eligibility Eligibility

to Attend to Attend to Attend to Attend

HERE R RE HERE HERE

JE HH IR B JE HH IR B JE HH IR B JE HH IR B

SONG Lin (note 1) R (BIFET) 2/3 = = =

Peter CHEN Cheng-yu PR 1F 5/5 - - 1/1

WANG Guoping FEF 5/5 - - -

Frank LAl Ni Hium (note 1) &% (Fizk1) 3/3 = 2/2 =

ZHU Jinkun o 2/5 - - -

JIANG Wei (note 1) EE (fsE1) 2/3 = S S

LI Fuzuo (note 1) FiaE (FsE1) 3/3 - - -

DU Wenmin (note 1) R (MEE1) 2/3 1/3 - -

Ralph Sytze YBEMA Ralph Sytze YBEMA 4/5 4/4 2/2 1/1

Kum Loon OON Pk 5/5 4/4 2/2 11

KO Ping Keung (note 1) mxee (MEE) 3/3 - - -

Elvis DENG Mao-song (note 2) B85 (Fiizk2) 2/2 - = -

Ken ONG Thiam Kin (note 2) E4R (MfE2) 2/2 - - -

YU Yu (note 2) A (MfEE2) 2/2 1/1 - -

CHEN Nan-xiang (note 2) BREa A (B3E2) 2/2 - = 1/1

Mark HSUE Chi Nan (note 2) #Far4s (fizi2) 2/2 = = 1/1
Notes: BiEE

EZEREE (AARAR_ZTTENF=ZA_+
FHEZEE@AERRER -

(1)  Appointed as director effective from the conclusion of the meeting of the (1)
board of directors of the Company on 20 March 2008.

(2) Resigned from directorship on 20 March 2008. (2 RZZTZN\F=A=-t+HBEES-
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The members of the Board of Directors during the year 2008 are:

*H

ZN\FEEFEKRER

Name Title Date Elected Period of Term Date First Elected
#E Bifu EZEBH £ BEEZERH
SONG Lin Chairman/Executive Director 28 May 2008 3 years 20 March 2008
R IR/ HTES “ZT\ERA-+NAR = —EE\F=A=FH
Peter CHEN Cheng-yu Vice Chairman/Executive Director 29 May 2007 3 years 28 January 2003
BRET BlXE/ #7ES “EE+FRAZTAE = “EE=F-A-1\H
WANG Guoping Chief Executive Officer/ 29 May 2007 3 years 1 September 2006
IRE Executive Director “TE+FRAZTAR = —EERFNA-H
BERHITE HITES
Frank LAl Ni Hium Chief Financial Officer/Executive 28 May 2008 3 years 20 March 2008
Boaik BREMBE /HITES “EE\FRAZHNAR = “EE\$=A=+A
Zhu Jinkun Vice Chairman/Non-Executive Director 29 May 2007 3 years 1 September 2006
e BlXRE/FHTES “EE+FRA-tARE = “ETRENA-A
JIANG Wei Non-Executive Director 28 May 2008 3 years 20 March 2008
Bz FHTES ZEE\FRAZHNAR = —EE\¥=A=+A
LI Fuzuo Non-Executive Director 28 May 2008 3 years 20 March 2008
FRE FRITESR “ZZ\ERA-+/\R =% —ZT\E=A=-1R
DU Wenmin Non-Executive Director 28 May 2008 3 years 20 March 2008
HXR FMTES “EENFRAZTNR = —TEN\F=H=TH
Ralph Sytze YBEMA Independent Non-Executive Director 29 May 2007 3 years 8 May 2004
Ralph Sytze YBEMA BUFNTES “ZRAFERAZTAR = —ZTMERANR
Kum Loon OON Independent Non-Executive Director 28 May 2008 3 years 8 May 2004
BEE BUEHTES “TE/\FRA-FTNAR = “ZEmFERANA
KO Ping Keung Independent Non-Executive Director 28 May 2008 3 years 20 March 2008
BES: BUFHTES “EENFRAZTNR = —TEN\E=H=TH
Elvis DENG Mao-song' President/Executive Director 1 July 2007 3 years 1 July 2007
B B3/ PiEE “BRLELA-R = “EELELA-H
Ken ONG Thiam Kin' Non-Executive Director 26 May 2006 3 years 1 September 2003
TR FHITEER ETNETA-+AR = ZTT=FAA-R
YU WU Non-Executive Director 26 May 2006 3 years 1 September 2003
IS FHTES ZEERFRAZHAR = —ET=FNA-A
CHEN Nan-xiang' Non-Executive Director 26 May 2006 3 years 1 September 2003
A FHITEER “ZEXERA-tAE =H ) =
Mark HSUE Chi Nan' Independent Non-Executive Director 29 May 2007 3 years 8 May 2004
AR BAUFHITES “ZTHFRA-tHhAE = —TEMFERANR
Note: Bt =
() Resigned from directorship on 20 March 2008. () RZEENGF=A_THREES -
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

The term of office of each Director, including Independent Non-
Executive Director, is for a period of three years subject to the
requirement that one-third of the Directors shall retire from office by
rotation at each annual general meeting pursuant to the Articles 95
and 112 of Article of Association of the Company. Mr. Peter CHEN
Cheng-yu, Mr. ZHU Jinkun and Mr. Ralph Sytze YBEMA will retire
at the forthcoming annual general meeting but being eligible to offer
herself for re-election.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman is responsible for formulating and setting Group
strategies and policies in conjunction with the Board and for
ensuring that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at
board meetings and that all Directors receive complete and reliable
information in a timely manner. The Chief Executive Officer carries
out the strategic initiatives and decisions made by the Board, and
is in charge of the Company’s day to day management. The roles of
the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are separate and not
performed by the same individual.

On 20 March 2008, Mr. SONG Lin was elected as Chairman of the
Board, and Dr. Peter CHEN Cheng-yu and Mr. ZHU Jinkun were
elected as Vice Chairmen of the Board. Mr. WANG Guoping was
appointed to be the Chief Executive Office to the Company, and Mr.
Frank LAl Ni Hium was apointed to be the Chief Financial Officer to
the Company.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the letters of appointment of the Non-Executive Directors
(including the Independent Non-Executive Directors), the term of
appointment for each of them is for a term of three years commencing
from the date of appointment.

The primary functions of Non-Executive Directors include the
following:

° participating in board meetings of the Company to bring an
independent judgment to bear on issues of strategy, policy,
performance, accountability, resources, key appointments and
standards of conduct;

° serving on the audit, remuneration and nomination committees;
and

e scrutinising the Group’s performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting of
performance.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The primary aim of the Remuneration Committee is to formulate
transparent procedures for developing remuneration policies and
compensation packages for the employees of the Group. The
Remuneration Committee is also entrusted to adopt appropriate staff
development and retention policies.

The member of the Remuneration Committee for the year 2008 are
set out on page 7 of this Annual Report.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Cont’d)

The

primary roles of the Remuneration Committee as delegated by

the Board are as follow:

To recommend to the Board on the Group’s policy and structure
for all remuneration of the Directors, senior management and other
employees of the Group by the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing policy on such remuneration
matters;

To determine the specific remuneration packages of all executive
directors and senior management;

To review and approve performance-based remuneration by
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board
from time to time;

To consider other relevant matters as referred to it by the
Board.
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TXERRSE

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The member of the Nomination Committee for the year 2008 are set
out on page 8 of this Annual Report.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for considering any
nominations of new members to the Board and makes recommendations
to the Board after a due consideration to the candidate’s background
and experience. The Board will ultimately decide on appointment.

The primary roles of Nomination Committee as delegated by the Board
are as follow:

e To review the structure, size and composition of the Board on
a regular basis and to make recommendations to the Board
regarding any proposed changes;

e To identify individuals suitable and qualified to become Board
members and to make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

e To assess the independence of Independent Non-Executive
Directors, having regard to the requirements under the Listing
Rules; and

e To make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors in particular, the Chairman and
the Executive Directors.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The member of the Audit Committee for the year 2008 are set out on

page 7 of this Annual Report.

The primary roles of Audit Committee as delegated by the Board are

as follows:

Review financial statements and formal announcements relating
to financial performance, and review significant financial reporting
judgments contained in them. Review audit plans and reports
of the external auditors and internal auditors, and consider the
effectiveness of actions or policies taken by Management on the
recommendations and observations. Review the independence
and objectivity of the external auditors annually. Review the nature
and extent of non-audit services performed by the auditors;

Make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor and approve
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external

auditor;

Meet with external auditors and internal auditors, without the
presence of Management, at least annually;

Ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced and
has appropriate standing within the Company at least annually;

Review interested person transactions;

The Committee shall report to the Board on material matters,
findings and recommendations;

Investigate any matters within the Audit Committee’s purview,
whenever it deems necessary; and

Perform such other functions as the Board may determine.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION ZEETEN &

The Group re-appointed Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as independent A& EEIEES) o B[R H T A ST\
auditor for the year 2008. The remuneration paid to Deloitte Touche HFEMBIZHEH - R-ZTTNF - I 7=
Tohmatsu in 2008 includes: £ e FAER A FFTAITTOMES B

Type (Audit Service/

Service Remuneration  Non-Audit)
R 7% Me Eh (KBRS EZE)
2007 Annual Audit HK$2,850,000  Audit
R FFERE 2,850,000/  1%EK

2008 Interim Review HK$650,000  Audit
ZEENFFHERN 650,000/  1ZEK

Tax Service HK$10,000  Non-Audit
%5 AR % 10,000/  FEIZEK
Special Project (note) HK$380,000  Non-Audit
BB R (FIEE) 380,000/  FFIZEK
Note: B

The special project is for the disposal of interest in Qualibest Enterprises $F#BHER -_TTN\F=ZA+NBHERNGREES
Limited on 19 March 2008. Details are set out on Note 12 to the Consolidated R AEIHER A o sEEH N RAMEREME12 -
Financial Statements.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board and management understand that proper internal controls
not only facilitate the effectiveness and efficiency of operations,
ensuring compliance with laws and regulations, but most importantly,
they serve to minimize risk exposure for the Group. The Group is
committed to the identification, monitoring and management of risks
associated with its business activities and has implemented practical
and effective control systems, including:

e A clearly defined organizational structure;

e  Budgeting and forecasting systems for performance measurement
and monitoring of strategic business units;

e Regular reviews of financial performance.

The Board has the overall responsibility of maintaining an effective
internal control system. The Company’s internal controls are enhanced
by the works done by the Company’s Internal Audit Division, which
regularly carries out internal audit reviews and reports its findings
to the Audit Committee for their consideration and guidance for
improvement to the internal control system.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

During the year, the Group has proactively enhanced its corporate
transparency and communications with its shareholders and the
investment community through its annual and interim reports.
Constantly being updated in a timely manner, the Company
maintains its website at www.crmicro.com on which press releases,
announcements and financial and other information relating to the

Company and its business are disclosed.
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Directors and Senior Management
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EENGEREERE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. SONG Lin, aged 46, was appointed Chairman of the Group in
March 2008. He joined China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited
in 1985. He is concurrently Chairman of China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited and China Resources National Corporation,
Chairman of China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited,
China Resources Land Limited as well as China Resources Enterprise,
Limited. Mr. Song is the Deputy Chairman of China Vanke Co., Ltd.,
which is a listed company in China. He is also an Independent Non-
Executive Director of Geely Automobile Holdings Limited and The
Bank of East Asia (China) Limited. Mr. Song has extensive experience
in corporate management and is currently responsible for the overall
business development and strategic planning of the Group’s business.
Mr. Song holds a Bachelor’s degree in Solid Mechanics from the
University of Tong Ji in Shanghai, China.

Dr. Peter CHEN Cheng-yu, aged 70, was appointed as the Vice
Chairman of the Board and an Executive Director of the Group in
March 2008. Dr. Chen has been the Chairman of CSMC Technologies
Corporation, currently the foundry business of the Group, since 1998.
Dr. Chen was the founder and the former Chairman of Mosel and
Mosel-Vitelic Inc. He was also the founder of Crosslink Technology
Partners and the former Chairman of the board of directors of Above
Net. Dr. Chen has over 30 years of experience in the semiconductor
industry. Dr. Chen graduated with a Bachelor of Science degree in
Electrical Engineering in 1965 from the National Taiwan University. He
was awarded a Doctoral degree in Electrical Engineering by Cornell
University in 1971.

S
PITESE

RMEE O+ m R-TFTNF=ZAEZ
ERAEEETE REENR—ANTAFNMAE
B(&E) ARRR BAIASER(KE) A
RABLRTREREARCERTR EHENE
BRERLR FREMERAALRERBAERR
REZERF - RELEBRENEEROHEBER AR
ZEIEER  ZARATELMARRE - thRAEE
EAAIEERER AR LRERT (FE) AR
RAZBIUFRITESR - RELABBLENDE
EELR RABAKE BB EHHREMARE
MBE-MMFATELERBERZERNBELE

iz e

i3

REFEL £+ RZZEZ/N\F=-AEEFE
REAKBEEGRIEIFENTES - RIFLTR—
NMNANFREEFRAEEZERIEBNE
HEEREBRARESER - RELTAKY RIX
¥W—EB8HEIHARBEERF - 78 ACrosslink
Technology Partnersty 8l A & R4 E48A RIHY
AITEER - BRETRFEETEREFBA=T
FEB -BRELTR-NAAFEEREIRE
2 RSERIRBEEL260  WR—NtE—F
BSXERTRASERITRIEL20 -

= = 2 )\ & & £ # & ANNUAL REPORT 2008 45



46

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICSLIMITED ¥ B M EFHR A 7

Directors and Senior Management

EESkREREEE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

Mr. WANG Guoping, aged 47, was appointed as an Executive
Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company with effect
from March 2008. He is also a director of various subsidiaries of
the Group. He has extensive experience in semiconductor research
& development, production management, strategic planning and
business development. Before joining the Group, Mr. Wang served as
the General Manager of China Huajing Electronics Group Corporation,
the largest Semiconductor Manufacturers in the Mainland. He is now
the Vice President of China Semiconductor Industry Association and
the President of China Semiconductor Industry Association Integrated
Circuit Branch. Mr. Wang obtained a Master Degree in Engineering
from the University of Electronic Science and Technology, Chengdu,
the PRC in 1986.

Mr. Frank LAI Ni Hium, aged 47, was appointed as an Executive
Director and Chief Financial Officer of the Group in March 2008. Mr.
Frank Lai has joined the Group in May 2000 and has been the Chief
Financial Officer of CSMC Technologies Corporation and a director of
various subsidiaries of the Group. Before joining the Group, Mr. Lai
served as the chief executive officer of Logic International Ltd. and the
chief financial officer in Eagle Brand Holdings Ltd. listed in Singapore.
He is a member of the Australian Society of Certified Practicing
Accountants and is also a member of the advisory board of Business
Week Asia CFO Magazine. Mr. Lai graduated from the University of
Western Australia in 1982 with a Bachelor degree in Commerce. He
was awarded a graduate diploma in Business and Administration from
the Curtin University of Technology of Western Australia in 1988.

EEE @)

BITES (#)

IEFPEE O+Em R-ZTTNF=-AEZ
ERERRFNH 7§$§E§f$ﬂﬁa AR
BZENBARIZES - KAEALENFTRE
MR AESE KBRS XBEREEZESTE
MERER - ENMAXEEZ R - FEARKAH

MEFELETHEREFEBRRIAKLIE - KT
EHEFERTEHSREER  PEFERT
EHEENERIGEFER - TRER-ANR
FEEXRKBEFRRAE N IRELE
I o

BpERE WtHtm RZEZEN\F=ZAEZ
{EE$Qﬂ%$ﬂ?ﬁﬁ$éﬁéfﬂﬁﬁa o B R
—EETFERAMAALEE  —EEFFEHLE
MEBRAREEVBEE  ARTEAZEZ M
MEBARICES - MARERR - BiuETER
BBUFITRITAE EFME EmERER AR E
BHBE - BEERBMNHESTABEFEN
&Busmess Week Asia CFOEERIERK 8 - Bt 4E

—hN= EQEwJHKﬂiﬁ'i&t SEmeLre
MO&K—AAAEH RIERTREBTHE
BIREE o



Directors and Senior Management

——
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EENGEREERE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. JIANG Wei, aged 46, was appointed as a Non-Executive Director
of the Company in March 2008. Mr. Jiang is currently a Director, Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer of China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited and China Resources National Corporation. Mr.
Jiang is a Non-executive Director of China Resources Enterprise,
Limited, China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited, China
Resources Land Limited and China Assets (Holdings) Limited. He is
also an executive director of Cosmos Machinery Enterprises Limited
and an Independent Non-executive Director of Greentown China
Holdings Limited. He is also a Director of China Vanke Co., Ltd., which
is a listed company in China. He joined China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited in 1988. Mr. Jiang obtained his Bachelor Degree in
International Trade and Master Degree in International Business and
Finance from the University of International Business and Economics
in the PRC.

Mr. ZHU Jinkun, aged 54, was appointed as the Vice Chairman
and Non-Executive Director of the Company in March 2008. Mr.
Zhu joined CR Holdings in 1991 and occupied many important
positions successively since then. He also has extensive experience
in semiconductor operations and has been responsible for strategic
planning, business development and operation of the CR Logic
group’s semiconductor business since 1997. Mr. Zhu graduated from
the Nanjing University, the PRC and obtained an Executive Master of
Business Administration Degree from the University of International
Business and Economics, the PRC.

Mr. Li Fuzuo, aged 44, was appointed as a Non-Executive Director of
the Company in March 2008. He is currently an Assistant President of
China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and General Manager of
the Strategy Management Department of China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited. He is also a Non-Executive Director of China
Resources Enterprise, Limited, China Resources Land Limited and
China Resources Gas Group Limited. Mr. Li obtained both his Bachelor
and Master Degrees in Mechanical Manufacturing Engineering from
the Beijing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics in 1987 and
1990 respectively.
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EESkREREEE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

Mr. DU Wenmin, aged 45, was appointed as a Non-Executive
Director of the Company in March 2008. Mr. Du was appointed as
Chief Audit Executive of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited
with effect from 1st February, 2009. He is also the General Manager
of the Internal Audit Department of China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited. Furthermore, he is a Non-Executive Director of
China Resources Enterprise, Limited, China Resources Land Limited
and China Resources Gas Group Limited. Mr. Du has an MBA degree
from the University of San Francisco, USA.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mrs. Kum Loon OON, aged 57, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company appointed on 8 May 2004. Mrs. OON
graduated from the University of Singapore in 1973 with a Bachelor
of Business Administration degree. She was awarded the Esso
Scholarship during her tertiary education and completed her honours
degree in Business Administration at the University of Singapore
in 1974. Mrs. OON has approximately 30 years’ experience in the
banking industry. Over this period, she led and managed a diverse
range of portfolios in DBS Group. Her extensive experience included
credit management, capital markets and risk management. She retired
from DBS as chief financial officer in 2003 where her responsibilities
included the financial reporting of the affairs and activities of the
entire DBS Group, as well as capital management and alliances and
acquisitions, investor relations, and asset liability management.
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Directors and Senior Management

EEkReREEE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

Mr. Ralph Sytze YBEMA, aged 42, is an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company appointed on 8 May 2004. Mr. YBEMA
obtained an LLM in business law from the University of Leiden in
1990 and in 19983 gained certification as corporate counsel through
the Dutch bar exam equivalent for in-house counsel. Mr. YBEMA was
part of the Corporate Legal Department at Royal Philips Electronics
N.V. of the Netherlands, focusing on its activities in the PRC. Mr.
YBEMA was first assigned to Hong Kong in May 1995 where his brief
included Philips’ Asian and PRC Mergers & Acquisitions activities.
In 1997, Mr. YBEMA joined US-based Global IT outsourcing giant
Computer Sciences Corporation (“CSC”) in 1997 as European Counsel
in London and in 2000 returned to Asia as General Counsel for
CSC’s Asia Group. He currently has an international corporate and
cross-border M&A practice which involves acting as Asia-Pacific and
China corporate counsel to major MNCs in a variety of industries. Mr.
YBEMA is co-founder and first (now immediate past) President of the
Hong Kong Corporate Counsel Association and was also a Founding
Member of the Singapore Corporate Counsel Association. He serves
on the Professional Services Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong
Trade Development Council and speaks seven languages including
passable Mandarin Chinese.

Professor KO Ping Keung, aged 57, Professor KO received his
Doctor of Philosophy Degree in Electrical Engineering and Computer
Science from the University of California at Berkeley. He was on the
faculty of the University of California at Berkeley from 1983 to 1993,
and served as the Dean of Engineering at the Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology from 1994 to 2001. For his contribution
to the development of device models used for IC design, Professor
KO was awarded the 2002 |IEEE Solid-State Circuits Award by the
Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers. Professor KO is also
an independent non-executive director of Henderson Investment
Limited and Henderson Land Development Company Limited, shares
of both companies are listed on the Stock Exchange. He was a former
Independent Non-Executive Director of China Resources Logic Limited
(resigned on 20th March 2008).
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EESkREREEE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. YU Yu, aged 47, was appointed as a Deputy General Manager
of the Group in March 2008 with responsibility for the management of
Human Resources and Corporate Operation. Mr. Yu is also a director
of various subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Yu joined CR Groups since
1985. With extensive experience in international trading, corporate
strategy and investment, Mr. Yu has served many key positions in
corporate function of and the subsidiaries of the CR Group, including
COSMOS Machinery Enterprises Limited, the Enterprises Development
Department in China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited, CSMC
Technologies Corporation as a non-executive director, and CR Logic
as an executive vice president. Mr. Yu holds a Master degree in
Engineering in Dalian University of Technology in 1985 and a Master
degree in Business Administration in San Francisco University of
California, USA.

Dr. CHEN Nan-Xiang, aged 47, was appointed as a Deputy General
Manager of the Group in March 2008 with responsibilities for the
group-wide strategic planning and business development. He joined
China Resources Microelectronics (Holding) Limited in November 2002
as director and deputy general manager. Dr. Chen was director and
general manager of Wuxi CR Semiconductor Wafers & Chips Ltd.
during the period of 2004 to March 2008. Prior to joining the China
Resources Group in November 2002, Dr. Chen had worked with the
Supertex Inc located in Sunnyvale, California, the Max Planck Institute
for Microstructures in Germany; the Fraunhofer Institute of Integrated
Circuits in Germany; and the Institute of Microelectronics of the Peking
University. Mr. Chen received a Bachelor Degree of EE from the
University of Electronic Science and Technology, Chengdu in 1982,
Master Degree of EE from Shaanxi Microelectronics Institute in 1985
and a PhD of Physics from Beijing Normal University in 1989.
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Directors and Senior Management

EEkReREEE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

Mr. Elvis DENG Mao-Song, aged 46, was appointed as a Deputy
General Manager of the Group in March 2008 and has been appointed
as the President of the CSMC Technologies Corporation, the foundry
business of the Group with effect from 1 July 2007. Prior to joining the
Group in August 2003, Mr. Deng was the co-founder and Vice President
of Resources and Corporate Strategy of Ardentec Corporation, Taiwan
and the Director of Liaison, Finance and Administration of Vanguard
International Semiconductor-America, California, USA. Mr. Deng
has over 20 years of experience in the semiconductor industry and
has extensive experiences in semiconductor industry and corporate
management. Mr. Deng graduated from National Chiao Tung University,
Taiwan with a Bachelor of Science in engineering degree and holds
a Master of Business Administration degree from the Management
School of the National Taiwan University.

Mr. ZHAO Jian-Kun, aged 41, was appointed as a Deputy General
Manager of the Group in March 2008 and is also General Manager of
Wuxi China Resources Semico Co., Ltd, which is engaged in integrated
circuit design business. He joined the China Huajing Electronics Group
Corporation in 1989 and has extensive experience in managing IC and
discrete devices operations. Mr. Zhao holds a Master Degree from the
University of Electronic Science and Technology, Chengdu in 1989.

Mr. ZHANG Xiao-Jian, aged 47, was appointed as a Deputy General
Manager of the Group in March 2008. Mr. Zhang has been appointed
as the General Manager of Wuxi CR Micro-Assemb Tech. Ltd., which
is engaged in integrated circuit packaging and testing business. He
joined the China Huajing Electronics Group Corporation in 1979 and
has extensive experience in managing integrated circuits and discrete
devices packaging operations. Mr. Zhang holds a Degree majoring
in IC Processing from the Vocational College owned by the affiliated
enterprise of the Institute of Ministry of Electronic Industries in 1984,
and attended an advanced course of Administration Management
at the Remin University of China from 2000 to 2002 and obtained
his Master of Business Administration Degree from the Barrington
University, the USA in 2004.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

Mr. MA Wei-Qing, aged 43, was appointed as a Deputy General
Manager of the Group in March 2008 and is also the General Manager
of Wuxi China Resources Huajing Microelectronics Co., Ltd, one of
the leading suppliers in consumer power devices in China. Mr. Ma has
been involved in semiconductor’s research & development since he
joined the China Huajing Electronics Group Corporation in 1987 and
has extensive experience in manufacturing and business management
of Integrated Circuits and Discrete Devices. Mr. Ma holds a Bachelor
Degree in Physics with major in Semiconductor from the Nanjing
University in 1987 and a Master of Business Administration degree
from the Hong Kong Business Administration College in 2006.

Mr. PENG Qing, aged 37, was appointed as an Assistant General
Manager of the Group and the Deputy Chief Financial Officer of the
Company in October 2008 with responsibilities for the Company’s
Finance. Mr. Peng joined China Resources Group in August 1998. He
has worked at China Resources Microelectronics (Holdings) Limited
as the Financial Manager, China Resources Logic Limited as the
Financial Manager, and China Resources Microelectronics Limited
as the Accounting Director of Finance & Treasury Division. Mr. Peng
graduated from the Hangzhou Institute of Commerce with the major in
Accounting and held a Bachelor degree in Accounting in 1994. He was
awarded a Certificate of Completion in Business and Administration
from the People’s University of China in 2005. Since graduation,
he has gained extensive experience in financial, tax administration
management in Hong Kong and PRC companies.
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Report of the Directors
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) submit their report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements for the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of
the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements. The Company with its subsidiaries is a leading
manufacturer in the development and operation of semiconductor
business in mainland China. Its business covers open foundry,
Integrated Circuits (“IC”) design, IC testing and packaging as well as
discrete devices.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by geographical
segments is set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results and appropriations of the Group are set out in the

consolidated income statement on page 98 to this Annual Report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the
financial year ended 31 December 2008.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in share capital and share options of the
company during the year are set out in note 31 and note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

RESERVES
Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out

on page 101 to this Annual Report.

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2008 amounted
to HK$2,376.77 million (2007: HK$835.05 million).
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no pre-emptive or similar rights under the Cayman Islands
law or the memorandum and articles of association of the Company
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to its existing shareholders.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 12 of this Annual
Report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Giving the fact that current share price of the Company didn’t reflect
the fair value, the board has resolved the repurchase of share, under
the general mandate approved by the shareholders in the annual
general meeting of the Company on 28 May 2008. The Board believes
that the repurchase is in the interests of the shareholders, as a whole,
to provide further support to the share price in accordance with the
listing rules.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES (Cont’d)

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Company purchased
a total of 62,080,000 shares of the Company at an aggregate
consideration of HK$14.92 million on the Stock Exchange and all of
these shares were duly cancelled. Details were as follows:

BBE - WENER EhHES (8)

REBEEZE_ZZNF+_A=+—HLEFE &
NAIRERFTABREI402BEBTHEES &
62,080,000 AR AR - BFTBZERMHHE
EXGESE - BEAFBEHINET ¢

Number of
Shares Highest Lowest

Month of Purchased Price/Share Price/Share Aggregate
Method of Purchase Purchase 2EA FREG SRR Consideration
BER*E BEANG RHEHE BEER BRIEER BRE
On the Stock Exchange May
N =A 60,000 HK$0.305 HK$0.300 HK$18,250

June

7~NH 17,485,000 HK$0.300 HK$0.260 HK$4,820,675

July

+ A 34,735,000 HK$0.260 HK$0.240 HK$8,737,060

September

LA 9,180,000 HK$0.160 HK$0.120 HK$1,261,890

October

+ A 620,000 HK$0.128 HK$0.112 HK$77,300
Total
@t 62,080,000 HK$0.305 HK$0.112 HK$14,915,175
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DIRECTORS

A summary of the Directors during the year is set out on pages 6 to
7 of this Annual Report.

In accordance with Article 95 and 112 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Peter CHEN Cheng-yu, Mr. ZHU Jinkun and Mr. Ralph
Sytze YBEMA will retire at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting,
but being eligible, to offer themselves for re-election.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election has a service agreement
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries, which is not determinable
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Mrs. Kum Loon OON, Mr. Ralph Sytze YBEMA and Mr. KO Ping Keung
are Independent Non-Executive Directors. On 24 March 2009, each
Independent Non-Executive Director has provided a written statement
confirming of her/his independence to the Company. In accordance
with the Listing Rules, the Company assessed that each Independent
Non-Executive Director continues to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Director has entered into a service contract with
the Company for an initial term of three years which shall continue
thereafter unless and until the Company or the Director serves a written
notice of termination three months in advance during the term of the
agreement or anytime thereafter. Particulars of the service contracts of
the Directors are in all material respects the same. The compensation
of the Executive Directors is subject to review each year.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS (Cont’d)

None of the Non-Executive Directors (including the Independent Non-
Executive Directors) has entered into any service contract with the
Company. Pursuant to the letters of appointment of the Non-Executive
Directors (including the Independent Non-Executive Directors), the
term of appointment of each of such Directors is for three years
commencing from the date of appointment. The Company and Mrs.
Kum Loon OON subsequently agree that her appointment may be
terminated with immediate effect by either party.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election has a service agreement
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries, which is not determinable
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS REMUNERATIONS

The emolument payable to each Executive Director is based on (i)
his relevant qualifications experience and expertise, (ii) his duties and
responsibilities and (iii) performance of the Company. The current
market situation will also be taken into account.

The emolument payable to each Non-Executive Director (including
Independent Non-Executive Director) is based on the responsibilities
and undertaking to the Board.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 14 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

The Company entered into a consultancy agreement dated 1 July
2006 with Wiston Management Limited (“Wiston”), which is owned
as to 50% by Dr. Peter CHEN Cheng-yu, being a Director of the
Company.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS (Cont’d)

Under the consultancy agreement, the Company engaged Wiston to
recommend and to procure executives, as expatriate employees of
management grade within the Group, to provide managerial services
to the Company. The consultancy arrangement was entered into by
the Group to facilitate individual tax planning of the management and
expatriate employees of the Group. The consultancy fees are subject
to adjustment depending on the number of executives providing
services to the Group. All of the consultancy fees charged by Wiston
to the Company are to pay for the remuneration of such executives
for providing managerial services to the Company. The agreement is
for a term of three years and may be terminated by either party on
one month’s written notice.

Upon recruitment of an expatriate executive, the executive becomes
a “qualified consultant” under the Wiston consultancy agreement
as well as entering into an employment/service agreement with the
Company. The Company and the expatriate executive then agree on
an appointment of the total remuneration payable to the executive
between a consultancy fee payable by Wiston and salary payable
under his employment/service agreement with the Company.

The total remuneration payable to each executive is made after
negotiation between the Group and the individual executive by
reference to the market rate.

Except for those mentioned above, no contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, its holding
company or any other subsidiaries was a party, and in which any
Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly subsisted at any time during the year ended 31 December
2008.

ESRENmMER (&)

RIFEEMHE - AR EAwistoniB @ %
HITHRAE (RSEEERNINERE) AR R
REUEEERS - AREET BB - S5
REEERERIIEREREMNBEARGE S o B
ERRTRAEEREREHITIHABAZTIA
FE - WistonAl A QAR BWHMEEMER -
HARIMITEA B RAR B FE R E 1R RIS A
o ZBBAB=F  WAHREW—AFREHE
H—EAZEBAMMEAL -

RIBIBSNETTRA BE - TTHA B K AWiston
R (A ERER ] WEARAREE
R ek o AR EINMETRABGRATERA
BN & @B L HEK I - BFEWiston
NEVBERE AR BRBEEE,RE HE T
E ol

AERITRABRMNNEMSE - A% EEEs)
TRABSEMELHEHRETE -

BRLdEIN RBEE-_FTTN\F+_A=1t—H
LHFEREMNRRE  TEFETANAL  MxSE
BRERAEEEEMEBERN  BARA - H
2R AR SRR EMK B AR SRR LW —7
ARARRBEMNESTREFTERXEERBEKN

e

MR o



Report of the Directors

EEEHES

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of Directors and senior management are set out

on pages 45 to 52 of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’
SECURITIES

AND KEY EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN

As at 31 December 2008, the Directors, the Chief Executive Officer
and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company and their respective
associates had the following interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which had to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which he was taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO to be entered in the register of the Company referred
to therein or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies contained
in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange:

A: Interests in Issued Ordinary Shares and Underlying

Shares of the Company

(a) Shares of the Company allocated to the Directors under
the Equity Incentive Plan and Share Option Scheme
As at 31 December 2008, there is no outstanding shares
allocated but not exercised to directors and their respective
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) under the Equity
Incentive Plan and Share Option Scheme. No option were
granted to the directors during 2008 under the Equity
Incentive Plan and Share Option Scheme.
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DIRECTORS’ AND KEY EXECUTIVES’

SECURITIES (Cont’d)

INTERESTS IN

A: Interests in Issued Ordinary Shares and Underlying
Shares of the Company (Cont’d)
(b) Shares of the Company held by the directors

As at 31 December 2008, particulars of shares held by
Directors and their respective associates (as defined in the

Listing Rules), directly and indirectly, were as follows:

ESREETHAENREFMER (8)

A REATERTEHERREMRGER

(%)

b) EESEOERTND

\

R_ZFN\EFE+
£

I} &
W |
%DXMI

= H -
ME A (B35 A o)
R A BB 3 :

Approximate

Percentage
of Interest
Long or in the Company
Capacity short position Shares Held RADE &R
Director Bx g4 FRIKE g3 i) MR E L
Mr. SONG Lin' RS E! Beneficial owner  Long position 1,245,533 0.02%
) ERBAAN 59
Dr. Peter CHEN Cheng-yu ~ BRIEFFE+ Bep%flc%alfwner Lgig position 39,623,200 0.68%
B m 2
Mr. WANG Guoping IEFEE Ben?c;ﬁ_al}swner Lgig position 6,393,248 0.11%
Emik B
Mr. Frank LAl Ni Hium' Rk Bene;c%alfwner Long position 14,650,605 0.25%
ERE R
Mr. ZHU Jinkun® R o Aes Ben ;C%aljf)wner Long position 12,292,150 0.21%
BEnl i&
Mr. JIANG Wei' BRRE Beneficial owner  Long position 537,614 0.01%
. ERBBA fR
Mr. LI Fuzuo' EHEL A Beneficial owner  Long position 918,000 0.02%
\ ESHEBA fE
Mr. DU Wenmin' MXREA! Beneficial owner  Long position 972,000 0.02%
ESBEAA FE
Mr. Ralph Sytze YBEMA Ralph Sytze Beneficial owner  Long position 4,000,000 0.07%
YBEMAZE & E5E B
Professor KO Ping Keung' & XR®BHK' Ben T;;Jﬁ_alfwner Long position 2,173,458 0.04%
Eal 2
Mr. Elvis DENG Mao-song?  BBj5 AR 5 A2 Ben %; cial owner  Long position 6,943,230 0.12%
Eal 2
Mr. ONG Thiam Kin? TR A2 Bene ; cial owner  Long position 3,431,767 0.06%
BEnl iE
Mr. YU Yu? T2 Bené‘ cial owner  Long position 3,821,573 0.06%
BEnl 1E
Dr. CHEN Nan-xiang? BREaAE L2 Beneficial owner  Long position 1,728,000 0.03%
ERBBA TE
Total et 98,730,378 1.68%
Notes: P EE -
(1) Appointed as director of the Company from 20 March 2008. ©) i:?\?%\i A-TRRERER
NG
(2) Resigned from directorship on 20 March 2008.The number @ RZFZTNF= )5] Jr = %ﬂié
of shares and percentage indicted above represented their =- £ﬂH§T@;§K D HEBER
interests as at the day when they resigned. BHEE BRER
(8) These 12,292,150 shares include 12,004,150 shares held (8) %%12,202 1508 B {7 B 45 A AR S0 &£
personally by Mr. ZHU and 288,000 shares held by his spouse. {8 A #5 4 #12,004, 1508% i 13 & i &
Mr. ZHU is deemed to be interested in the said 288,000 shares @Eﬁ%a‘iﬁ (1288, 0008 AR 15 ° 1R B35 %
under Part XV of the SFO. RERE R PIEXVED « ok % AR AR
3288, 0008 AR {5 FH #E #E 2s ©
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DIRECTORS’ AND KEY EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN EERFTETHAENRISHMES (&)
SECURITIES (Cont’d)

B: Interests in Issued Ordinary Shares and Underlying B: MEE AT T E R R AR A ER
Shares of Associated Corporations
Interest in issued ordinary shares and share options granted RARREE AR ZEBAIZERR AR ([EEE
under the share option schemes of China Resources Enterprise, Bl ]) BETEBRMBEEBERESIR
Limited (“CRE”), an associated corporation of the Company. LR B ER AER o
Aggregate
percentage
of interest
as at 31
December
2008
R=EEBN\F
No. of Exercise +=A
Name of Long or No. of share price Date of =ST=[E
Director Capacity short position shares options per share grant MIERAZE
EERE 27) HERXE ROHE BREHE SRTEE g = Bt

Mr. SONG Lin Beneficial owner Long position
R L ERBERA e 1,700,000 - - - 0.071%

Mr. ZHU Jinkun Interest of spouse Long position
Remkt IRk ¥ ) 42,000 - - - 0.002%

Mr. JIANG Wei Beneficial owner Long position
BRAE BEREAA iR 240,000 - - - 0.010%

Mr. DU Wenmin Beneficial owner Long position

HXR%SE BEREAA iR 100,000 - - - 0.004%
Notes: et

This represents the percentage of aggregate long position in ordinary ARZZEZENF+_A=+—HBMFEEHE
shares and underlying shares of CRE to the total issued share capital of (EBERIAEERD IR A ERAIED BT
CRE as at 31 December 2008. RABEAN B DL ©
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DIRECTORS’ AND KEY EXECUTIVES’
SECURITIES (Cont’d)

B: Interests in Issued Ordinary Shares and Underlying B:
Shares of Associated Corporations (Cont’d)
Interest in issued ordinary shares and share options granted
under the share option schemes of China Resources Power
Holdings Company Limited (“CRP”), an associated corporation
of the Company.

INTERESTS IN EERIFETHAENEHNER (H)

WRBHE A E B 3T H B Ik RAR R 6 B
()
RARBBERBEBENERER QA
(MEREN)) ERTEBRIRIZELERE
I B B A R A

62

Aggregate
percentage
of interest
as at 31
December
2008
R-ZEBBNF
No. of Exercise +=A
Name of Long or No. of share price Date of =t+-—H
Director Capacity short position shares options  per share grant MR
EEHH 280) HRIRE ROBE BREZE BSRIEE RHBH ERalA
Mr. SONG Lin Beneficial owner Long position 1,260,000 800,000 2.80 12/11/20032 0.062%
RMFEAE ERBEAA ) 540,000 3.99 18/03/2005°
Mr. ZHU Jinkun  Beneficial owner Long position 200,000 100,000 2.80 12/11/20032 0.007%
ReWEE EnEAA e
Mr. WANG Beneficial owner Long position 340,000 90,000 2.80 12/11/20032 0.010%
Guoping ExEAA He
TEFEE
Mr. JIANG Wei Beneficial owner Long position 840,000 200,000 2.80 12/11/20032 0.038%
BlELaE BEREAA ) 360,000 3.99 18/03/2005°
Mr. LI Fuzuo Beneficial owner Long position 480,000 90,000 2.80 12/11/20032 0.018%
FRELE EnEAA ) 180,000 3.99 18/03/2005
Mr. DU Wenmin  Beneficial owner Long position 270,000 180,000 2.80 12/11/20032 0.011%
HXREE E=EBA HE
Mr. ONG Thiam Beneficial owner Long position 120,000 50,000 2.80 12/11/20032 0.004%
Kin* EnfEBA Te
TR R A
Mr. YU Yu* Beneficial owner Long position 100,000 150,000 2.80 12/11/20032 0.006%
BT E=EBA He
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DIRECTORS’ AND KEY EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (Cont’d)

B: Interests in Issued Ordinary Shares and Underlying
Shares of Associated Corporations (Cont’d)
Notes:

1. This represents the percentage of aggregate long position in ordinary
shares and underlying shares of CRP to the total issued share
capital of CRP as at 31 December 2008.

2. The exercisable period is divided into 5 tranches, exercisable during
the periods from 6 October 2004, 2005, 2006, 2007 and 2008 to
5 October 2013.

3. The exercisable period is divided into 5 tranches, exercisable during
the periods from 18 March 2006, 2007, 2008, 2009 and 2010 to 17
March 2015.

4.  Resigned from Directorship on 20 March 2008. The number of
shares and share options with its percentage indicated above
represented their interests as at the day when they resigned.

5. In each case, HK$1.00 is payable upon acceptance of the share
options granted.
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EETHES

DIRECTORS’ AND KEY EXECUTIVES’

SECURITIES (Cont’d)

INTERESTS IN

Interests in Issued Ordinary Shares and Underlying
Shares of Associated Corporations (Cont’d)

Interest in issued ordinary shares and share options granted
under the share option schemes of China Resources Land Limited

(“CR Land”), an associated corporation of the Company.

B: MEiZE
(%)
RARFBEAREHEMBRAR ([ZEH
Eh]) BEBEITEBRRABIRELERET S

ESREETHAENREFMER (8)

AT EEITEER XA R G5 B E R

th B A R RO R AR o

Aggregate

percentage

of interest

as at 31

December

2008!

R-BBNF

No. of Exercise +=8

Name of Long or No. of share price Date =+—H

Director Capacity short position shares options per share of grant RIS 4R %R

ESpnE % HERXE ROBE BREZE BSRIEE BRHAH EhalA

Mr. SONG Lin Beneficial owner Long position - 900,000 1.23  01/06/20052 0.019%

RMFEE BEREAA 1E

Mr. ZHU Jinkun Beneﬂcial owner Long position 100,000 - - - 0.002%

KeIEE EnfEBA wE

Mr. JIANG Wei Beneficial owner Long position 892,000 = = = 0.019%

BExXE ExEBA HE

Mr. LI Fuzuo Beneficial owner Long position 750,000 250,000 1.23 01/06/20052 0.021%

FRERE ERBEERA 1R

Mr. DU Wenmin  Beneficial owner Long position 790,000 250,000 1.23  01/06/20052 0.022%

HXREE ExBEBA wE

Mr. ONG Thiam Beneficial owner Long position 50,000 - - - 0.001%

Kin? BEREAA )

TR A

Notes: MisE :

1. This represents the percentage of aggregate long position in ordinary 1. ltt?%ﬁ@:;i@gﬂﬁ'i':ﬁ =+—HMFEE
shares and underlying shares of CR Land to the total issued share HEMEERLEERD TS RELERE
capital of CR Land as at 31 December 2008. ﬂﬂE%fTﬂﬁ$i@%§E’JEﬁ tE ©

2. The exercisable period is divided into 4 tranches, exercisable during 2. 1TSS RNESE - BAR _TTNEF -
the periods from 1 June 2006, 2007, 2008 and 2009 to 31 May ZEBEALF CEENFRCZBENFARA
2015. &Hﬁ%—‘::?—ﬁﬁﬁﬂzﬂ'—ﬁﬁ,ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁ

3. Resigned from Directorship on 20 March 2008. The number of 3. R-TZNF=-A_+HEEFHEES - il
shares and share options with its percentage indicated above Buin REEBAESE R E B D HLIEREREHE
represented their interests as at the day when they resigned. B R -

4. In each case, HK$1.00 is payable upon acceptance of the share 4. MBBERT - ARERAMTER MR
options granted. {41.00% 7T °
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EEEHES

DIRECTORS’ AND KEY EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (Cont’d)

B: Interests in Issued Ordinary Shares and Underlying
Shares of Associated Corporations (Cont’d)

Interest in issued ordinary shares and share options granted
under the share option schemes of China Resources Gas Group
Limited (“CR Gas”) (formerly known as China Resources Logic
Limited), an associated corporation of the Company.

ESREIETHASREFMER (8)

B ABHEAEERTEERRANR 0
(&)
RERTBEANEARALBRER AR
(BT RERDHHARAF) 2
B17 AR AR OB L MR 5T ) L e B R
e e -

Aggregate

percentage

of interest

as at 31

December

2008!

R-EENF

No. of Exercise T=A

Name of Long or No. of share price Date Sr=F

Director Capacity short position  shares options  per share of grant ERMALE

BEsps 27) FRHKR ROBE BREZE SRITEE RHBEH Bk

Mr. LI Fuzuo Beneficial owner Long position 51,000 - - - 0.004%
FRELRE BEREAA )

Mr. DU Wenmin  Beneficial owner Long position 54,000 = = = 0.004%
rXRESE BEREAA e

Mr. YU Yu? Beneficial owner Long position 16,000 - - - 0.006%
AT T A2 BEREAA A

Notes: MiEE

1. This represents the percentage of aggregate long position in ordinary
shares and underlying shares of CR Gas to the total issued share
capital of CR Gas as at 31 December 2008.

2. Resigned from Directorship on 20 March 2008. The number of
shares and share options with its percentage indicated above
represented their interests as at the day when they resigned.

1. WRR-_ZENF+_A=+—BMFEE
BERRE B LB FRAREERMN
REBTRABENEDL °

2. MZZEEN\F=A-_t+HEEEES - tit

ffn RERAES A RE A D LEREREHE
= H et o
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EETHES

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS OF THE
COMPANY

So far as known to the Directors of the Company, as at 31 December
2008, shareholders (other than Directors or Chief Executive Officer
or Chief Financial Officer of the Company) who had interest or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of
the SFO, or which are expected to be, directly or indirectly, interested
or deemed to be interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any
class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meetings of the Company, were as follows:

FERRNRFATN#ER

BARRESEAM R_ZTZNF+_A=1—
B RAQBRMDAEBBROT - BERERZS
KB RBIEXVERSH 2 ) 5370 BE R R SBRI AR
AWRBENEDIORR  IFEBLARARERZ M
HI'E 15 533615 P17 B 0V & RC T M P RO 81 A 1
@EORR  HBHARERAEEZREE LR E
EMARMNREMBER TERRBRRAE L&
SRR AR EES %A EHRER (T
ARFNES  BRATERERMBEE) 8
LI

Percentage of
Aggregate Long
Position in
Shares to the
Total Issued
Share Capital of
the Company

FERGHEAEE
Company Name Number of shares ERDRE BT
NEEB iy 4= RABET DL
China Resources National Corporation™ (“CRN”)
PEEFHAR/RO ([PEERH]) 3,551,233,882 60.65%
China Resources Co., Limited" (“CRCL")
ZEHRMHBERARO ([EHAR]) 3,651,233,882 60.65%
CRC Bluesky Limited® (“CRC Bluesky”) 3,5651,233,882 60.65%
China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited™ (“CRH”)
B (£E) ARARY ([EHEE]) 3,551,233,882 60.65%
Splendid Time Investments Inc.® (“Splendid”) 1,997,439,858 34.11%
Waterside Holdings Limited® (“Waterside”) 963,625,937 16.46%
Gold Touch Enterprises Inc.® (“Gold Touch”) 535,013,287 9.14%
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EEEHES

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS OF THE
COMPANY (Cont’d)

Notes:

1. CRNis a state owned enterprise which is the parent company of CRCL, a
company incorporated in the PRC, which in turn is the parent company of
CRC Bluesky, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, which
is in turn the parent company of CRH, a company incorporated in Hong
Kong. CRN, CRCL and CRC Bluesky each is deemed to be interested in
the 3,5651,233,882 shares held by CRH.

2. Gold Touch, Waterside and Splendid each directly held 535,013,287
shares, 963,625,937 shares and 1,997,439,858 shares respectively in
CR Micro as at 31 December 2008. Gold Touch, Waterside and Splendid
are wholly owned subsidiaries of CRH. CRH directly owns 55,154,800
shares in CR Micro.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save the consultancy agreement as disclosed under the paragraph
headed “Directors’ Interest in Contracts”, no contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part
of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during
the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2008, the aggregate turnover
attributable to the five largest customers accounted for were less than
20% of the Group’s total turnover.

For the year ended 31 December 2008, the aggregate purchases
attributable to the five largest suppliers accounted for were less than
20% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to
the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) has any interest in any of the Group’s five largest
customers or suppliers.

FERRNRAFATNER (R)

1., HEEHAEELE AEBHAR (RPEHF
ke 2a) W QA EHAQ A ACRC
Bluesky (E R BERELZHEEMAZHDR) A
A7 " CRC BlueskyBE B E B (RE B
MERZHAR) OF QR PEER  EHA
7] MCRC Bluesky# R AR EBEBAE AN
3,551,233,882R IR (A B fE s ©

2. R-—_ZETZETNHF+=-H =+ — B Gold
Touch - Waterside % Splendid& B #H # #
B 9 §51535,013,287/% * 963,625,937 K&
1,997,439,858% Z M &F 17 ° Gold Touch
Waterside & Splendid¥d AE B EEN 2 EMHMBE R
7 EHEBEEEEAS5,154,800FE BME T
BEAD o

EEEY

REXTEERANNER] —BRARENBRRE
Wl - FR - WEF SR FEERY RART
EBNEHAEMNEALINERNITHEEN
BHY -

FEEFRRMUER

BE_ZTTN\F+-_A=t—HLFE EXF
PRIEMBEERINAEERLETE20%
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BANK LOANS

Details of bank loans are set out in note 26 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

SHARE RELATED INCENTIVE PLANS

(1) Equity Incentive Plan
The Company adopted the Equity Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) on
8 May 2004 by way of ordinary resolution of shareholders. The
principle terms of the Plan, total plan amount as well as current
status is as follows:

(@) Objective of the Plan
The objective of the plan is to share the pride of ownership
among employees and to reward their performance and
contributions.

(b) Eligible participants of the Plan

The eligible participants of the Plan is any full time employee
of the Company or of any subsidiary and any Executive,
Non-Executive or Independent Non-Executive Directors
of the Company or of any subsidiary provided always that
such term shall exclude any person who has tendered his
resignation or who at the relevant time is working out his/
her period of notice pursuant to his/her employment contract
or otherwise.

(¢) Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee has been delegated with the
power to administer the Plan. It will, among other things,
approve (i) the total number of shares (which number shall
not exceed the total plan amount mentioned in point (d)) to
be allocated to eligible participants of the Plan, and (ii) the
respective entitlements of the participants, in each case
based on the recommendation of the Executive Directors
from time to time.

RITER

BRRTERNFE  ENGaMERERME
26 °

Rz 43 88 BT &l
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EEEHES

SHARE RELATED INCENTIVE PLANS (Cont’d)

(1) Equity Incentive Plan (Cont’d)

(d)

Total plan amount and individual limit

Total number of Shares which may be allocated and issued
under the Plan shall not exceed 15% of the total number
of Shares in issue from time to time. The initial total plan
amount, as approved by the shareholders on 8 May 2004 by
way of ordinary resolution, is fixed at 246,900,000 shares.

Total number of Shares which may be issued pursuant to
the Plan in any financial year shall not exceed 3% of the total
number of Shares in issue as at the close of business on the
last business day of the preceding financial year.

Total number of Shares issued and to be issued to any
selected employees in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1% of the total number of Shares in issue.

Allocating and vesting of the shares under the Plan
Among the total plan amount, as at 31 December 2008, a
collective of 160,496,544 shares had already been allocated
to the eligible participants by the Company and are subject
to a four-year vesting period in which a quarter of such
number of shares will vest each year during the four-year
period. No amount is payable for acceptance of allocation
of shares by eligible participants and HK$0.078 per share is
payable by eligible participants for subsequent allotment of
shares so vested. As at the date of this Annual Report, the
total number of shares available for allocation under the Plan
is 86,403,456 which represents about 1.48% of the issued
share capital of the Company.

Rz 4388 BhET &8I (4)
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SHARE RELATED INCENTIVE PLANS (Cont’d)

(1) Equity Incentive Plan (Cont’d)

(€)

Allocating and vesting of the shares under the Plan

R4y 88 BhsT &8l (@)

(1) RREE&EHEEI (8)
(e) FHETRONIERERE (8)

(Cont’d)
Number of shares allocated
PERHRDEE
Balances
Balance as at 31
as at Cancelled/ December,
1 January Granted Lapsed 2008
Exercise 2008 during Exercised during —EZENE
Date price —ZEZNF the year during the year +=A
of grant per share —HA—H F£RE  the year FRE =+-—H
FE B BRITHEE w®er B FRETHE FH AN 223
HK$ ’000 ’000 '000 ’000 '000
BT Fh& Fh% Fh& FHR Fhr
Peter Chen 01/10/2003 0.078 2,330 - 2,330 - -
Cheng-yu
BRIEF
Frank Lai Ni Hium 01/10/2003 0.078 1,400 - 1,400 - -
Bi-gica
Management and 01/10/2003 0.078 18,453 - 14,888 - 3,565
employees 26/01/2006 0.078 2,309 - 1,089 78 1,142
EREKES 02/01/2007 0.078 2,544 - 770 403 1,371
16/05/2007 0.078 1,202 - 318 - 884
Total
et 28,238 - 20,795 481 6,962

The weighted average closing price of the shares immediately

before the date on which the options were exercised was

HK$0.378.

HETEZ BRERQ D8 InEFES
W H B A0.378 T ©
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SHARE RELATED INCENTIVE PLANS (Cont’d)

(1) Equity Incentive Plan (Cont’d)

(2

(f)

Term of the Plan

The term of the Plan is for ten years from the date of
adoption (8 May 2004), subject to early termination by way
of ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the Company
in a general meeting.

Interested shareholders not entitled to vote

Interested shareholders must abstain from voting in any
general meeting of the Company where approval from
Shareholders is being sought for matters relating to the
Plan.

Share Option Scheme

In addition to the Plan, the Company, as approved by its
shareholders on 27 May 2005 by way of ordinary resolution,
adopted Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme”). The principle
terms of the Scheme, total scheme amount as well as current
status are as follows:

(a)

Obijective of the Scheme

The objective of the Scheme is to provide participants
with the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in
the Company and to encourage participants to work
towards enhancing the value of the Company and its
shares for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders
as a whole. The Scheme provided the Company with a
flexible means of either retaining, incentivising, rewarding,
remunerating, compensating and/or providing benefits to
the participants.

Eligible participants of the Scheme

The eligible participants of the Scheme is any directors,
employees, advisors, consultants, distributors, contracts,
contract manufacturers, suppliers, agents, customers,
business partners, joint venture business partners, service
providers of any member of the Group who the Remuneration
Committee consider, in its sole discretion, have contributed
or will contribute to the Group.
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SHARE RELATED INCENTIVE PLANS (Cont’d)

(2) Share Option Scheme (Cont’d)
(c) Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee has been delegated with the
power to administer the Scheme. It will, among other things,
(i) consider, in its sole discretion, the eligible participants (i)
approve the total number of shares (which number shall not
exceed the total scheme amount) to be allocated to eligible
participants of the Scheme, and (i) approve the respective
entitlements of the participants, in each case based on the
recommendation of the Executive Directors from time to
time.

(d) Total Scheme amount and individual limit
The overall limit on the number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and other share
option schemes of the Company and the shares which
may fall to be issued under the Plan in aggregate must not
exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time.

Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under this Scheme and other share option
schemes of the Company shall not exceed 10% of the
aggregate of the Shares in issue as at the date of approval
of the Scheme by shareholders.

Total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each participant in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number
of Shares in issue.
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SHARE RELATED INCENTIVE PLANS (Cont’d)

(2) Share Option Scheme (Cont’d)

(€)

Granting and vesting of the shares under the Scheme
Among the total Scheme amount, as at 31 December 2008,
a collective of 19,828,000 shares had already been granted
to the eligible participants by the Company. HK$1 is payable
for acceptance of an offer of option. The subsequent price
for which share shall be no less than the higher of (i) the
closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheet issued be the Stock Exchange on the date of grants,
(i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately before the date of grant, and
(iii) the nominal value of a share. As at the date of this Annual
Report, the total number of shares available for allocation
under the Plan is 245,384,198 which represents about
4.19% of the issued share capital of the Company.
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Number of shares allocated

PEARDEE

Balances

Balance as at 31

as at December

1 January Cancelled/ 2008

2008  Granted Lapsed i

Exercise i during Exercised during —ZENE

Date price ZZEZEN\E  the year during  the year +=A

of grant per share —A—H FRE  the year ERE =t+—H

BZHAH BRIEE o353 B FRETE FHH AN 2353

HK$ ’000 '000 '000 '000 '000

BT Fhix TR Fhr Fh% Fhx

Management and 08/09/2007" 0.360 18,341 - 900 2,250 15,191

employees

EEENES 28/05/20072 0.750 1,587 - - - 1,587
Total

#Et 19,928 - 900 2,250 16,778
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SHARE RELATED INCENTIVE PLANS (Cont’d)

(2) Share Option Scheme (Cont’d)

(€)

Granting and vesting of the shares under the Scheme
(Cont’d)

No shares were granted to the Directors during the year
ended 31 December 2008.

The weighted average closing price of the shares immediately
before the date on which the options were exercised was
HK$0.418.

Notes:

1. Share options granted under the Scheme in 8 September 2006
are subject to a four-year vesting period from the date of grant
in which a quarter of such number of share options will vest
each year during the four-year period.

2. Share options granted under the Scheme in 28 May 2007
are subject to one-year vesting period from the participant’s
employment starting date as approved by Remuneration
Committee.

Term of the Scheme
The term of the Scheme is for ten years from the date of
adoption (27 May 2005), subject to early termination by way
of ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the Company
in a general meeting.

Interested shareholders not entitled to vote

Interested shareholders must abstain from voting in any
general meeting of the Company where approval from
Shareholders is being sought for matters relating to the
Scheme.
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SHARE RELATED INCENTIVE PLANS (Cont’d)

(8) Restricted Share Award Scheme
Additionally, the Company, as approved by the Board on 15
December 2008, adopted Restricted Share Award Scheme (the
“New Scheme”). The principle terms of the New Scheme, total

scheme amount as well as current status are as follows:

(a)

Objective of the New Scheme

The purpose of the Scheme is to recognise and motivate the
contribution of certain Employees and to provide incentives
and help the Group in retaining its existing Employees and
recruiting additional Employees and to provide them with a
direct economic interest in attaining the long-term business
objectives of the Company.

Eligible Participants of the New Scheme

The eligible participants of the New Scheme is any full-time
employee employed by any member of the Group (including
without limitation any executive and non-executive director
of any member of the Group).

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee may, from time to time, at
its absolute discretion select the Selected Employee(s)
(excluding any Excluded Employee) after taking into account
various factors as it deems appropriate for participation in
the Scheme as a Selected Employee and determines the
number of Restricted Shares to be awarded.
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SHARE RELATED INCENTIVE PLANS (Cont’d)

(8) Restricted Share Award Scheme (Cont’d)

(d)

Total Scheme Amount and Individual Limit

The Remuneration Committee shall not make any further
Award which will result in the aggregate number of Shares
awarded by the Board under the Scheme in excess of
2.5% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
Adoption Date.

The maximum number of Restricted Shares which may be
awarded to a Selected Employee under the Scheme shall not
exceed 0.25% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the Adoption Date.

Granting and Vesting of the Shares Under the New
Scheme

There are no shares granted to the Directors during the year
ended 31 December 2008.

Term of the Scheme

The term of the Scheme is for ten years from the date of
adoption (15 December 2008), unless sooner terminated as
determined by the Board of Directors by a 3 months prior
notice.

Interested Shareholders not Entitled to Vote

The Trustee shall not exercise the voting rights in respect of
any Shares held under the Trust (including but not limited
to the Restricted Shares, the Returned Shares, any bonus
Shares and scrip Shares).
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Report of the Directors

EEEHES

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group had the
following transactions, which would need to be disclosed as continuing
connected transactions in accordance with the requirements of the
Listing Rules.

A. Continuing connected transactions within the year and

after the Amalgamation

1. The services agreement with CSMC Technologies Fab 2
Co., Ltd. (“Fab 2”)
On 30 April 2008, CSMC Technologies Corporation, an
investment holding company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands on 29 October 2007 and a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CR Micro, entered into a services agreement
with Fab 2, in which CRH and the Company indirectly holds
81% and 19% interest respectively. Under the services
agreement, CSMC Technologies Corporation agrees to
provide, and/or to procure its subsidiaries to provide certain
general administrative support. The service agreement took
effective from 30 April 2008 to 31 December 2010, which is
a continuing connected transaction to the Group.

The basis of the payment for services rendered under the
services agreement by Fab 2 will be 60% of the actual
costs incurred by the Group for the above functions on its
foundry operations. This percentage has been determined
by the approximate proportionate net asset value of the joint
venture and the other foundry operations of the Group.

The annual caps for the three years ending 31 December 2010
are HK$90,000,000, HK$100,000,000 and HK$110,000,000,
respectively.

For the period from 30 April 2008 to 31 December 2008,
the aggregate transaction amount for the above amounted
to HK$57,057,661.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

A. Continuing connected transactions within the year and

after the Amalgamation (Cont’d)

2.

The consultancy agreement with Wiston Management
Limited

On 1 July 2006, the Company entered into an agreement
with Wiston Management Limited (“Wiston”) for consultancy
agreement. Wiston is owned as to 50% by each of Dr.
Peter CHEN Cheng-yu, who is an Executive Director of the
Company. Accordingly, Wiston is a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules and the transaction is a
continuing connected transaction to the Company.

Under the agreement, the Company engaged Wiston
to recommend and to procure executives, as expatriate
employees of management grade within the Group, to provide
managerial services to the Company. The consultancy
fees are subject to adjustment depending on the number
of executives providing services to the Group. All of the
consultancy fees charged by Wiston to the Company are
to pay the executives for providing managerial services to
the Company.

The annual caps for the three years ending 31 December
2009 are RMB5,000,000 (HK$5,604,000), RMB5,000,000
(HK$5,604,000) and RMB2,500,000 (HK$2,802,000),
respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2008, the aggregate
transaction amount for the above amounted to RMB3,048,398
(HK$3,416,645).
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EEEHES

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

A. Continuing connected transactions within the year and

after the Amalgamation (Cont’d)

3"

The tenancy agreement with China Resources Property
Management Limited

On 17 November 2008, CRM Management Services Limited
(“CRM Management”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a tenancy agreement with China
Resources Property Management Limited (“CR Property”),
an associate of CRH. The tenancy agreement took effective
from 17 November 2008 to 31 March 2011. Under the
agreement, CRM Management rent certain office premises
from CR Property for its principal place of business in Hong
Kong. The terms of the transaction, including the rent, were
determined after arm’s length negotiations between the
parties and after making reference to prevailing open market
rents and standard tenancy agreements entered into by CR
Property with other independent tenants. The transaction is
a continuing connected transaction to the Company.

The annual caps for the three years ending 31 December
2009 are HK$2,140,000, HK$2,320,000 and HK$2,500,000,
respectively.

For the period from the Amalgamation Date to 31 December
2008, the aggregate transaction amount for the above
amounted to HK$2,123,801.

FEX S (8])
A. REAREFEHZEMHERERS (&)

B2China Resources Property
Management Limited 890 & 17 5%
R_ZEZENF+—-A++LH CRM
Management Services Limited ([ CRM
Management|) (Zx 2 &1 H) — fE & & [
B AR B E & E A & A FlChina
Resources Property Management
Limited ([CR Propertyl) & 32 — 1%
HEmE ZHEBZE_ZZN
F+—A++tARE-_T——F=HA
=t+T—BBEM- REBEZHZE  CRM
Management[@CR Propertyf i & T+
MAEMEERETCRAASTEL XN
Bhe ZIBRXSHWER (BREER) K
SR AT HEALLELERITARAMSHE
& MCR Property£2 H & 770 = 5] 32
WIZLEHEHZEET - ZBAXHER
NEIMFERERS -

BE_ZEEZhAhE+_A=+—HI1t=
EFENFE LR D 5A2,140,000/8
7T * 2,320,000/ 7t 2,500,000/ 7T °

REFRBE_ZTTNF+_A=1—
AHE LAREXSINRSREE
2,123,801/ T

= = = )\ % % & # & ANNUAL REPORT 2008 19



80

CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICSLIMITED ¥ B EFHR A 7

Report of the Directors

EETHRES

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

A. Continuing connected transactions within the year and
after the Amalgamation (Cont’d)

4.

Manufacturer’s representative agreement with STATS
ChipPAC Limited

As set out in an announcement made by CR Logic dated
22 June 2006, Wuxi CR Micro-Assemb Tech. Ltd. (“ANST”),
a subsidiary of CR Logic at that time, as manufacturer,
CR Logic, as guarantor, STATS ChipPAC (BVI) Limited
(“SCBL”"), as manufacturer’s representative, and STATS
ChipPAC Limited (“SCL”), the holding company of SCBL
and substantial indirect shareholder of ANST, entered into
a manufacturer’s representative agreement, in which SCBL,
should solicit orders from existing and future customers of
SCL together with its subsidiaries to be placed directly with
ANST and assist ANST in relation to promotional activities
and events. The manufacturer’s representative agreement
was agreed to be effective from 1 January 2007 and for
a duration from 1 January 2007 to 31 December 2009.
CR Logic entered into the manufacturer’s representative
agreement to guarantee the payment obligation of ANST,;
whilst SCL undertook to procure the due and punctual
performance of SCBL.

After the Amalgamation, ANST became an indirectly non-
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. SCL, being
a substantial indirect shareholder of ANST, became a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
Thus the transaction is a continuing connected transaction to
the Company. Meanwhile, CR Logic assigned all of its rights
and benefit to the Company and the Company undertakes
to resume and perform all duties, liabilities and obligations
of CR Logic, under the aforementioned manufacturer’s
representative agreement.

The annual caps for the two years ending 31 December
2009 are HK$18,000,000.

For the period from the Amalgamation Date to 31 December
2008, the aggregate transaction amount for the above
amounted to HK$8,738,123.
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FEX S (8])

FRETRENEBSHETER AR AR
EXS

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

B. Continuing connected transactions within the year and B.
eliminated since the Amalgamation

1. Storage and transportation of dangerous goods with Wuxi 1. HESELFRSREERAGMERE
Huajing Multi-Services Co., Ltd. Wi fe Yl
On 1 July 2006, CSMC Technologies Fab 1 Co. Ltd (“Fab R-ZEEXRFELA—H EBHLEENH
1”), a subsidiary of CSMC, entered into an agreement for BARIEGEH FEFERER QA
the provision of storage and transportation of dangerous ([—m)) BEHERESRBERA
chemical goods by Wuxi Huajing Multi-Services Co., Ltd. A ([EHRE] - RERBBNKRER
(“Wuxi Services”), which was a subsidiary of CR Logic to 7)) M —RRERTRER SRS
Fab 1. The agreement was effective from 2 January 2007 mEK—IHE o ZER T LF
for a term of three years ending 31 December 2009, which —AZHREY  EZTTZNF+=A
was a continuing connected transaction to the Group and =+—HB#&IE RE=F - AAKE—
was eliminated since the Amalgamation. HIFERERS  MEREBEHET
The annual cap for each of the three years ending 31 BHE_ZZAF+_A=+—81t
December 2009 is RMB1,800,000 (HK$2,017,440). “EFEEFNFELRAARYK

1,800,0007T (2,017,440/87T) °

For the period ended the Amalgamation Date, the aggregate HEAHMBILEE  LAXZHERS
transaction amount for the above amounted to RMB266,244 & B E A R #266,2447T (298,406
(HK$298,406). JL) °

2. Lease of fab premises and supporting facilities with China 2. HESGEBINSFERATNEESRER

Resource Microelectronics Co., Ltd.

Fab 1 entered into agreements with Wuxi China Resources
Microelectronics Co., Ltd (“Wuxi CR”), which was a subsidiary
of CR Logic, for the lease of fab premises and supporting
facilities from Wuxi CR, which was a continuing connected
transaction to the Group which was eliminated since the
Amalgamation. The lease of the fab premises and supporting
facilities is governed by two agreements, both dated 1 March
2003, and a supplemental agreement dated 6 June 2004,
all between Fab 1 and Wuxi CR.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

B. Continuing connected transactions within the year and

eliminated since the Amalgamation (Cont’d)

2.

Lease of fab premises and supporting facilities with China
Resource Microelectronics Co., Ltd. (Cont’d)

The rental is at a fixed sum subject to adjustment with
reference to changes in the prevailing market rates which
may be caused by any changes to the PRC national policies
from time to time. Furthermore, the parties may review the
rental once every three years and come to further agreement
on adjustment (if any) in the event of material changes to
market conditions. The lease covers the term of operation
of Fab 1,
terminated, and the lease will be automatically renewed

which expires in July 2049, unless otherwise

during the term of operation of Fab 1 at 20-year interval until
2049 or otherwise terminated.

The annual caps for each of the three years ending 31
December 2009 are RMB9,500,000 (HK$10,647,600).

For the period ended the Amalgamation Date, the
aggregate transaction amount for the above amounted to
RMB1,520,167 (HK$1,703,803).

Wafer milling service provided by Wuxi CR Mirco-Assemb
Tech Ltd.

On 1 July 2006, Fab 1 entered into an agreement with Wuxi
CR Mirco-Assemb Tech Ltd. (“Micro-Assemb”), which was
a subsidiary of CR Logic, for wafer milling service provided
by.Micro-Assemb, which was a continuing connected
transaction to the Group which was eliminated since the
amalgamation. The agreement took effect from 19 March
2006 to 31 December 2009.

FEX S (8])

B. FAETRENEBSHETERBHER
X5 (&)

2.

HESERNEFARATHESER
TRSH R EERE (%)

HECBEEEX -2/ BA2EZHRT
MENZESMAE - AEHERNEES
BB RBR TR EEM Q@J ° litﬁl\ * 8]
WEFTAE=FRIEE IR HHR

HIRBEBAEE - AR (ﬁﬂﬁ) #1T
ERR R o ZHEAORN —MAEEMAR

M BRIERITRIE - BRIER TN
FEAER - RN—HMELHHE  Hos
“tHEHEEREY  BEE_TMAF
RIS AR AR -

HE-_ZZAF+_A=+—81
—EAFESF FELRAARE
9,500,0007% (10,647,600 7T) °

HEAMBLEM  Laxs88maeA
R #1,520,1677T (1,703,803 7T) °

EEERZENBERATMERNS
B 4T EEBR A5

R-TTAFELA—R —REEpE
HERBEERAR ([RERBHY] - #
HEBMM B AR EXHE - MK
RIEREITERE - ZBEA—BAE
E—15 ii*?ﬂLﬁ&% &Eﬁf\%a‘k/\@%
“BTEXABERS - ZBEHE =
NE= ﬂ‘f’jLEi_? TNF+= ﬂ_
+—BER -



Report of the Directors

EEEHES

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

B. Continuing connected transactions within the year and

eliminated since the Amalgamation (Cont’d)

3"

Wafer milling service provided by Wuxi CR Mirco-Assemb
Tech Ltd. (Cont’d)

Under the agreements, Micro-Assemb agreed to provide
wafer milling services to Fab 1 at various fixed rates for
different types of wafer milling as and when requested
by Fab 1. The fee payable by Fab 1 to Micro-Assemb is
calculated in accordance with the agreed fixed rates having
regard to the size and number of wafers milled by Micro-
Assemb.

The annual caps for the above transactions for each of the
three years ending 31 December 2009 is RMB4,000,000
(HK$4,483,200).

For the period ended the Amalgamation Date, the aggregate
transaction amount for the above amounted to RMB15,326
(HK$17,177).

New office lease agreement with Wuxi CR

Fab 1 and Wuxi CR entered into an office lease agreement
on 19 March 2004, which was supplemented by a
supplemental agreement dated 6 June 2004. The transaction
was a continuing connected transaction to the Group which
was eliminated since the Amalgamation. Under the said
agreements, Fab 1 is required to pre-pay rent (estimated to
be RMB150,000 per month) for three years in the sum of
RMB5,400,000 (US$652,434) by installments according to
the progress of construction of the new building. The pre-
payment will be offset against the monthly rental payable by
Fab 1 commencing from the date of delivery of possession
of the property. Construction and decoration of the office
building was completed in mid 2005.

The annual cap for each of the three years ending 31
December 2009 is RMB2,500,000 (HK$2,802,000).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

B. Continuing connected transactions within the year and

eliminated since the Amalgamation (Cont’d)

4.

New office lease agreement with Wuxi CR (Cont’d)

For the period ended the Amalgamation Date, the aggregate
transaction amount for the above amounted to RMB300,000
(HK$336,240).

Supply and Sharing of utilities, energy and waste water
treatment with Wuxi CR

Fab 1 and Wuxi CR entered into an agreement for supply
and sharing of utilities, energy and waste water treatment
between Wuxi CR and Fab 1 on 6 May 1999, which was
supplemented by a supplemental agreement dated 19
March 2004 for a term of twelve years. The transaction was
a continuing connected transaction to the Group which was
eliminated since the Amalgamation. The rates are reviewed
and negotiated between the parties annually based on PRC
public rates or the current market rates and payments are
made by Fab 1 on a monthly basis in accordance with
detailed invoices rendered by Wuxi CR.

The annual caps for each of the three years ending 31
December 2009 are RMB130,000,000 (HK$145,704,000),
RMB135,000,000 (HK$151,308,000) and RMB140,000,000
(HK$156,912,000) respectively.

the
aggregate transaction amount for the above amounted to
RMB13,578,936 (HK$15,219,271).

For the period ended the Amalgamation Date,
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

B. Continuing connected transactions within the year and

eliminated since the Amalgamation (Cont’d)

6.

Wafer Processing Agreement with Wuxi China Resources
Semico Co., Ltd. (“Wuxi CR Semico”)

On 1 July 2006, Fab 1 and Wuxi CR Semico, which was a
subsidiary of CR Logic, entered into an agreement for wafer
processing services provided by Fab 1 to Wuxi, which took
effective from 17 January 2007 to 31 December 2009. The
transaction was continuing connected transaction to the
Group which was eliminated since the Amalgamation.

Under the agreements, Fab 1 agreed to provide wafer
processing services to Wuxi CR Semico at market price for
different types of products required by Wuxi CR Semico. The
fee payable by Wuxi CR Semico to the Fab 1 is calculated in
accordance with the then agreed rates having regard to the
size and number of wafers processed by Fab 1.

The annual caps for the three years ending 31 December 2009
are RMB220,000,000 (HK$246,576,000), RMB230,000,000
(HK$257,784,000) and RMB250,000,000 (HK$280,200,000)
respectively.

For the period ended the Amalgamation Date, the
aggregate transaction amount for the above amounted to
RMB9,844,445 (HK$11,033,654).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

B. Continuing connected transactions within the year and

eliminated since the Amalgamation (Cont’d)

7.

Wafer Processing Agreement with Shenzhen China
Resources Semico Microelectronics Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen
CR Semico”)

On 1 July 2006, Fab 1 entered into an agreement with
Shenzhen CR Semico, which was a subsidiary of CR
Logic for wafer processing services provided by Fab 1 to
Shenzhen CR Semico. The agreement took effective from 6
December 2006 to 31 December 2009. The transaction was
a continuing connected transaction to the Group which was
eliminated since the Amalgamation.

Under the agreement, Fab 1 agreed to provide wafer
processing services to Shenzhen CR Semico at market price
for different types of products required by Shenzhen CR
Semico. The fee payable by Shenzhen CR Semico to Fab
1 is calculated in accordance with the then agreed rates
having regard to the size and number of wafers processed
by Fab 1.

The annual caps for the three years ending 31 December
2009 are RMB32,000,000 (HK$35,865,600), RMB40,000,000
(HK$44,832,000) and RMB45,000,000 (HK$50,436,000)
respectively.

For the period ended the Amalgamation Date, the aggregate
transaction amount for the above amounted to RMB334,088
(HK$374,446).
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Report of the Directors

EEEHES

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

B. Continuing connected transactions within the year and

eliminated since the Amalgamation (Cont’d)

8.

IC packaging & testing service

CSMC had received orders from certain customer, an
independent third party, for wafer processing and upon their
request, CSMC engaged China Resources Semiconductor
Co., Ltd. (“HK Semico”), which was a subsidiary of CR
Logic, for IC packaging and testing. In order to formalize
the arrangement, Fab 1 and HK Semico entered into an
agreement dated 1 July 2006, which took effect from 1 July
2006 to 31 December 2008. Under the agreement, CSMC
agreed to pay HK Semico at a price fixed in the agreement
which is subject to adjustment according to market price
and subject to further negotiation by both parties. The
transaction was a continuing connected transaction to the
Group which was eliminated since the Amalgamation.

The annual caps for the above transactions for each of the
two years ending 31 December 2008 is RMB5,500,000
(HK$6,164,400).

For the period ended the Amalgamation Date, the aggregate
transaction amount for the above amounted to nil.
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EETHRES

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

B. Continuing connected transactions within the year and

eliminated since the Amalgamation (Cont’d)

9.

Wafer Processing agreement with CR PowTech

CSMC had been receiving orders from CR PowTech
(Shanghai) Co., Limited (“CR PowTech”), which was a
subsidiary of CR Logic, for wafer processing since 2006. In
order to formalize the arrangement, Fab 1 and CR PowTech
entered into an agreement dated 1 July 2006, which took
effect from 1 July 2006 to 30 June 2009. Under the
agreement, CR PowTech engaged Fab 1 wafer processing
for a term of three years, which may be terminated by either
party on 90 days’ written notice. The agreement provides the
basis on which wafer processing services are to be provided
by Fab 1 to CR PowTech subject to the parties’ confirmation
on the terms and conditions of each purchase which are
negotiated on a case by case basis. The transaction was a
continuing connected transaction to the Group which was
eliminated since the Amalgamation.

The annual caps for the above transactions for the three
years ending 31 December 2009 are RMB35,500,000
(HK$39,788,400), RMB42,000,000 (HK$47,073,600) and
RMB50,500,000 (HK$56,600,400), respectively.

the
aggregate transaction amount for the above amounted to
RMB4,377,753 (HK$4,906,586).

For the period ended the Amalgamation Date,
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Report of the Directors

EEEHES

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

B. Continuing connected transactions within the year and

eliminated since the Amalgamation (Cont’d)

10. Wafer foundry services agreement with HK Semico

11.

CSMC Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (“CSMC-BVI”) has been
receiving orders from HK Semico in relation to assistance on
preparing for mass production of wafers and the production
of such wafers. In order to formalise the arrangement,
CSMC-BVI entered into wafer foundry services agreement
dated 1 July 2006 and with HK Semico, which took effect
from 1 July 2006 to 30 June 2009. The pricing for production
of the wafers is to be reviewed from time to time and
subject to amendments. The transaction was a continuing
connected transaction to the Group which was eliminated
since the Amalgamation.

The annual caps for the above transactions for the two
years ending 31 December 2008 are RMB15,817,000
(HK$17,727,694) and RMB21,789,000 (HK$24,421,111),
respectively.

For the period ended the Amalgamation Date, the
aggregate transaction amount for the above amounted to
RMB1,706,229 (HK$1,912,341).

Wafer foundry services agreement with InPower (Wuxi)
Fab 1 has been providing wafer processing services to
InPower Semiconductor (Wuxi) Company Limited (“InPower
(Wuxi)”) for mass production of wafers and the production
of such wafers since January 2007. In order to formalise the
arrangement, Fab 1 entered into a wafer foundry services
agreement dated 28 March 2007 with InPower (Wuxi), which
was a subsidiary of CR Logic. The agreement took effect
from 29 May 2007 to 31 December 2009. The pricing for
the production of the wafer is to be agreed by the parties
each time when order is being placed. The transaction was
a continuing connected transaction to the Group which was
eliminated since the Amalgamation.
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Report of the Directors

EETHRES

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

B. Continuing connected transactions within the year and

eliminated since the Amalgamation (Cont’d)

11.

12.

Wafer foundry services agreement with InPower (Wuxi)
(Cont’d)

The annual caps for the above transactions for the 3
years ending 31 December 2009 are RMB2,000,000
(HK$2,241,600), RMB2,300,000 (HK$2,577,840) and
RMB3,500,000 (HK$3,922,800), respectively.

For the period ended the Amalgamation Date, the aggregate
transaction amount for the above amounted to Nil.

Wafer foundry services agreement with InPower (HK)
CSMC-BVI entered into wafer foundry services agreement
dated 28 March 2007 with InPower (HK) for the provision
of wafer processing services to InPower Semiconductor
Company Limited (the “InPower (HK)”), which was a
subsidiary of CR Logic, for mass production of wafers
and the production of such wafers, which took effect from
29 May 2007 to 31 December 2009. The pricing for the
production of the wafer is to be agreed by the parties each
time when order is being placed. The transaction was a
continuing connected transaction to the Group which was
eliminated since the Amalgamation.

The annual caps for the above transactions for the three
years ending 31 December 2009 are RMB14,110,000
(HK$15,814,488), RMB58,340,000 (HK$65,387,472) and
RMB111,180,000 (HK$124,610,544), respectively.

For the period ended the Amalgamation Date, the aggregate
transaction amount for the above amounted to RMB28,921
(HK$34,415).
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Report of the Directors

EEEHES

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

The Board engaged the Auditor of the Company to perform certain
agreed upon procedures in respect of the on-going connected
transactions to assist the Board to evaluate if the on-going connected
transactions are in accordance with the requirements of rule 14A.38
of the Listing Rules. The Auditor has reported the factual findings
on these procedures to the Board. The Independent Non-executive
Directors have reviewed the on-going connected transactions and
confirmed that the on-going connected transactions have been
entered into:

()  inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i)  on normal commercial terms or, if there are not sufficient
comparable transactions to judge whether they are on normal
commercial terms, on terms no less favourable to the Group
than terms available to or from (as appropriate) independent third
parties and on arm’s length basis;

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them;

(iv) on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interest of the
shareholders as a whole; and

(v)  without exceeding the relevant cap disclosed in previous relevant
announcements.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for
the year ended 31 December 2008.
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EETHRES

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES OF THE LISTING RULES

The Chairman of the Board, Mr. SONG Lin did not attend the Annual
General Meeting on 28 May 2008 due to other crucial business on
that date. The Chairman is aware that it deviated from the provision
E.1.2 of the Code which stipulates that the Chairman should attend
the annual general meeting of the Company. However, the Chairman
has asked Vice Chairman, Dr. Peter CHEN Cheng-yu to act on behalf.
Vice Chairman and the Chairpersons of Audit, Remuneration and
Nomination Committees and the Chief Financial Officer attended the
meeting. The Company considers that their presence is sufficient for
(i) answering questions from and (ii) effective communication with
shareholders presented at the AGM.

Save as disclosed above, in the opinion of the Directors, the Group
has been in compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance
Practices of the Listing Rules throughout the financial year. The Board
acknowledges its responsibility for the Group’s internal control systems
and has assumed this responsibility through formalized financial and
legal procedures within the Group, the Group’s auditors and the Audit
Committee.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of corporate governance are set out in the section headed
“Corporate Governance Report” on pages 34 to 44 of this Annual
Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirm that the
Company has maintained during the year the amount of public float
as required under the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Each of the Directors and their respective associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) has confirmed that none of them had any business
or interest in companies that competes, or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly with the business of the Group.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHES

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 20 February 2009, the directors of the Company announced that
the Company’s controlling shareholder, CRH has informed them that
it is presently considering placing a privatisation proposal before
the Company’s shareholders. If such a proposal is put forward,
shareholders, other than CRH and members of its group, will be
offered a cash consideration for their shares of HK$0.30 per share and
be offered the opportunity to retain a direct or indirect investment in the
Company (through retaining shares in the Company or its immediate
holding company, both of which will be unlisted companies on the
implementation of the privatisation proposal), provided a sufficient
percentage of the shareholders elect to retain such an interest. If the
privatisation proposal is put forward, the Executive Director of the
Corporate Finance Division of the Securities and Futures Commission
or any delegate of the Executive Director (the “Executive”) has
indicated that the cash consideration to be paid must not be less
than HK$0.30 per share. On the implementation of the privatisation
proposal application will be made for the withdrawal of the listing of
the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange.

On 25 February 2009, CRH further announced that there’s no intention
to increase the offer price for the possible privatisation proposal.

On 18 March 2009, the Company and CRM (BVI) Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of CRH, jointly announce that CRH, through
CRM (BVI) Limited has requested the Board to put forward to the
shareholders of the Company a proposal regarding a proposed
privatisation by way of the Scheme of Arrangement and withdrawal of
listing of the Company. The shareholders, other than CRH and parties
acting in concert with it, will receive from CRM (BVI) Limited in cash
consideration of HK$0.30 for every share held, or in share alternative
of one share in CRM (BVI) Limited for every share held (subject to the
condition as specified in the joint announcement), or a combination
of both, for the cancellation of their shares held in the Company.
An independent board committee of the Company has been formed
comprising all three independent non-executive directors to advise
Shareholders, other than CRH and parties acting concert with it. A
composite document will be despatched to the shareholders as soon
as practicable.
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Report of the Directors

EETHRES

AUDITORS ZEED

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Deloitte %) e B =R A @ :tAITTE B Z S5 A M 5H
Touche Tohmatsu who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves X » E#5iR (T - (BA BIKE R E(T -
for re-appointment.

Within two years ended 31 December 2008, the Company appointed REE -_ZZTN\F+-_A=+—HItREFE
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditors to the Company N KRB ZEEE « BER S SFTETAEA
Al IR SR o

On behalf of the Board, REEFZ

R R

Song Lin B
Chairman R

Hong Kong, 24 March 2009 BE ZETENF=HA=+WEH



Independent Auditor’s Report
VARG E

Deloitte.
=Z)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA RESOURCES
MICROELECTRONICS LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS
CSMC TECHNOLOGIES CORPORATION)

(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Resources Microelectronics Limited (the
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
98 to 195 which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at

“Company”) and its

31 December 2008, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation
of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that
are reasonable in the circumstances.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BUIZEMBEEE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation
of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BIUIZEBMEEE

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2008
and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

24 March 2009
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Consolidated Income Statement

mE W s R

For the year ended 31 December 2008 &= —ZENE+_A=+—HILFE

2008 2007
—EBEN\F —ETLF
(restated)
(&31)
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5E THET FHT
Turnover EEE 8 3,118,692 2,991,625
Cost of sales SHE KA (2,537,396) (2,205,194)
Gross profit ES] 581,296 786,431
Other income H g A 9 142,757 98,823
Selling and distribution expenses HE Ko tEAk AR (89,357) (69,332)
Administrative expenses THEA (374,152) (268,854)
Research and development expenses % & Bz & (187,006) (140,019)
Other expenses H 37 (117,775) (68,208)
Finance costs BB A 10 (92,293) (66,087
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEHTB AR 12 84,972 -
Loss on closure of Fa R —ARE TREEE
a manufacturing facility 13 (314,119) -
(Loss) profit before taxation F AT (EE) A (365,677) 272,754
Taxation I8 11 (17,242) (41,101)
(Loss) profit for the year REE (BE) #m A 13 (382,919) 231,653
Attributable to: LA B IEFE(G
Equity holders of the Company RARERFAA (371,535) 231,253
Minority interests DER R (11,384) 400
(382,919) 231,653
HK Cents HK Cents
AL Bl
(Loss) earnings per share Bk (BE) &7 16
Basic HA (6.33) 4.00
Diluted i3 N/A TiE 3.97
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

SREEEREX

At 31 December 2008 R=—ZEENFE+—-H=+—H

2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
(restated)
(E%)
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5T FHExT THT
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment VI - BB k& 17 3,592,396 3,942,398
Prepaid lease payments TS 18 174,906 160,395
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 19 741,698 570
Goodwill RS 20 21,024 21,024
Technical know-how Es QI 21 1,629 35,678
Deferred tax assets LR IEE E 29 18,589 10,892
Deposit for acquisition of property, WHEMZE - RE
plant and equipment NEEEIRE 21,120 17,011
4,571,362 4,187,968
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 22 812,721 796,902
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEUBRZR ~ 24 NFEFIE 23 876,431 1,002,426
Prepaid lease payments TEfNEe 18 4,176 3,799
Tax recoverable EIREE e 9,329 4172
Restricted bank deposits SR &SR TR 24 492 6,030
Bank balances and cash RITHEMR MRS 24 856,877 839,210
2,560,026 2,652,539
Current liabilities REBAE
Creditors and accrued charges ISR N ERTE R 25 1,352,722 1,578,502
Government grants BF# € 38 26,308 13,221
Financial guarantee contract MBEREL 30 10,790 -
Bank borrowings RITIEK 26 515,891 603,256
Provisions B 27 39,303 42,183
Taxation I8 5,088 10,327
1,950,102 2,247,489
Net current assets REBEEFE 609,924 405,050
Total assets less current liabilities EE&EFERGEBAR 5,181,286 4,593,018

= = = )\ & % & 5 & ANNUAL REPORT 2008 99




CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICSLIMITED ¥ B M EFH R A 7

Consolidated Balance Sheet

HREEEREX

At 31 December 2008 R=—ZEENE+-_HA=+—8H

2008 2007
—EENF —EELF
(restated)
(&%)
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FExT TFET
Capital and reserves BRAR#E
Share capital A% AR 31 585,521 579,187
Share premium and reserves f& 175 (B & 4 2,400,135 2,584,265
Equity attributable to equity holders AKRREZFEA
of the Company FE(LHE R 2,985,656 3,163,452
Minority interests DB R R 98,162 90,042
Total equity A 3,083,818 3,253,494
Non-current liabilities FERBEMS
Bank borrowings RITEE 26 1,913,590 1,174,746
Long-term payables RHEET AR K 28 59,456 66,026
Deferred tax liabilities RIETRIES R 29 4,718 6
Government grants BB & 38 119,704 98,746
2,097,468 1,339,524
5,181,286 4,593,018

The consolidated financial statements on pages 98 to 195 were HNFIBEF1BENGFAMBREDN_ZEE
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 24 HNF=A-THBEEESGHEREELMH - I

March, 2009 and are signed on its behalf by: HTRAIESRERES
WANG Guoping £ B ¥ Frank LAI Ni Hium 2%
Director % Director %
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REEag KR

For the year ended 31 December 2008 &E —ZEN\F+_-_A=+—RHI[FE

Attributable to equity holder of the Company

NG e 2PN L
Share
Share Share  Merger Translation option Other  Retained Minority Total
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserves profits Total interests equity
28
ke ROGE AUEE FEEE BRERE HtEE REER B8 RKREE EoAE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
T T TR TR TR TR iR ThT ThT ThT
(Note a) (Note b)
(Hizta) (Fi3to)
At 1 January 2007 as previously stated RCZTLE-F-R [EI2Y 272584 597273 268,119 64,442 8,940 55,202 64,630 1,331,190 - 1,331,190
Effect of business combination under RREHTHEBANYE
common control (Note 2) (Bf3E2) 305,058 1525290  (907,396) 100,675 - 73983 714484 1812094 83279 1,895,373
t 1 January 2007, as restated R-ZE+E-F-R &) 577,642 2122563  (639,277) 165,117 8,940 129,185 779,114 3,143,284 83,279 3,226,563
Exchange differences recognised directly in equity WERHERERANEL 28 - - - 254574 = = - 254574 6,363 260,937
Proft for the year EEEH - - - - - - 231258 231283 400 231653
Total recognised income for the year EERIMALS - = - 254574 = - 231253 485827 6,763 492,590
Shares issued upon exercise of options under ~ RfT(ERA RENEHEE T
Equity Incentive Plan BRERZIRO 1,330 4714 - - (5,009 - - 1,035 - 1,085
Shares issued upon exercise of options under {7 (EEERRIES EIE T 4)
Share Option Scheme BRERZTRG 215 647 - - (86) - - 776 - 776
Recognition of equity-settled share-based EARREE SR
payments ES - - - - 6,954 - - 6,954 - 6,954
Dividend paid to China Resources Logic BFEE @]@(ﬁ N
Limited ('CR Logic') (Note &) (EEEE)) e (Fike) - - - - - - Ted2) (T4 d24) o (T4
Transfers between categories NEREE - - - - - 35032 (35,03 - - -
At 31 December 2007 R-ZELE+-A=1-H 5719187 2127924 (639.277) 419,691 10,799 164,217 500,911 3,163,452 90,042 3,253,494
Fxchange differences recognised directly in equity MRS ERBIMEY 28 - - - 239,95 - - - 230,956 5607 245563
Loss for the year EEER - - - - - - @75 @758 (11384 (382919)
Disposal of subsidiarkes (Note 12) HEHBAR (Hit12) - - - 6212 - - - 6212 - 621
Total recognised income for the year EEEANAER - - - 183744 - - (371,535  (187,791) (6,777)  (193,568)
Shares repurchased and cancelled BEEREHNRD (6208 (8,707) - - - - - (14915) - (14915)
Shares issued upon exercise of options under — FMTEERR (R EBIHEIE T &)
Equity Incentive Plan EREREARD 2,146 7,755 - - (878 - - 1,116 - 1,116
Shares issued upon exercise of options under — FM7(EEE st EIE T4
Share Option Scheme BRERRIRO 90 271 - - (87) - - 324 - 324
Recognition of equity-settled share-based ERRAEERNRN
payments E - - - - 207 - - 1,277 - 1,217
Shares issued to CR Logic option-holders RERRRERESEA
(Note ¢] BARMA (Ritc) 10306 5159 - - - (61,83 - . - -
Capital contribution by minority interests DERFETE - - - - - - - - 14,359 14,359
Capital contribution by CR Logic (Note o) ERRIEE (Wikd) - - - - - 219 - 219 - 219
Transfers between categories HEHEE = = < = - 6452 (26452 - - ¥
Dividends paid to minority interests B ERERE - = = = - - - - (462) (462)
At 31 December 2008 R=ZENE+=FA=1-H 585,521 2,178,773  (639,277) 603,435 3264 161,026 102,924 2,985,656 98,162 3,083,818
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CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICSLIMITED ¥ B M EFH R A 7

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERERE XK

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZE —ZZEN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

Notes:

(@)

102

The exchange differences arose from translation of assets and liabilities
of foreign operations into the presentation currency.

Other reserves comprise general reserve, statutory surplus reserve,
enterprise expansion fund, statutory public welfare fund and discretionary
surplus reserve of subsidiaries established in the mainland China and
deemed distribution to and capital contribution by CR Logic. General
reserve was appropriated each year on the basis of 5% to 10% of the
profit after taxation of certain subsidiaries as determined by their board of
directors in accordance with the Articles of Association of the subsidiaries.
This reserve should only be used for making up losses, capitalisation into
capital and expansion of production and operation.

Amount represents deemed distribution to CR Logic for cancellation of
CR Logic options in exchange for shares in the Company to CR Logic
option-holders at no consideration or exercise of CR Logic options to
be settled by the issuance of shares of the Company pursuant to the
sale and purchase agreement of the semiconductor businesses of CR
Logic.

Amount represents capital contribution by CR Logic to the subsidiaries
acquired by the Company prior to the date of completion of the acquisition
of semiconductor businesses from CR Logic.

Amount represented dividend paid to CR Logic by the subsidiaries
acquired by the Company prior to the date of completion of the acquisition
of semiconductor businesses from CR Logic.

B aE

(@)

(o)

(©)

EXERERENEBNEERBERIRER
B MmMELRZH

HFEEEEN P RAERIZANMEARN—RK
s EERBFEE CEXEBRRES  EEAR
T BIFARREELREERNEBRRNDIRKE
HRENEE - —REBIHEFEETHEAR
B B Bt 12 i M 326 % 2 10% M B E S BE - Wi %
BNEFSRESMNBARAREREMRABTE
o mHBEERRHER  BREARBREE
NEEBZA -

ZERERERAEEBHEELNDIR - BIRERE
ERENFEEXBEERANTRELAAA
B R ERRBERERSA AAZHERRD
HEREREBETARTARNGEERRBER
BB ANTTERERR R ERE -

ZEeRERUBEERDRFERERE KA S
Al FEBEAARRS RBKE QR FAEG
A e

ZEeRERUBEERDRFERERE KA S
Al - ARAREWEBAK B QR XN TE BB
ARE



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

GERETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZEENF+-_F=+—HILEE

2008 2007
—ZENF “ETLF
(restated)
(Z51)
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
P & BT FHET
Operating activities e
(Loss) profit before taxation BriiAl (E518) & Al (365,677) 272,754
Adjustments for: SAELATIIER -
Finance costs BMEKA 92,293 66,087
Interest income FSBA (35,641) (5,081)
Government grants recognised BEERHNHED (30,481) (10,520)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEM B AR/ (84,972) -
Depreciation of property, ME - BE KRS
plant and equipment e 465,403 355,784
Impairment loss on property, BRERYE « BEREH
plant and equipment recognised REEE 223,169 2,844
Amortisation of technical know-how 117 S0 558 51 4,197 3,945
Impairment loss on technical BRI SR E
know-how recognised BB 32,515 =
Release from prepaid lease payments BIEMHEESED 3,992 3,799
Write off of inventories 7 &M 8 98,398 30,538
Allowance for doubtful debts RERE S 10,851 4,840
Share-based payment expense BN 1,277 6,954
Gain on disposal of property, HEME  BENREN
plant and equipment Wz (1,408) (8,374)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HERMHEERER
investments Wz - (3,586)
Write back of provisions Biprm = (25,858)
Operating cash flows before LEASBBINLS
movements in working capital RERE 413,916 694,126
Increase in inventories FEEM (63,394) (159,957)
Decrease (increase) in debtors, FEERR ~ 2 E RIEFA IR
deposits and prepayments A (1) 22,471 (43,086)
Increase in creditors and SRR RETER
accrued charges N 127,028 33,481
Utilisation of provisions B AR (3,219) (10,066)
Cash generated from operations REXBEERNRS 496,802 514,498
Profits tax paid BERFEE (30,202) (38,094)
Net cash from operating activities REEBELENRSTE 466,600 476,404
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CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICSLIMITED ¥ B M EFH R A 7

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

mERETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2008 &= —ZENE+_A=+—HILFE

2008 2007
—ZENF —TELF
(restated)
(&51)
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
P & BT FHT
Investing activities REEE
Payments and deposits for acquisition BEWE  BEEEED
of property, plant and equipment N kize (574,360) (852,294)
Purchase of prepaid lease payments BARMNES (13,382) 91)
Proceeds on disposal of property, HEWE - BER&E
plant and equipment FT{S VA 5,698 17,917
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHE AR 12 (22,711) -
Additional contribution to A SHERE RN
the available-for-sale investments AE (281,282) -
Proceeds on disposal of HEAHIFERE
available-for-sale investments PT1S 5038 = 3,842
Interest received B IF 2 35,641 5,081
Decrease in restricted bank deposits SR HRITFRR D 5,538 1,612
Net cash used in investing activities REZHHANESFE (844,858) (823,933)
Financing activities MEEE
New bank loans raised MEERTER 1,942,337 2,724,356
Repayments of borrowings BEREE (1,250,163) (1,985,505)
Repayment of long term payables EE RN (12,739) (9,087)
Repurchase of shares felm (14,915) -
Repayment to fellow subsidiaries BERZMERRIFE (291,223) -
Advanced from fellow subsidiaries EESEYNSIFEIREN 16,846 99,470
Capital contribution by CR Logic EHERTE 22,193 -
Interest paid ERFLE (88,090) (61,901)
Government grants received BEWEFHHEE 48,506 65,700
Exercise of share options 1T BE A 1,440 1,811
Dividend paid to minority shareholders EEINENGES (e
of a subsidiary %8 (462) -
Capital contribution from minority ME AR D EHRE
shareholders of a subsidiary EE 14,359 -
Net cash from financing activities METBMEESTE 388,089 884,844
Net increase in cash and BReRBESESEYEM
cash equivalents T 9,831 537,315
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January, A—B—BNELRELZEY 839,210 299,266
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HNES e R B B O RO 2 7,836 2,629
Cash and cash equivalents R+=—B=+—H#
at 31 December, representing bank RERBEESEEY
balances and cash MRTERRRES 856,877 839,210
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HE—ZEENF+-_F=+—HILEE

1. GENERAL 1. —R&EH

The Company is a company incorporated in Cayman Islands as RARIRRFASHEEMAZNERRER
an exempted company with limited liability and its shares are nal - HRORBEABERXZHFABERA A
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock (B2 FT)) ETh o ARBIM R A AEH
Exchange”). The Company’s parent company is China Resources (&B) ER2 A ([EHEE]) - —HERA
(Holdings) Company Limited (“CRH”), a company incorporated in BEMEKZBW AR - ERKERAR AT
Hong Kong and its ultimate holding company is China Resources FHANGF ([FREH])  —HARFEAR
National Corporation (“CRNC”), a company established in the HMBFEML I AT o NARIR MRS
People’s Republic of China. The addresses of the registered office BRI R E B BN F RN o

and principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the introduction to the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities AR B —RIEEERAR EXENBA
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 39. A TS HIFESQ ©

During the year, the Company acquired the semiconductor FRN - ANQAEERE(73,050,581,517KE
businesses of CR Logic, its former immediate holding company, A& E{E0.107%8 7 /Y 3 A W is = H B s (2
by the issue of 3,050,581,517 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each B ARRBINEEERAR) AFEEEK
(the “Amalgamation”). The Amalgamation has been completed on ([&60FE]) - aHFEER_EZNEF=
5 March 2008. The Company has renamed as China Resources ARABZTK - AARIBZZEETN\FZA+I
Microelectronics Limited with effective from 14 February 2008. HREEZRERMEFARIAF - &HF=E
Details of the Amalgamation are contained in the Company’s HIBER AR _EENF—A+ET
composite circular dated 16 January 2008. LA BEA o

The functional currency of the Company is United States dollars. KRR EE AEETL - RZEZENF
Prior to 2008, the presentation currency of the Company was Bl » NARRBELRE MR EREFEHANZES
United States dollars for the purpose of preparing its consolidated EMAETL EFRATE_TZTNFHRENR
financial statements. Starting from 2008, the directors have 23 EE  HREZERAEB T RITHES]
determined to change the presentation currency as the directors AEERNEEEBERTBRR (&R Wi
consider that Hong Kong dollars is preferable in presenting the 2)  c —ET+FHNERBEFEHEREHE
operating results and financial position of the Group (as defined in A (MiFF2) REREYIEK#EITES -

Note 2). The comparative figures for 2007 have been re-stated for
merger accounting (Note 2) and change in presentation currency

accordingly.

The change of presentation currency and the retranslation of RAABTEIETHE - BN EHEE KA
the comparative amounts from United States dollars to Hong BN RECBERETLENRERB L TITH A
Kong dollars has had no material impact on the Group’s annual SERZ2VNFENFEHFAUBRRBK
consolidated financial statements for the year presented as Hong BERTE o

Kong dollars is pegged to United States dollars.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

hE B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 &= —ZENE+_A=+—HILFE

106

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Pursuant to the Amalgamation, CR Logic transferred all the
equity interests in Oriental Gateway Enterprises Limited, CRL
Management Services Limited, CRL Finance Limited, Semicon
Technology Company Limited, Kope Microelectronics Company
Limited, China Resources Smartech Company Limited, Wuxi
China Resources Microelectronics (Holdings) Limited, CRC
Microelectronics Company Limited, Fortune Property Limited
and Well-Known Property Limited (“the Companies”) and their
respective subsidiaries (collectively referred as the “Combining
Companies”) held by CR Logic to the Company. The Combining
Companies together with the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) are regarded as continuing entities as
both the Combining Companies and the Company are ultimately
controlled by CRH prior to and after the Amalgamation.

The Amalgamation has been accounted for as a combination
of entities under common control by applying the principles of
merger accounting in accordance with the Accounting Guideline
5 “Merger Accounting for Common Control Combinations” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”) since the directors of the Company consider that
the semiconductor businesses of the Company and those held
by the above-mentioned entities are under the common control
of CRH. Accordingly, the financial information of the Group
has been prepared as if the Company has always been the
holding company of the Group or since their respective dates
of incorporation or establishment where this is a shorter period
in accordance with the respective equity interests in the Group
entities attributable to CRH. As a result, the share capital in
respect of the 3,050,581,517 ordinary shares disclosed in Note
1 issued for the merger is shown as if it had always been issued.
All significant intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on combination.

WAEE
REAHER EFERBRAARAERHE

M Oriental Gateway Enterprises Limited
B2 EE R AR A F - CRL Finance
Limited - EXRERAEF - BHBHMEFAR
NA - FEHBEBMRARAQF - |BEEMR
BF (ZR) BRAA  EEMEFERA
A BMEMEERARIREEMEFRAA
(IZERaA]) REZMNMEBAR (BB T4
Haal) BERI#ER - ZFEHRAF - K
NEIREME AR (5 [ AEE]) RAF
BEE REAAZZAHARIKARRINEG
HEBEA LA HEFHEBORKIE B REE
i o

HRARAIEEREAR AR LB
WY EREGHTEHIERNLRZES 2
T MR EHEAEEGFMAE ([F
BEIMAE]) BMEOEEE3| #5045 [
REGHEHONEHEE] Mt RA
RXARZEHEEEHETEHERE - B
It - AEER BB ERTREERS EE(L
SEEENRAEEMAE  BWUARQA
— B EZEEEMNEMB #kK B
(ABRBERE) EARSEMIZERAFR -
Hit - R 1IRREN REREHETY
3,050,581,517 % & i I Az 2N A& 45 B 1A HA 47
BB TESERARS - &8 WAK
FXRE PR L8 o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZE —ZTEN\F+_HA=1+—HILFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3.
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments and interpretations (“new HKFRSs”) issued by the
HKICPA, which are or have become effective.

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 7  Reclassification of Financial Assets

(Amendments)
HK(IFRIC) — Int 11 HKFRS 2: Group and Treasury
Share Transactions
HK(IFRIC) — Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements

HK(IFRIC) — Int 14 HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Mininum Funding
Requirements and their Interaction

The adoption of the new HKFRSs has had no material effect
on how the results and financial position for the current or
prior accounting periods have been prepared and presented.
Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been required.

In addition, the Group has elected to adopt the Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standard (“HKFRS”) 8 “Operating Segments”
in advance of its effective date. HKFRS 8 is a disclosure standard
which has resulted in a redesignation of the Group’s reportable
segments (see Note 8), but has had no impact on the reported
results or financial position of the Group.

FE R e ] R EsT & BTk & %A

RAEE  ARBECEATESMASH
BHE AR TINERT kR (R BNF
HEER]) o

EBSTERFEI0 EFLELREE
N EBIERE
ZERIE T

(RB1ERT)

e (BRPHHRE FEMBEHREER
2EZ89) 2% - KE R
—REF11%R BEEENRS

B (BRTBHRE REFIFELH
2EZ89)

— BEF125%

&5 (BBRHBHRS R EAF 1955
BEZ89) — EEENEEN
— REE145% PR &I~ KR

HE M EBERER

R BBV RS LA RN ZRAH
SBE SRR EE M BRI EE R
FE - ANBAFLBEHNERAE -

BEAh - AREBERE A B BAGE RS AN
BiREERIFESH (2N - BAMBR
ERRFESRE R —EHEEER - HEHEN
R AEEN A THEDE (RHIEE8) - B
HAKRBEERENEB T BMRRL |
@,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

hE B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZE —ZZEN\F+_A=1+—HILFE
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3.

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
standards, amendments or interpretations that have been issued

but are not yet effective.

HKFRSs
(Amendments)
HKAS 1 (Revised)

HKAS 23 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)
HKAS 32 & 1
(Amendments)
HKAS 39
(Amendment)

HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27
(Amendments)

HKFRS 2
(Amendment)
HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HK(FRIC)-Int 9 &
HKAS 39
(Amendments)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13

HK(IFRIC)-Int 15

HK(IFRIC)-Int 16

HK(FRIC)-Int 17

HK(FRIC)-Int 18

HKFRS 7
(Amendments)

Improvements to HKFRSs'!

Presentation of Financial Statements?

Borrowing Costs?

Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements®

Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation?

Eligible hedged items®

Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary,
Jointly Controlled Entity or
Associate?

Vesting Conditions and Cancellations?

Business Combination?®

Embedded Derivatives*

Customer Loyalty Programmes?®
Agreements for the Construction of
Real Estate?

Hedges of a Net Investment in a
Foreign Operation®

Distributions of Non-cash Assets to
Owners?®

Transfer of Assets from Customers’

Improving Disclosures about Financial
Intruments?

FERMI REETEEMBREEL

(%)

AN SR AR AR A B R MR B i R AR

BRTR] RIS RT 2R -

BEMBHREER
(B1E7T)

BB R ERFE1R
(RB1ERT)

BB EHERF235%
(R1ERT)

B G ERF 275
(B1ERT)

BB GETEREI2R
157 (&4E35T)

BE @ ERIZE 3957
(&14E3T)

BB TSR 2R
FIRERBBSET
AR FE 275k
(&4E3T)

BB HRE 2R
F25% (KYE7T)

BB TSR R
FE35% (55T

B5 (BEBRHERE
2EZEg)
—Z2BFHR
BB &R
F395% (&155T)

&5 (EBRHERE
2EXEg)

— 2EE135R

H57% (BRI ERE
ZEZee)

— 2EBE155

B5 (BEBRFERE
2EZEeE
— 2EE165R

H57% (BRI SRS
ZREZEg
— 2EBE17H

E5 (BEBRMERE
REZET)

— ZEFH18%

B 2R
E75% (KEET)

7l

7l

7l

7l

EHEE N

B E BT 5
g

2 B BHE?

R A2

A RBV M BRE

TRESMIAR
AR A B (T2

SEMEER

RHBAT - #F
251 5 A o
DNERIEE A

BB R

£54 06

BRARITET A

B P B HET 8

FS 32 32 SR hp k2

EHBINETRE

HERe

RHEA ADIKIERE
BES

BEPEBARE

TRITAZRENRE?



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZE —ZTEN\F+_HA=1+—HILFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3. FEAH:I REEITIEFEMEBREEAR

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont’d)

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009
except the amendments to HKFRS 5, effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009
= Effective for annual periods ending on or after 30 June 2009
J Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008
9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 October 2008

g Effective for transfer on or after 1 July 2009

The application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the accounting
for business combination for which the acquisition date is on or
after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning
on or after 1 July 2009. HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the
accounting treatment for changes in a parent’s ownership interest
in a subsidiary. The management is assessing the impact on the
results and the financial position of the Group upon application of
the above new standards, amendments or interpretations.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis and in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by The Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Basis of consolidation (Cont’d)

The results of subsidiaries acquired (except for those which are
regarded as continuing entities which are accounted for as a
combination of entities under common control) or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated income statement
from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date
of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries
are presented separately from the Group’s equity therein. Minority
interests in the net assets consist of the amount of those interests
at the date of the original business combination and the minority’s
share of changes in equity since the date of the combination.
Losses applicable to the minority in excess of the minority’s
interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the
interests of the Group except to the extent that the minority has
a binding obligation and is able to make an additional investment
to cover the losses.

Business combinations

Business combinations not under common control

The acquisition of businesses not involving entities under common
control is accounted for using the purchase method. The cost
of the acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair
values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities
incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any costs
directly attributable to the business combination. The acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the
conditions for recognition under HKFRS 3 Business Combinations
are recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Business combinations (Cont’d)

Business combinations not under common control (Cont’d)
Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and
initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the
business combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
recognised. If, after reassessment, the Group’s interest in the
net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the business combination,
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is initially
measured at the minority’s proportion of the net fair value of the
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.

Merger accounting for business combination involving entities
under common control

In applying merger accounting, financial statements items of the
combining entities or businesses are presented as if they had
been combined from the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are
consolidated using the existing book values from the controlling
parties’ perspective. No amount is recognised in respect of

4.
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extent of the continuation of the controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated income statement includes the results of each mEREREEERFEI AHEE%ZE
of the combining entities or businesses from the earliest date EHERBERAIARZHEERE (AREE
presented or since the date when the combining entities or BE) (TRERZEHEHOBEH) SE6HE
businesses first came under the common control, where this is BERIZEA

a shorter period, regardless of the date of the common control
combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Business combinations (Cont’d)

Merger accounting for business combination involving entities
under common control (Cont’d)

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial information
are presented as if the entities or businesses had been combined
at the previous balance sheet date or when they first came under
common control, whichever is shorter.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1 January 2005
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of net assets and operations of
another entity for which the agreement date is before 1 January
2005 represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the relevant acquiree at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill will be tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the cash generating unit to
which the goodwill relates may be impaired.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after 1 January 2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business for which the
agreement date is on or after 1 January 2005 represents the
excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in
the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the relevant business at the date of acquisition. Such
goodwill is carried at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
presented separately in the consolidated balance sheet.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 4. EEFBUK (8)

Goodwill (Cont’d) e (&)

Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after 1 January 2005 R-ZEZERF A —HBZBRBBEENE
(Cont’d) £ (&)

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an
acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating
units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, and whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year,
the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that financial year. When
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis
of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. An impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in the consolidated income
statement and is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount
of goodwill capitalised is included in the determination of the
amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods are
delivered and title has passed.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis,
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes other than construction in progress, are
stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, over
their estimated useful lives and after taking into account their
estimated residual values, using the straight-line method.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment
in the course of construction for production or for own use
purposes. Construction in progress is carried at cost less any
recognised impairment loss. Construction in progress is classified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of
these assets, on the same basis as other property, plant and
equipment, commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the item) is included in the consolidated income statement in the
year in which the item is derecognised.

Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid lease payments are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses. The costs of prepaid lease payments are amortised on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the relevant lease terms and
the operation period of the entity which incurred such payment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Technical know-how
Technical know-how comprises the acquired rights to use certain
technologies for the manufacture of wafer products.

Costs incurred in the acquisition of technical know-how are
capitalised and carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is provided
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of ten to
twelve years.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are tested for impairment
when there is an indication that an asset may be impaired (see the
accounting policies in respect of impairment losses for tangible
and intangible assets below).

Gain or loss arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in the consolidated
income statement when the asset is derecognised.

Research and development expenditure

Research and development expenditure is recognised as
an expense in the period in which it is incurred, except for
development costs incurred on a clearly-defined project, which
are anticipated to be recovered through future commercial
activity, such costs are recognised as intangible assets. The
resultant asset is amortised on a straight-line basis over its useful
life, and carried at cost less subsequent accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when
the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria. Where
no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible
asset is reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible
assets acquired separately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attached and the grants will be received. Government grants
are recognised as income over the periods necessary to match
them with the related costs. Grants related to depreciable assets
are presented as liability and are released to income over the
useful lives of the assets. Grants related to expense items are
recognised in the same period as those expenses are charged in
the consolidated income statement and are reported separately
as ‘other income’.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are
charged as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
income statement because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Taxation (Cont’d)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the
balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is
realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit and loss
except when it relates to items charged or credited directly
to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in
equity.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.
The costs of finished goods and work in progress comprise raw
materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable selling expenses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated balance sheet when a group entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into one of the four categories,
namely financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables, available-for-sale financial assets and held-
to-maturity investments. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
The Group’s financial assets comprise of loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial assets, the accounting policies
adopted in respect of which are set out below.

Effective Interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including
all fees on points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including debtors, amounts
due from fellow subsidiaries, restricted bank deposits and bank
balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses
(see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZE —ZTEN\F+_HA=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 4. EESTER (])
Financial instruments (Cont’d) £RITHE ()
Available-for-sale financial assets HHEESMEE

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables, or held-to-maturity
investments. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, available-for-sale equity investments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured, they are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses at each balance sheet date
(see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at each
balance sheet date. Financial assets are impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
impacted.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

e  default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

e when it becomes probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence
that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of debtors where the carrying amount is reduced through the use
of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade
debtor is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit and loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZE —ZTEN\F+_HA=1+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 4. SR (8)

Financial instruments (Cont’d) £RITH (8)

Financial liabilities and equity cHEERER

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group SEERETHNEREERE IEJ%ETB?

entity are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the group after deducting all of its
liabilities.

Financial liabilities, including creditors, borrowings, amounts due
to minority shareholders, and long-term payables, are measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method subsequent
to initial recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period. Interest expense is recognised on

an effective interest basis.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issued costs.

Considerations paid to repurchase the Company’s own equity
instruments are deducted from equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of
a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract issued by the
Group and not designated as at fair value through profit or loss
is recognised initially at its fair value less transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the issue of the financial guarantee
contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures
the financial guarantee contact at the higher of: (i) the amount
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and (i) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with HKAS 18 Revenue.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition
of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised directly in equity
is recognised in profit or loss. If the Group retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and recognise
a collateralised borrowing for proceeds received.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid or payable is recognised
in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
as a result of a past event, and it is probable that the Group will
be required to settle that obligation. Provisions are measured
at directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to settle
the obligation at the balance sheet date, and are discounted to
present value where the effect is material.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Where the Group is the lessor, rental income from operating
leases is recognised in the consolidated income statement on a
straight-line basis over the relevant lease term.

Where the Group is the lessee, rental expense under operating
leases is charged to the consolidated income statement on a
straight-line basis over the relevant lease term. Benefits received
and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease
are recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease
term on a straight-line basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
each balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance
sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Foreign currencies (Cont’d)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rates of exchange prevailing
at the balance sheet date, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised as a separate
component of equity (the translation reserve). Such exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
the foreign operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition prior to 1 January 2005 is treated as
non-monetary foreign currency items of the acquirer and reported
using the historical exchange rate prevailing at the date of
acquisition.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees after 7 November 2002
and vested on or after 1 January 2005

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the
fair value of the options granted at the grant date is expensed on
a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve).

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest.
The impact of the revision of the estimates during the vesting
period, if any, is recognised in profit or loss, with a corresponding
adjustment to share options reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (Cont’d)
Share options granted to employees after 7 November 2002
and vested on or after 1 January 2005 (Cont’d)

At the time when the options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will continue to
be held in share options reserve.

Share options granted to employees after 7 November 2002
and vested before 1 January 2005

The financial impact of options granted is not recorded in the
consolidated financial statements until such time as the options
are exercised, and no charge is recognised in the consolidated
income statement in respect of the value of options granted.
Upon the exercise of the options, the resulting shares issued
are recorded as additional share capital at the nominal value of
the shares, and the excess of the exercise price per share over
the nominal value of the shares is recorded as share premium.
Options which lapsed or are cancelled prior to their exercise date
are deleted from the register of outstanding options.

Impairment losses of tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of
goodwill above)

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An

impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Impairment losses of tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of
goodwill above) (Cont’d)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future in preparing accounting estimates. The resulting accounting
estimates may not be equal to the actual results. The estimates
and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both the current and future periods. The key
estimates and assumptions that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.
Estimation of useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

Management estimates the useful lives of property, plant and
equipment. The estimated useful lives are based on the expected
lifespan of those property, plant and equipment. The useful lives
of property, plant and equipment could change significantly as a
result of technical obsolescence. When the actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment due to the change of commercial
and technological environment are different from their estimated
useful lives, such difference will impact the deprecation charges
and the amounts of assets written down for future periods.
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5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 5. {&31ABABAEEMEERE (88)

(Cont’d)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment
The Group assesses annually whether property, plant and
equipment have any indication of impairment, in accordance
with the relevant accounting policies. The recoverable amounts
of property, plant and equipment have been determined based
on value in use calculations. These calculations and valuations
require the use of judgment and estimates on future operating
cash flows and discount rates adopted. Where the actual cash
flows is different from the original estimate, a material change in
the amount of impairment may arise.

Allowance for doubtful debts

The Group makes allowance for doubtful debts of HK$10,851,000
in 2008 (2007: HK$4,840,000) based on an assessment of the
recoverability of debtors. Allowances are made on trade debtors
whenever there is any objective evidence that the balances may
not be collectible. The Group makes judgment in assessing the
collectability based on observable data including creditworthiness
and payment history of the customers (for details please refer
to Note 23). When objective evidence for allowance exists, the
amount of allowance is the difference between the carrying
amounts of the debts and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. Where the
expectation on the recoverability of the debts is different from the
original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying amounts
of debtors and doubtful debt expenses in the periods in which
such estimate has been changed.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 5.

(Cont’d)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill
has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value. Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss
may arise. As at 31 December 2008, the carrying amount of
goodwill is HK$21,024,000 (2007: HK$21,024,000). Details of the
recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in Note 20.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that
the Group will be required to settle that obligation. Provisions
are measured at the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date, and
are discounted to present value where the effect is material.
As at 31 December 2008, the carrying amount of provisions is
HK$39,303,000 (2007: HK$42,183,000). Details of the estimation
of the provisions are disclosed in Note 27.

Allowance for inventories

The Group makes allowance for inventories based on an
assessment of the net realisable value of inventories. Allowances
are applied to inventories where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the net realisable value is lower than
the cost of inventories. The identification of obsolete inventories
requires the use of judgment and estimates on the conditions
and usefulness of the inventories. As at 31 December 2008,
the carrying amount of inventories is HK$812,721,000 (2007:
HK$769,902,000)

T FEARE R ERRIE (&)

[} AR E
ErHERORETHEESENENER S
EEBEMHFEREBEED M - sTEEAE
B AEBFGHIRSEEBNBRMASG
WARRBESRERGBEURE - UFEFER
B MERRRAESRELNIELD - BIATgE
HIREBRXRESE RS N\F+=_A=
+—H - AEEHENREEA21,024,000
BT (Z T T L F 21,024,000 70) ° &t
o e & FEH BRI 2055 -

Bis
WASERRRALEHAERT  B4X%
EERI e ABITR I - BIAEREE - &
HRESNEERYHBETREEAMERY
R EMEE - WA MBS A - RIBRE
BE R-TENF+_A=+—8 K&
& {5 1) AR 1 {8 239,303,000/ L (=T F
+ 4 : 42,183,000/ 70) ° [HET EE RS
M EE27 4 EE o

HFEEE
AEERBEFEAIZRFENGIELTFE
B MEREGREREBE R ERF
BERFERAE - AIGHEFEEDEE - &K
EFENBEEEREFERRRARELH
B R At e RZTESENFE+ZA=+—8 -
AEETFERERAEA812,721,000/8 T
— T4 1 769,902,000/ 7T) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZE—ZEENF+_-_F=1+—HILEE

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 5. {&31ABABAEEMEERE (88)

(Cont’d)

Income taxes

As at 31 December 2008, a deferred tax asset of HK$18,589,000
(2007: HK$10,892,000) has been recognised in the Group's
balance sheet. The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly
depends on whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In cases where the
actual future profits generated are less than expected, a material
reversal of deferred tax assets may arise, which would be
recognised in the consolidated income statement for the period
in which such a reversal takes place.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its funding to maintain a balance between
continuity of cash flows from operating activities and the flexibility
through the use of bank borrowings. The Group also monitors the
current and expected liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants regularly to ensure that sufficient working
capital and adequate committed lines of funding are maintained
to meet its liquidity requirements.

The funding structure of the Group consists of net debts, which
include borrowings, bank balances and equity attributable to
equity holders of the Company, comprising issued capital,
retained profits and other reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure on
a regular basis. As part of this review, management considers
the cost of capital and the associated risk, and take appropriate
actions to adjust the Group’s capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of
new debts or the extinguishment of existing debts.
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(@) Categories of financial instruments

7. &MTIHR
(a) £RITHER

130

(b)

2008 2007
—EENF —EELHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
(restated)
(&%)
Financial assets TREE
Loans and receivables (including ERRBEUERER (BRERE R
cash and cash equivalents) REFEY) 1,627,519 1,740,660
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 741,698 570
Financial liabilities SRaE
At amortised cost DA 8RB AN 5T 3,789,042 3,337,388
Financial guarantee contract TRERE L 10,790 -

Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group’s major financial instruments include debtors,
available-for-sale investments, bank balances and cash,
creditors, borrowings and long-term payables. Details of
these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and
other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
Group manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Market risk

(i

Foreign currency risk

The Group conducts certain sales, purchases and funding
transactions in foreign currencies, i.e. United States dollar,
Hong Kong dollar or Renminbi, hence is exposed to foreign
currency risk. The Group manages its foreign currency risk
by closely monitoring the movements of foreign currency
exchange rates. The Group currently has not entered into
any foreign currency forward contracts to hedge against
foreign currency risk. Management will consider hedging
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

(b) BAFSEIREEEERBIR
AEENTIZSRT ABREREERNR
AHHERE RITEERES - BN
R BERRMEMNR ZEERT
AMFBHNEZENME - BzEe
BTARBENRRESED SRR (SN
R~ FXRRER&REBESRRR)
BREEREBERR - MAREZSE
RBRHBRENTX - AEEEEME
Rz ERR - BRI B RRIUE

B
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i) HERR
AEEUNE (DET BTRAR
%) ETETFEERMERS  HAS
SNERIR o A EEIE B BN ERE
SRR ERANERR - AEERNY
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Market risk (Cont’d)

(i) Foreign currency risk (Cont’d)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets and
monetary liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, i.e.
currency other than the functional currency of the respective
group entities which are mainly debtors, creditors, bank
balances and bank borrowings, at the reporting dates are

RTIA (&)
misEM ()

U]

SNER B (8)

AT RAREERSHmE B IAINE (A%
SEERZIEEENINER) JIE
MEBEERERAE (EERBKE
R EARRR - RITHEF RIRTTER)
MAREE -

as follows:

2008 2007
—EENE T LF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHIT
(restated)
(&%)

Assets EE
United States dollar =T 150,222 60,693
Hong Kong dollar BT 37,145 39,870
Renminbi AR 131,111 191,765
318,478 292,328

Liabilities =K
United States dollar =TT 33,212 93,713
Hong Kong dollar BT 702,070 5
Renminbi ARHE 517,558 248,805
1,252,840 342,523
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132

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
Market risk (Cont’d)

(i

Foreign currency risk (Cont’d)

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a
5% increase in the functional currencies of the Group
entities, mainly Renminbi (“RMB”) and United States dollar,
against relevant foreign currencies. 5% is the sensitivity
rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to
key management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
currency rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the year end for 5% change
in foreign currency rates. A negative number for the year
ended 31 December 2008 below indicates an increase in
loss for that year and a positive figure for the year ended 31
December 2007 indicates an increase in profit for the year
ended 31 December 2007 when the functional currencies
strengthen against the relevant foreign currencies. For a 5%
weakening of the functional currencies against the relevant
currency, there would be an equal but opposite impact on
the result for the year.

ENFT_A=1T—HLFE

7.

RTAH (&)
miEEE (8)

(i)

SMER PR (&)

SMNE GEZE ST
TRFAVNAEBEARYE (AR
HREBINE T EFA KT KE%H G =%
E o b5%ABREER - HARABME
EEBABRSINERRBRILEREERE
HHNEETER T8 tljiﬁﬂﬁ/\ﬁ £ 5 ) AT
fly o BURE D ITIEBIE M R IR AN
ﬁﬁﬁﬂfﬁﬁﬂfﬁﬁé@ﬂﬁéi%@%%ﬁ@lﬁ
KREAREEN - i AR K AERISN
el H'J%ziijj\iwL A=+
—BHLEFENABERTETNEIEE
e mBEE—ZT+&+=-_A=+—8
IEFERMIEBERRE TR EFIEM -
fisg AR BE S HARE NS T #K5% - Bl & ¥
FE (BE) sHEERSERARNEY
@,

2008 2007
—2EN\F “ETLRF
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FET FHIT
(restated)
(&%)
United States dollar ey
Result for the year FREEE (3,954) 1,504
Hong Kong dollar BT
Result for the year FEES (1,339) (1,471)
Renminbi ARH
Result for the year FEEE 17,075 2,232
The directors of the Company are of the opinion that ARABEERBETLIEE S TEBHRN

the Group’s sensitivity to the change in United States
dollars against Hong Kong dollars is low as Hong Kong
dollar is pegged to United States dollar. As a result, the
above sensitivity table does not include the impact of such
change.

AEBHRERE EAAETREXT
B o FEE - A ESRERRLREIE
HEBHTE -
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Market risk (Cont’d)

(i)

(ii)

Foreign currency risk (Cont’d)

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as
the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the year.

Interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the cash flows of
the financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Group’s interest rate risk relates
primarily to the Group’s floating rate borrowings. It is the
Group’s policy to maintain its borrowings at floating interest
rate so as to minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for both derivatives and non-
derivative instruments. The analysis is prepared assuming
the financial instruments outstanding at the balance sheet
date were outstanding for the whole year. A 200 basis point
(2007: 200 basis points) increase or decrease is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

At the balance sheet dates, assuming the bank borrowings
outstanding at the balance sheet dates had been outstanding
for the whole year, if interest rates had increased by 200
basis points (2007: 200 basis points) and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s loss for the year ended
31 December 2008 would increase by approximately
HK$18,676,000 and the Group’s profit would decrease
by approximately HK$8,293,000 for the year ended 31
December 2007. If interest rates had decreased by 200
basis points, there would be an equal but opposite impact
on the (loss) profit for the year.

NFE+ZA=+—HI=FE

RTA (&)

miSEME (48

(i) 57I‘EHF% (&)
BEER A - FHE bR E R R AR
’iiﬁ’ﬂﬂ % AU BURE DT T EER KR
& A r)SNE R

(ii) F=Ep
ReRENERRTIBHRTISHERE
MER e TARSRERDHER -
AEEWHNERREED RASEERZ

BEE - AEENBE DAEREEER
F BRI DURME A T EFI X @ o

Tl E G SE 77T
A TBRRE D IRBEOTE T A RIELT
ilﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬁ’]ﬂ?ﬂ BMET - mEZ
DM HRENEE Elr‘jkam ME R T
ARNEEFEDEBE - AEABERE
BABRSHXER Hﬂxﬁﬁzoofl%%
T F : 200fER) W EART
B HRREEEHMERAIGEHRNA
BB o

REEH - BENREE B HARFERSE
11fe *Eiim HAKRBE WX
LEF200MAEE (ZZZ L4 : 200AFE
2 BEFMEEMEBEESARFTE  BIAE
BEEEZ-_TT \F+-A=+—HILF
E R ETE 12 I14918,676,0007% 7T KM &L
E_EEAF+_A=+—HIEFEEN
% AR > #98,293,0007 7T © i Kl R T
FRo00ME £ % - Al ¥ FE (B1B) &
FMEEESEERNFE -
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7.

134

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Market risk (Cont’d)

(ii) Interest rate risk (Cont’d)
The Group’s exposure to cash flow interest rate risk is
mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of LIBOR, HIBOR
and People’s Bank of China lending rate arising from
the Group’s United States dollar, Hong Kong dollar and
Renminbi denominated borrowings. In the management’s
opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the
inherent cash flow interest rate risk as the year end exposure
does not reflect the exposure for the whole year as a result
of the repayment of a substantial amount of the Group’s
borrowings during the year.

(iif) Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in unlisted equity securities. The Group’s equity
price risk is mainly concentrated on equity instruments
operating in wafer fabrications. The investment is carried
at cost less any impairment loss since the directors of the
Company are of opinion that the fair value of the investment
cannot be determined reliably, accordingly, no sensitivity
analysis is presented.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations in relation to
each class of recognised financial assets is the carrying amount
of those assets as stated in the consolidated balance sheet and
the amount of unrecognised portion of liabilities in relation to
financial guarantees issued by the Group disclosed in Notes 30
and 34. In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group has policies
in place for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group carries out
searches on the creditability of the new customer and assesses
the potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits
by customer. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed once
a year.

7.
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mizEE (8)

(i) FI=EE (F)
AEEHGENReRENERREES
FRIEEASEET BTRARKE
ENmBRTRZERE - BBRITEZE
FERPEBITEEN XK - EEE
RE BRAEBERFAREANERS
B EF R E R BRI R 2
R  BUtBBRES T TR KRES
RS REFERER o

(iii) EHAERKEE
AREEFBENIFLTRAEFESFNRE
mERES ERER - AREAERE
REREZRERE TRESERTH
B TH - HRARREFRB/ZEE
R EEEFEMEE - HZRET
BB RN E RS - Bkt - 3
E25BRBMEDN -

S EbE

MR PURREBTRERASHEEERS
BMEEMNEML  AARKENEERRS ALK
REERBERMIINZEEEREEREH
AEERBFELHBRERORAERAESE
(R KT ES0KB4FTHEE) RIR - RREEE
Rk AEBEEREEEERSE  HKREE
BRHAMEERFAOEE - AERERES
HERBMETNEER -

REBEMH RN - ARERIES N1
BER(TRE  FEEEEPHEEES
ERERPHEERE - BT RFHEER
FEERH K -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZE—ZEENF+_-_F=1+—HILEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Credit risk (Cont’d)

In addition, the Group reviews the recoverability of each individual
trade debt on a regular basis to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
Group considers that the credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group regularly reviews the status of financial institutions
with whom we place our bank deposits so as to monitor the
credit risk.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with
exposure spread over a number of counterparties. No single
debtor outstanding at the balance sheet dates exceeds 5% of
the total balance of trade debtors.

However, the Group is exposed to significant concentration
of credit risk by geographical location as 79% (2007: 77%) of
debtors are mainly in PRC within the high-technology industry.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and
ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as one of significant
sources of liquidity. As at 31 December 2008, the Group has
available unutilised bank loan facilities of HK$1,086,580,000
(2007: HK$1,178,838,000). Details of which are set out in Note
26.

R TH (&)

fSEmERE (8)
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RERRABEERIE%
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EEERBDESRRITE AEEERAH#
REEERSBERNRE RREFEY
AR AREE R L ERTES RREIR SR
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136

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 7. &@IA (8)
Liquidity risk (Cont’d) mENE &R (8)
The following table details the Group’s contractual maturity for TRAMASIAEEFTESREBENEL
its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has been drawn FHR - TRIBEASENEEESRS
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities ENRFEHHANARTEREREMMARE - T
in accordance with the earliest date on which the Group can be RERFNEERAECHIRERE -
required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal
cash flows.
Total
undiscounted
0-180 181-365 Over cashflows Carrying
days days 1-2 years 2-3 years Jyears  KiTERS amounts
01808  1812365A 1228 2E3E EDYS b=t BEE
HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#En T#n T#n T#n T#n T#n T#n
Asat 31 December 2008 ~ R=EEN\E+ZA=t-H
Non-interest bearing %8
Trade creditors EfE 585 910,696 - - - - 910,696 910,696
Other payables HthERER 380,947 - - - - 380,047 380,047
Long-term payables RBEMES 6,165 6,165 11,526 11,526 50,659 86,041 67,918
Variable nterest rate instruments [F&I7I= T E
Bank borrowings KRR 342,924 39,865 455,780 338,667 1,159,767 2,337,003 2,270,591
Fixed interest rate instruments ~ EEFIZI &
Bank borrawings Rfeat 88,639 75,735 - - - 164,374 158,890
1,729.374 121,765 467,306 30,193 1210426 3879061 3,789,042
As at 31 December 2007 R-ZZ+E+-A=1-H
(restated) (5)
Non-interest bearing %8
Trade creditors ERESER 987,125 - - - - 987,125 987,125
Other payables Hft AR 500,444 - - - - 500,444 500,444
Long-term payables RAEMER 4,701 4,701 9,055 9,055 63,546 92,858 71817
Variable interest rate instruments ZE17|= LA
Bank borrowings R 398,939 153,131 53,101 311,507 874,782 1,791,460 1,088,748
Fixed interest rate instruments ~ EEFZTE
Bank borrowings R 107,757 13,39 4437 76,190 - 201,779 189,254
1,998,966 171,227 67,493 397,662 938,328 3,573,666 3,337,388
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

At 31 December 2008, it was not probable the counterparty
to the financial guarantee contract (Note 30) will claim under
the contract. Consequently, the carrying amount of financial
guarantee contract of HK$10,790,000 has not been presented
above.

Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis.

The fair value of the financial guarantee is determined using
valuation model where the main assumptions are the probability
of default by the specified counterparty extrapolated from market-
based credit information and the amount of loss, given the
default.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost and
financial guarantees in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

ERMTH (&)

mENE RS (48)
RZZEZENF+=_A=+—H BBER
&4 (M5FE80) IR FGHFTERIBEZE L
REBR At - BB EREANERE
10,790,000 LI R EX 25 o

AFE
BH R A BB S REERSRA BN
AFEBBERTRRASRESTOLRE
BRABET -

TRERNAFERAGEEAEE  mE
E2RIABREBEMGEEEREHNFEH T
HEAMAREEREERBER THERH
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EEZRR SAMBHmRPREHEKAET
ENERMEERERABMYBERNKE
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138

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Turnover represents revenue arising on sales of goods of
HK$2,518,973,000 (2007: HK$2,572,362,000) and rendering
of service of HK$599,719,000 (2007: HK$419,263,000) for the
year.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” in
advance of its effective date, with effect from 1 January 2008.
HKFRS 8 requires operating segments to be identified on the
basis of internal reports about components of the Group that
are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker
(the Executive Committee) in order to allocate resources to
the segment and to assess its performance. In contrast, the
predecessor standard (HKAS 14, Segment Reporting) required an
entity to identify two sets of segments (business and geographical)
using a risks and rewards approach, with the entity’s “system of
internal financial reporting to key management personnel” serving
only as the starting point for the identification of such segments.
As a result, following the adoption of HKFRS 8, the identification
of the Group’s reportable segments has changed.

In prior year, no business segment information was presented
as the Group was engaged solely in the semiconductor business
under the requirements of HKAS 14. However, segment
information is presented in accordance with information reported
to the Group’s chief operating decision maker for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of performance is specifically
focused on the category of nature of different types of goods or
service with adoption of HKFRS 8 in this year.

The Group determines its operating segments based on resources
allocation with reference of products or services, for the purpose
of reporting to the chief operating decision maker.

NF+ZRA=+—RIFE

EEBEDERTABEEERH KA
2,518,973,000% (= T T + F:
2,572,362,000% 7t) & £ # R % 8 WK
AB99,719,000% Tt (= T T £ F:
419,263,000/ 7T ) °
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BB RRBFE LA RRMNBREE
TREFINAB2RIERD HEEDFHE
%ok HBENER (BESERE
145% - DEbRE) RIZREEAE R AL
BHRERRNAEIEEEABEZH  KAR
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WwERDE)  ERDHZEDEHER - F
It RERMEF BT B HRE LR ESHRER - &
KBRS D BB IR EDLEE 2 B -
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8. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 8. #X#ERSEZH (&)

The Group’s reportable segments under HKFRS 8 are therefore $’§ EREE BT BEHRSERESEE A
as follows: WEDEHINAT -

e  Open Foundry e mENRT

e Integrated Circuits (“IC”) Design o ENER ([EKEK]) &5

e |C Testing and Packaging o  SRERAIG REE

e Discrete Devices e HNgH

e Supporting Function o TR

REFFIRHE TR ER RS - FtE

The segments are managed separately as each division offers N
S 0RO RIEBER -

B

different products and services.

The activities of these divisions are as follows: ZEIFIREELT

Open Foundry — open foundry for manufacturing of wafers with ma B T — /& a B 8LER MR TR H T 1
technical platforms, such as CMOS, BiCMOS, DMOS, BCD and & ;CMOS, BiCMOS, DMOS, BCDX &
Bipolar W

IC Design — design and development of semiconductor IC SRR B Bt R ERENER
products Efh

IC Testing and Packaging — provision of IC assembly and testing EXRBRARARTE — RHEKNEEITER
foundry services R IAH AR

Discrete Devices — manufacture of discrete device wafers and DA — 2En LR RE KM (EA
finished products for energy saving lightings, home appliances, R ERA - KA ?Eﬁg Tzl R (A
industrial control devices and personal computers AT EHEES)

Supporting Function — provision of utilities and other supporting SRR — RHEKE RE AR RS
services

Information regarding these segments is reported below. EHEZESENEREINNT - LFE2W
Comparative amounts reported for the prior year have been LR EUEE IR — SR EET -

restated on a consistent basis.
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8. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)
Year ended 31December 2008

140

8. EXFRSEEAH (HK)
BEE-_ZTN\HF+-A=1t-HLFE

IC Testing &
Open Packaging Discrete  Supporting
Foundry IC Design A EHHH Devices Function Total
RERI  SRERR: Rit# PUBE XERYE CHI
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TET THT TR THR FHT TET
Turnover from external customers S F 2% 956,580 692,081 599,719 808,067 62,245 3,118,692
Intersegment turnover PHRERE 208,988 15,026 64,867 83,235 359,633 731,749
Segment turnover PHEEE 1,165,568 707,107 664,586 891,302 421,878 3,850,441
Interest income FIS WA 3,814 182 174 156 26,094 30,420
Finance costs REKA 26,135 6,058 7,384 8,131 7,156 54,864
Depreciation and amortisation 374 [ & 247,114 14,166 73,098 80,347 58,664 473,389
Impairment of assets BEHNE 255,684 - - - - 255,684
Reportable segment (loss) profit  AIRE4 48 (58 &7l (367,007) (15,037) (36,107) 23,708 38,416 (356,027)
Reportable segment assets RESREE 2,902,448 515,064 1,018,720 1,160,790 1,301,047 6,898,069
Reportable segment liabilities ~ AI3REDEEE 671,526 183,659 508,195 461,313 194,115 2,018,808
Additions to property, plant RENE  BERRER
and equipment and prepaid iElpLika
lease payments 345,437 42,863 223,856 123,864 31,344 767,364
Write off of inventories FERA 55,455 24,298 5,951 12,506 188 98,398
Addition to deposit for RNEWENE BER
acquisition of property, B{-lia
plant and equipment 3,488 - 859 - 16,773 21,120
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8. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’'d) 8. #X#ERSESZH (&)

Year ended 31 December 2007 HE ZT+E+_A=+—HIEE
|C Testing &
Open Packaging Discrete Supporting
Foundry ICDesign  EMERMH Devices Function Total
SERT  EREBEH RiE AuUBK  IERE At

HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THT T TR TR T

Turnover from external customers HM& P& %% 1,034,227 762,526 419,263 717,862 57,747 2,991,625
Intersegment turnover PEEEES 249,848 17,006 84,884 144,496 334,070 830,304
Segment turnover PHEER 1,284,075 779,532 504,147 862,358 391,817 3,821,929
Interest income FEKA 1,704 366 192 285 358 2,905
Finance costs BERAK 26,475 263 416 4,008 1,957 33,119
Depreciation and amortisation 78 Rk 202,509 11,708 41,716 56,901 46,734 359,568
Impairment of assets BERNE 2,844 - - - = 2844
Reportable segment profit RESERT 114,172 29,249 2,342 96,825 86,100 328,688
Reportable segment assets HRENEEE 2,800,362 519,267 833,694 1,155,633 953,272 6,262,228
Reportable segment liabilities ~ AHEHEEE 893,922 169,207 495,813 486,594 217,773 2,263,309

Additions to property, plant REDE  BERZER
and equipment and prepaid EiHe

lease payments 496,982 10,413 317,335 169,798 77,056 1,071,584
Write off of inventories FEMR 6,333 15,493 - 8,712 - 30,538
Addition to deposit for AERENE  BER

acquisition of property, BT e

plant and equipment 8,604 3,887 4,520 - - 17,011
Write back of provision BERD - - - - 25,858 25,858
Gain on disposal of HEMHEERE

available-for-sale investments K& - - - - 3,586 3,586
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8. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

142

(@) The accounting policies of the reportable segments are

the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in
Note 4. Performance is measured based on segment (l0ss)
profit before tax that is used by the Executive Committee
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance. Taxation is not allocated to reportable
segments.

The turnover, profit or loss, assets and liabilities of the Group
are allocated based on the operations of the segments.

Reportable segments profit is profit before taxation, excluding
gain on disposal of subsidiaries, unallocated corporate
finance costs from borrowings raised by headquarters
and other corporate expenses (mainly including staff costs
of general management and other general administrative
expenses).

Reportable segment assets exclude tax recoverable, deferred
tax assets, unallocated bank balances and cash held by
headquarters and unallocated corporate assets (mainly
including prepayments and deposits of headquarters).

Reportable segment liabilities exclude taxation, deferred
tax liabilities, financial guarantee contract, unallocated
bank borrowings raised by headquarters and unallocated
corporate liabilities (mainly including accrued charges of
headquarters).

8. EXHWERISEEH (B)

(a) RS MM S 5 BB B ART L A

AEBESFHRE B - KRIBEHT
ZEENHEERN D BRIRAEA
MR AT DR (B18) BT E - HIA
YADEEAHREDRER -

REENERE  HAIER  BER
BEDRESBRENK -

AIRE DS BERTANSE S - TEE
HEMB AR W - AEAEERNKR
DECEBMERAREMPEMS (X
EERE-REENE TRAREM—K
TR -

AHREDREETERERATKRERIE &
FERIBEE - AR AR D ECIRITAERR
EREPRRDIEEREE (EEREAE
MEAMNKBERRE) -

AHmEDRAETEERIE - BENIR
BE MBERALD  EHAERSE
RITERRARDECEEE (E2RHE
AT ER)
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8. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 8. #X#ERSEZH (&)

(b) Reconciliation of the reportable segment turnover, (b) TTRENFEEEE 1855 EERAE
profit or loss, assets and liabilities B ¥ AR
Reportable segment turnover, profit or loss, assets and AMESFEHTE Bm EERBE
liabilities are reconciled to total assets and total liabilities of EASERNREERBEEBENHERN
the Group as follows: s 8
Turnover —E 2] 2008 2007
—EENF —TTLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET F&TT
Reportable segment turnover Al RS D RS X 3,850,441 3,821,929
Elimination of intersegment turnover 4> EFf& 44 S 2B 5% (731,749) (830,304)
Turnover per consolidated income RERE =R 258
statement EEE 3,118,692 2,991,625
Inter-segment sales are charged at cost plus a percentage D ERR S E IR AN I — FE b R 2 M E
profit mark-up. TE °
Profit or loss Ba 2008 2007
—EENF —2ELHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T
Reportable segment (loss) profit AREDE (B1R) B F (356,027) 328,688
Unallocated amounts: RAOBLEHE -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries k=SNG ey 84,972 -
Unallocated corporate finance costs &7 Bt 103 gt & A A (59,678) (32,968)
Unallocated corporate expenses ADEPEEMT (34,944) (22,966)
(Loss) profit before taxation per RERE Wz R Z25H
consolidated income statement BRELAT (B518) a4 (365,677) 272,754
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8. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 8.

(b) Reconciliation of the reportable segment turnover,

EXHERSEEH (&)

(b) THRESRELEE -8 - HERER

profit or loss, assets and liabilities (Cont’d) BYETAR (48)
Assets EE 2008 2007
—EEN\F —TTLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHTT
Reportable segment assets AmEDHEE 6,898,069 6,262,228
Unallocated assets: ROEEE :
Tax recoverable IR dEE e 9,329 4,172
Deferred tax assets FEEFHIBE E 18,589 10,892
Unallocated bank balances and cash KO RRITEALR LIRS 197,352 553,957
Unallocated corporate assets RO EXEEE 8,049 9,258
Total assets per consolidated R EEBEBEREIN
balance sheet BEE 7,131,388 6,840,507
Liabilities =N 2008 2007
—EEN\F ZTELF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&T FHTT
Reportable segment liabilities AR E DR A E 2,018,808 2,263,309
Unallocated liabilities: AOBALE
Taxation 18 5,088 10,327
Deferred tax liabilities ELETIEAE 4,718 6
Financial guarantee contract MIEEREH 10,790 -
Unallocated bank borrowings APDERITER 2,000,000 1,138,993
Unallocated corporate liabilities AOELEEE 8,166 174,378
Total liabilities per consolidated NMREEEABREYN
balance sheet BEE 4,047,570 3,587,013

144




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 & E —ZZEN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

8. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

(c)

(d)

Geographical information

The following table provide an analysis of the Group’s sales
by geographical market attributed to the group entities’
countries of domiciles (i.e. People’s Republic of China
(“Mainland China”) and Hong Kong) and attributed to all
foreign countries. All the non-current assets other than
available-for-sale investments and deferred tax assets are
located in the entity’s countries of domicile.

8.

EXHERSEEH (&)

(c) HESH
AT RREEZRMETSEINEEE
BAREBR (AP EARKME (T+E
Wi |) REE) KRB INE RS REh §H
EROME  2EERDEE (AT
ENRERBELEHRAEEERIN) HUR
ERPERR -

2008 2007

—EBENF —ETLF

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#&xT THET

Domicile countries FrEB 2,213,969 2,470,668
Foreign countries: B -

Mainland China A B K 6,140 -

Hong Kong B 273,194 158,617

Taiwan = 188,729 161,863

United States £ 311,331 104,152

Europe BN 90,378 27,306

Others HAith 34,951 69,019

904,723 520,957

3,118,692 2,991,625

Turnover is analysed on the basis of the customer’s
location.

Information about major customers

In 2008 and 2007, the revenue from the Group’s largest
customer amounted to less than 10 per cent of the Group’s
revenue.

BEBIERREPHEEITOMN -

(@) EWEEESHMAR
R-BERN\FR-FTLE  RASE
B AR P s AR B 0 TR
10% °
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9. OTHER INCOME 9. HftitA
2008 2007
—E2EN\F —TTLF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FHTT
(restated)
(&%)
Included in other income are: SFAEMKARIER A :
Interest on bank deposits RITF A E 35,641 5,081
Government grants (Note 38) BB e (MFE38) 30,481 10,520
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEME  BEMRED
and equipment Wz 1,408 8,374
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HERHEERER
investments Ug %5 - 3,586
Supporting and administrative B —FR R E AT
service income from a S RITE AR M
fellow subsidiary (Note 37) (PF7E37) 57,058 -
Tax refund on re-investment of profit AR BT B A R A E AR E Y
of PRC subsidiaries R - 9,566
Write back of provisions (Note 27) BRI (sE27) - 25,858
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. BAERLE
2008 2007
—EENF —ZETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE&T FHTT
(restated)
(&%)
Interests on: Al
Bank loans wholly repayable within ARAFERNEIEED
five years RITIEX 88,090 61,901
Long-term payables RHEIE T ER X 4,203 4,186
92,293 66,087
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

11. TAXATION 11. HiIE

2008 2007
—EENF T LF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBT F& 7T
(restated)
(&%)

Current tax BIHEARR 18
PRC H 23,417 48,520
Hong Kong &5 201 712
Overprovision in prior year A E B (3,812) (7,599)
19,806 41,633
Deferred tax (Note 29) EIEFRIE (FsE29) (2,564) (532)
17,242 41,101

On 26 June 2008 the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
the Revenue Bill 2008 which reduced corporate profit tax rate
from 17.5% to 16.5% effective from the year of assessment
2008/2009. Therefore, Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at
16.5% (2007: 17.5%) of the estimated assessable profit for the
year.

Profits tax arising in the Mainland China is calculated based on
the applicable tax rates on assessable profits.

On 16 March 2007, the PRC promulgated the Law of the PRC on
Enterprise Income Tax (the “New EIT Law”) by Order No. 63 of the
President of the PRC. On 6 December 2007, the State Council of
the PRC issued Implementation Regulation of the New EIT Law.

B/\_7 7)\35/\)% +/\E| E/%_L/"ZEL
BEEENFRABKOIER) - 8P BEH
ZET NE_TTNRBFERR - AR
FEF B EB17.5%F MK E16.5% ° E It -
BB FEE TS A FZ B (A 5 E R B a1
T&E16.6% (ZFTLF  17.5%) 515 °

P FR B K B E A ) M A5 T5 4R B ER T A1
i@ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ-l—#o

RZZEZLF=A+R B TEBREMATEE
ESHEESHPBELRAEHE (TFHAEH
A e RZBTLFF-ARA > FEER
Be BT AT IS BORBIT RG] ©
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11. TAXATION (Cont’d)

148

Under the New EIT Law and Implementation Regulation, the
Enterprise Income Tax rate of the Group’s subsidiaries in the
PRC was reduced from 33% to 25% or increased from 15% to
25% progressively from 1 January 2008 onwards. The relevant
tax rates for the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC for the year
ended 31 December 2008 range from 15% to 25% (2007: 15%
to 33%).

Certain subsidiaries obtained approval from the relevant tax
bureau and are qualified as High and New Technology Enterprise
which would be subject to a tax rate of 15% for both year.

In addition, certain subsidiaries operating in the Mainland China
were exempted from tax applicable in the Mainland China for
two years starting from the first profit making year after utilisation
of the tax losses brought forward, or year ended 31 December
2008, whichever is earlier and were granted a 50% relief for the
following three years.

11. $IE (F)

BEFMAETERBERMAE B =T NF
—A—BE  AEERFTFENMEQRAD
X¥FMEHEBREARE  BABRARE
25%BKF15%IEMNE25% - HE_FTZTNF
TZA=T—RHIEFE - AEERHE M
BARMNEBRENT15%E25% (ZFF
+4F : 15%%E33%) °

ETHBARCEABRE BIERKTS
SRR EE  BEXMFRI5%OTHEH
BB -

SO - MNP BAEEENE THEAR B
R AR IR BT 1R 1R B RS RS M FE
F-_ZEENFFT_A=+—HLFE (W&
ZBRPFE) Bt MFARR LT EAEER
FRETIR - B8 = SRR
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11. TAXATION (Cont’d) 11. BIE (&)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the (loss) profit

before taxation as follows:

FARBE AT EBERBA (B18) mMERIT -

2008 2007
—EEN\F —TTAF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FE&xT T
(restated)
(&%)
(Loss) profit before taxation BRTERT (E548) & A (365,677) 272,754
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 15% Z15% /) E AR EHATIE
(2007: 15%) (Note) (ZZZHF : 15%) (MisE) (54,852) 40,913
Tax effect of expenses not deductible e ATIE B AR A 5
for tax purpose s 2 16,553 11,648
Tax effect of income not taxable e ATIE B AR A U A B
for tax purpose %Ri‘%ﬁ/g (19,085) (6,800)
Overprovision in respect of prior year EFBEERAE (3,812) (7,599)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RACHERH B IBET IR Y
MiE & 18,820 21,997
Tax effect of other deductible temporary AEREMAHREREEN
differences not recognised s s & 59,763 2,744
Utilisation of tax losses previously &) A DA BT AR £ TERR A
not recognised IR ETE (633) (456)
Utilisation of other deductible temporary &) A 5% Bl A TSR 9 EL At AT H0RL
differences previously not recognised R ER (822) -
Effect of tax exemptions granted to PR B RBEAE & B ffT B A &)
subsidiaries operating in the FrETi IR e ) so 2
Mainland China = (7,591)
Income tax at concessionary rates BEBEHEFTENTSR (4,460) (14,687)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries 7 rr B A BE & & H KT E A 7
operating in the Mainland China HEATRRENTZE 401 167
Tax effect of withholding tax on R K A TR H AR Y
undistributed profits s 2 4,712 -
Others EAh 657 765
Tax charge for the year FEHEBELL 17,242 41,101
Note: Btz :

The rate represents the tax rate applicable to the subsidiaries established
in the Mainland China which are regarded as High and New Advanced
Technology Enterprises by the local tax bureau.

EENKEA

R IE A B R BERK S R B 3 RS B AT A = T R Al
RIERARBE -
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12. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

150

On 19 March 2008, the Company and its indirectly wholly
owned subsidiary, Jolly China Investment Limited entered into
an agreement with CRH and its wholly owned subsidiary, Joyous
China Investments Limited for the formation of CSMC Asia
Limited (formerly named as Asia Champion Investment Limited,
hereinafter referred to as the “CSMC Asia”), pursuant to which,
the Company disposed of its entire interest in, and shareholder’s
loan to, Qualibest Enterprises Limited to the CSMC Asia for a
consideration of approximately US$58,444,000 (equivalent to
HK$455,779,000) which is satisfied by the issuance of shares
by the CSMC Asia to the Group, amounting to 19% equity
interest of the CSMC Asia (which is classified as available-
for-sale investments, see Note 19). The consideration was
determined based on the net liabilities of Qualibest Enterprises
Limited as at the date of disposal adjusted for the market value
(net of deferred tax) of land use right owned by a subsidiary
of Qualibest Enterprises Limited based on an independent
professional valuation at that date and the shareholder’s loan
assigned by the Group to the CSMC Asia of HK$457,772,000
(to be capitalised as capital contribution of the CSMC Asia). The
disposal was completed on 30 April 2008. The principal activity of
Qualibest Enterprises Limited and its subsidiaries are to engage
in wafer fabrication in the PRC.

The fair values of the land use right at that date has been arrived
at on the basis of a valuation carried out as of 29 February 2008
by CB Richard Ellis, an independent qualified professional valuers
not connected with the Group. The valuation was arrived at by
reference to market evidence of recent transaction prices for
similar properties.

2. HEMBAT

REZZFZENF=H+1B ' AARREME
2EMBAREEZRERRARHEEHEE
REZEWNB AR EREBR A FIKILE
HMEE (M) BRAR (R [BERES
PRARE] [ZEEEZE (ZEM)]) 5T —H
& o BEZHE  AarmEHLEE (M)
PEENBREXBRARRNE TR X
RTBREXBRAABMNBREER  REL
#$58,444,0003% 7T (18 & 7455,779,000/%
Jo) c BEAEBEE (BN mMASE T
Bt (REEE L& (M) BRAER D
19% (DA AAIHIEEIRE - RIFE19) o
ZREDBEREEBNEREEER AT
WEEFE (URERNZANBIIEEME
HEmEBEXERAAENBARESN -
HF AN T ENREEHBEELAZE) &
AEEEETEBRLE (DM ORFER
457,772,000 7T (EANbAZER 2 (&
M) HEAHE) BE - ZHENRZET
NEMA=+THZEK - B@mEXBRAT R
HWB AR EZNFEEEmEIRE -

THERERZANRAFEDREHREFEE
Bt (BAKEEBENBLIABRERM
B R=ZTENF-A -+ ABETHRH
EMER - ZEEDIE2EMS LBEUYE
MBI R B EARM R R BIRIE -
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12. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d) 12. HEMBAT (&
The net liabilities of the Qualibest Enterprises Limited and its KEENBRMEXZERARIRAKRBE AR
subsidiaries disposed of are as follows: BEFHENT
HK$’000
FEx
(unaudited)
(REERZ)
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB R 649,176
Prepaid lease payments SEUNE kA 4,682
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEWER TR  tRe RIS IR 181,372
Bank balances and cash RITEHREE S 22,711
Creditors and accrued charges BRI N EETE R (360,255)
Shareholder’s loan RERE R (457,772)
Bank borrowings RITIE (77,404)
(37,490)
The effect of the disposal is as follows: ZLERNTENAT
HK$’000
FExT
(unaudited)
(REERZ)
Net liabilities disposed of HENAEFHE (37,490)
Loan to Qualibest Enterprises Limited assigned BEMEEERARNEREET
to CSMC Asia = 2 (M) 457,772
Translation reserve realised B IR E W (66,212)
364,070
Gain on disposal & WS 84,972
Unrealised gain attributable to the 19% interest REEFFBW19%ERFTIEL
held by the Group AR W e 6,737
Total consideration, satisfied by equity interest in At AR HEHERER
shares of CSMC Asia recorded as available-for-sale = F# (25M) RO T EE R
investments e BN E 455,779
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEELEMRS AL F5
Bank balances and cash disposed of BHEMIRITEMBERS (22,711)
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13. (LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

13. i (BB1R) i

2008 2007
—EEN\F —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
(restated)
(&%)
(Loss)profit for the year has been arrived R (EE) %A 2k
at after charging (crediting): (Gt A) :
Staff costs EEKA
Directors’ emoluments (Note 14) E=We (eE14) 9,814 8,916
Other staff HiEE
— Salaries and other benefits — Fre hEMmEF 605,785 394,097
— Retirement benefit scheme — RIRAE R 8 R
contributions 56,773 52,856
Share-based payment expense &S R 1,277 6,253
Total staff costs EEKAER 673,649 462,122
Auditor’s remuneration ZE NN & 3,500 2,445
Impairment loss on property, plant Yz - BE REERESE
and equipment 5,415 2,844
Depreciation of property, plant Y - BEREETE
and equipment 465,403 355,784
Amortisation of technical know-how 5 1l R0 w5 4 4,197 3,945
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TEf L AE & B #H 3,992 3,799
Write off of inventories FEMEH
(included in other expenses) (FFAEALRS) 75,311 30,538
Allowance for doubtful debts RIRE 10,851 4,840
Write back of provisions included in AL AU A B3 (5
other income (Note 27) (Ff5E27) = (25,858)
Operating lease rentals in respect of REEMEE TR
rented premises HEHES 6,454 4,608
Loss on closure of a manufacturing 8 B — ] B 38
facility (Note) FrE£ R EE (KisE)
— Impairment loss on property, plant — W - BERERERE
and equipment [E518 217,754 -
— Impairment loss on technical know-how  — F1fi&1 5% 5 (E &8 32,515 -
- Employee severance payment expenses —EEEMEXH 16,812 -
— Compensation to landlord and supplier — — %23 &t ErgmaEE 16,302 =
— Write off of inventories — T EHMEE 23,087 =
— write off of other receivables — H b fE W IB I 8H 7,649 -
Interest income 2 U A (35,641) (5,081)
Government grants BSE £ (30,481) (10,520)
Net gain on disposal of property, plant HEME  BERKERED
and equipment g 25558 (1,408) (8,374)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale & AT S S IR B B9 E
investments = (3,586)

152




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZE —ZTEN\F+_HA=1+—HILFE

13. (LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (Cont’d) 13. £ (FBE) &H (48)

Note:

At 31 December 2008, the directors reviewed the business strategy and
the carrying value of the Group’s manufacturing assets, and determined
that a number of those assets were impaired due to the plan for relocation
of part of a production line to another area. The assets are used in the
Group’s open foundry segment. The existing production was ceased
in January 2009 and the relocation of production line commenced in
February 2009. Therefore, impairment loss of HK$111,072,000 in respect
of immovable property, plant and equipment have been recognised in
the year. Furthermore, the Group plans to modernise production and
will introduce new product lines after the relocation therefore, certain
items of property, plant and machinery, technical know-how, inventories
were identified as obsolete and impairment losses in respect of those
assets have been recognised in the year. The recoverable amount of
the property, plant and equipment has been determined on the basis of
their value in use. The discount rate used in measuring value in use was
11% per annum.

In addition, employee severance payment and compensation to landlord
and suppliers, which are assessed in accordance with the relevant rules
and regulations and the agreements with the counterparties, are expected
to be incurred for the removal of the production lines.

GEE

RZBENF+ZA=+—H EFEFHLE
@%%ﬁﬁ%&i%ﬁ%%%@ﬁ WHEE R %
ERBERFEBIDEAEGMBES —WEM
HIERE R EEARAEBRERISE - 3R
EEFE AZETNEF—AEL  FEKIREBC
RZZBTENFZAFK - Bt - FRAERTEY
¥ WERZEEREEREE111,072,00087T °
o AEEFEETEAMCEET B RIKBE
Sl ARG Bt BETYWE - BERKEE
B BitMERTFENERABRE - WREAR
ai BEWRBEEE W BERKENA
WE¢HEEREEFERAEBEETE - ARTE2FA
BEENGFNELER11% -

o WBAEESRRACELRBERERYE R
= R R E Eﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ%&ﬁﬂ%&
ST AT SR R RS 1S
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14. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 14. EEfl¢ R A EEHES

EMPLOYEES
Directors 2=
The emoluments paid or payable to the directors are as follows: EffSRENESMESEHIIAT
2008 2007
—ZENF —ZTtF
Retirement
Salaries Performance benefit
and other related  schemes
benefits  incentive contributions
Name of Director Notes Fees &Kk payments BER Total Total
Esps Mt e  HER - #N%E  SEEX @t @t
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TET THERT THET TET THT
Executive directors HITES
SONG LIN KA a 70 - - - 70 -
WANG GUOPING FET a,d 70 635 623 23 1,351 1,245
CHEN CHENG-YU, PETER RIEF 70 2,350 778 - 3,198 2,172
FRANK LAI NI HIUM b9y a 70 2,386 482 - 2,938 -
DENG MAO-SONG, ELVIS B/ b 30 666 317 - 1,013 2,676
LEE NAIl, ROBERT ZNE h - - - - - 2,028
Non-executive directors FHTEE
ZHU JINKUN K 50 34 - - 84 31
JIANG WEI kR € 50 - - - 50 -
LI Fuzuo Fhafk € 50 - - - 50 -
DU WENMIN HXE ce 50 - - - 50 -
ONG THIAMKIN, KEN  Eifi8 d 30 - - - 30 31
Yuyu BT d 30 65 - 18 113 31
CHEN NAN-XIANG B d 30 107 - 1 138 31
KUM LOON OON BeE e 230 - - - 230 218
RALPH SYTZE YEBMA RALPH SYTZE
YEBMA e 261 - - - 261 250
KO PING KEUNG BERR f 187 - - - 187 -
MARK HUSE CHI NAN By g 51 - - - 51 203
1,329 6,243 2,200 42 9,814 8,916

154



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 & ZE —ZZEN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

14. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES (Cont’d)

Notes:

(@)  Mr. Song Lin, Mr. Wang Guoping and Mr. Frank Lai Ni Hium were
appointed as an executive director on 20 March 2008.

(o) Mr. Deng Mao-song, Elvis was appointed as an executive director
on 1 July 2007 and had resigned on 20 March 2008.

(¢)  Mr. Jiang Wei, Mr. Li Fuzuo and Mr. Du Wenmin were appointed as
non-executive directors on 20 March 2008.

(d)  Mr. Wang Guoping, Mr. Ong Thiam Kin, Ken, Mr. Yu Yu and Mr.
Chen Nan-xiang had resigned as non-executive directors on 20
March 2008.

(e) Independent non-executive directors and members of the Audit
Committee.

(f)  Mr. Ko Ping Keung was appointed as an independent non-executive
director on 20 March 2008.

(9)  Mr. Mark Huse Chi Nan had resigned as an independent non-
executive director on 20 March 2008.

(h)  Mr. Lee Naii, Robert was resigned as an executive director on 1 July
2007.

Performance related incentive payments were determined with
reference to the Group’s operating results, individual performances
and comparable market statistics.

14. EENERANBREHES (8)

@ R EBTRERRLEELR T
FN\F=A-+EEETARTES -

(o) BMWXMREER-_ZTALFLA-HEEZER
BITESE UR-_ZEZNF=A =+ HE
£

© BEkE TEELEREYXEAER T
TNEZA-+ARECAERGTES -

d) FEEFELE - FRBRELE AT EERKE
AMEER T N\F=A =+ HEHEIFHT
-

) BUFRITEERERZEINE -

) SRBREENR-_ZZNF=A_THEZE
RBIFMITES -

@ FEBEER_TEN\F=A_T+HEEE
MIERMITES o

(h ZEDREER-_ZTLFLHA—BHEERT
B=-

BYRTHRBASENKERE - AR
BRI BT S BUREE
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14. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
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EMPLOYEES (Cont’d)

Employees

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included two (2007:

three) executive directors, details of whose emoluments are set
out above. The emoluments of the remaining three (2007: two)

&8

14. EENERANREHES (&)

rEEREGESHFALEERE (Z2F L
F:ZR)WTEF FENMESFBIR
EX e AEEEB=F (ZTFLF : MA)

highest paid employees of the Group are as follows: EaFEENESOT
2008 2007
—EEN\F —ZETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHIT
(restated)
(&%)
Salaries and other benefits e Rk HAET 5,714 4,004
Performance related incentive payments Fgyacn 1,825 646
7,539 4,650
The emoluments of the above employees are within the following  FatE EWNENE 5 220 & E -
bands:
2008 2007
—EEN\F —ETLF
Number of Number of
employees employees
EEAE EEAH
HK$ BT
1,000,001 to 2,000,000 1,000,001%2,000,000 - 1
2,000,001 to 2,500,000 2,000,00122,500,000 1 -
2,500,001 to 3,000,000 2,500,00123,000,000 2 1
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZE —ZTEN\F+_HA=1+—HILFE

15. DIVIDEND 15. &8
No dividends were paid, declared or proposed for both years. The RRFERBRERSN  SRIERRE - EF
directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend. PEFRNRARE °
16. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE 16. Bz (F51E) BF
The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share FTEERERNREE (B518) BReELEN
is based on the following data: T
2008 2007
—EENE ZETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FABT
(restated)
(&E31))
Earnings: &2 -
(Loss) earnings for the purpose of basic REstEBREARES
and diluted (loss) earnings per share (E18) BRI (F518) &H (371,535) 231,253
Number of shares: BR7EE -
Weighted average number of shares for REtETRERZT
the purpose of basic earnings per share B N SRR 2 B 5,866,038,760 5,782,286,766
Effect of dilutive potential shares: BIEEER O E
Share options — Equity Incentive Plan FERRRE — ARt B2 ET &I - 30,822,192
Share options — Share Option Scheme PR NG E — BERRREST 2 - 5,626,708
Weighted average number of shares for BETEBREE R T
the purpose of diluted earnings per share & n#E 4 p&{H & B 5,866,038,760 5,818,735,666
No diluted loss per share has been presented for the year ended HRFRERTBELERSEHRERER
31 December 2008, because the potential ordinary shares in L MREBE_ZEN\F+=-_A=+—8H
issue during the year would result in decrease in loss per share. IFFEWESSGREEERE -
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. 9% - BERRIE
Furniture Machinery
Leasehold and and Motor Construction
buildings fixtures  equipment vehicles in progress Total
HERT HERXE HERRE "E ERIE o
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THR THT FHT TERL TERL
COST X7
At 1 January 2007 (restated) RZZZ+E—-H—H
(Z7) 359,629 108,135 2,288,530 43,629 876,119 3,676,042
Exchange adjustments B i R 25,948 7,493 182,876 3,061 67,967 287,345
Additions NE 2,442 3,374 104,881 2,935 958,366 1,071,998
Disposals HeE (4,894) (943) (10,318) (3,569) - (19,724)
Transfers between categories DAmER 15,883 31,354 583,679 4,319 (635,235) -
At 31 December 2007 (restated) ~ R=ET+E+-A=1—H
(E7) 399,008 149,413 3,149,648 50,375 1,267,217 5,015,661
Exchange adjustments B i R 25,834 9,087 221,501 3,178 63,139 322,739
Additions NE - 11,802 21,007 1,887 719,493 754,189
Disposals e (5) (3,503) (25,871) (3,365) (506) (33,250)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAT - (745) - (908) (648,245) (649,898)
Transfers between categories HEHER 34,397 39,072 942,467 1,239  (1,018,075) -
At 31 December 2008 R=EBN\E+-A=1-H 459,234 206,026 4,308,752 52,406 383,023 5,409,441
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT  # & R JRifE
At 1 January 2007 (restated) RZZZ+5—-A—H
(&51) 53,291 29,160 552,619 23,729 - 658,799
Exchange adjustments & 7 % 4,421 1,924 58,032 1,640 - 66,017
Depreciation provided for the year  FRTERE 19,137 23,444 307,353 5,850 - 355,784
Impairment loss recognised in BRREREROAESE
consolidated income statement - - 2,844 - - 2,844
Eliminated on disposals R EB (976) (696) (5,529) (2,980) - (10,181)
At 31 December 2007 (restated) AZZZ+EF+-_F=1—H
(&31) 75,873 53,832 915,319 28,239 - 1,073,263
Exchange adjustments [ 5,240 3,096 74,141 1,815 - 84,892
Depreciation provided for the year — ERTE R/ 21,121 31,975 405,767 6,540 - 465,403
Impairment loss recognised in BRRERERHERE
consolidated income statement - 2 223,167 - - 223,169
Eliminated on disposals R E R M (1) (3,134) (22,996) (2,829) - (28,960)
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiariesi H & i & 2 715 i & = (219) - (443) = (722)
At 31 December 2008 RZEENE+ZA=1-H 102,233 85,492 1,595,998 (33,322) - 1,817,045
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2008 RZBENE+=A=1—-H 357,001 120,534 2,712,754 19,084 383,023 3,592,396
At 31 December 2007 RZEZtE+-A=1—H 323,135 95,581 2,234,329 22,136 1,267,217 3,942,398
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are depreciated over their estimated
useful lives and after taking into account their estimated residual
values, ranging from zero to 10%, using the straight-line method,

as follows:

Leasehold buildings 25 to 40 years or over
the relevant lease terms,
if shorter

Furniture and fixtures 5to 10 years

Machinery and equipment 5 to 10 years

Motor vehicles 5 to 6 years

In addition to disclosed in Note 13, impairment losses of
HK$5,415,000 (2007: HK$2,844,000) has been recognised in
respect of property, plant and equipment due to physical damage
and technical obsolescence during the year.

The Group’s leasehold buildings are situated on land:

17. W% - BEREE (&)

YR - BEREE (ERIERIN) &
et AEY  Eet MR G HRERNER
EIRTE10%NITER TIAFE :

HEgF 25 E 40F sl i A R A HA
(I AEERE)

REREE 5Z2 104
23 N BR A 5ZF104
RE 5ZE64F

BRI EE I  HRERIEBZERRE
A - FAERYE  BERRIBER
5,415,000/ 7T (Z = Z + F : 2,844,0007%
) BREEE

AEBENHEERFARIAT L

2008 2007

—EEN\F —ETLF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHET

(restated)

(&E%1)

Outside Hong Kong on medium-term lease ZE&3E45N - — R EAFE ALY 355,403 321,443
In Hong Kong on medium-term lease aE 1 — REHEY 1,598 1,692
357,001 323,135

Machineries with an aggregate net book value of nil (2007:
HK$15,358,000) were pledged to secure the bank borrowings
granted to the Group (Note 26).

FEEREAZS B T(ZEZE £ &:
15,358,000/ 70) M2 E FHEMA + IR
BRI AEBOIRTEE (ME26) °
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18. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

160

The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise of land situated:

18. fEfF LI E

AEBNENITHHEEEREMRIATH L
M

2008 2007
—EENE —TTLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHIT
(restated)
(E5)
Outside Hong Kong on medium-term lease Z&/&E 4N — A HAFH4Y 177,142 162,204
In Hong Kong on medium-term lease BB — P HELY 1,940 1,990
179,082 164,194

Analysed for reporting purposes as BEFRBEmMATA
Non-current assets IERENEE 174,906 160,395
Current assets BB E 4,176 3,799
179,082 164,194

Land use rights with an aggregate carrying amount of nil (2007:
HK$4,572,000) are pledged to secure the bank borrowings
granted to the Group (Note 26).

FHFELABTERL(ZCZTE L F:
4,572,000/ 7T) B L E RS THEM - LA
ERETAKENRITEES (HE26)
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19.

20.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 19. O[{HEHERE
2008 2007
—EBN\E —ETHE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FATT
(restated)
(F751))
Unlisted equity investments, at cost REMBRARE © RN 741,698 570

As at 31 December 2008, the investments comprise mainly of the
Group’s 19% equity interest in CSMC Asia as detailed in Note
12. CSMC Asia is a company incorporated in Hong Kong which
is principally engaged in manufacturing 8 inch wafers in the PRC.
Such investment is carried at cost less any impairment loss, and
is not carried at fair value since the directors of the Company
are of opinion that the fair value of the investment cannot be
determined reliably.

RZZENF+-_A=1t—8 ZERE
I%“é@%ﬁ%lﬁéﬁiﬁtﬁi (M) AW
19% M (FFE N M E12) « B L% (6
M) B—RREBEMEALHAR  HEE
EBRNPEAEESE S RE - ARARF
EXASTRAISEMAERENDTE &K
BB IR A RAT AR E B B S AR - T IEIA
NFHEIRR ©

GOODWILL 20. BE
2007 & 2008
—EELER
—EENF
HK$’000
FExT

CARRYING AMOUNTS BRTE

At 1 January and 31 December R—A—BEt+t=—B=1+—H 21,024

The goodwill at 31 December 2008 arose on acquisition in 2002
of subsidiaries engaged in semiconductor business. The Group
determines that the goodwill, which had been allocated to two
cash generating units (“CGU”), including two subsidiaries engaging
in IC design and IC testing and packaging business amounting
to HK$7,539,000 and HK$13,485,000 (2007: HK$7,539,000 and
HK$13,485,000), was not impaired by comparing the carrying
amount of the CGU including the goodwill, with its recoverable
amount.

RZEZENFT+ZA="1T— EE’J%%BKE
REZEZE-ZFREREFERBEBZNNEA
Ale AEBEBREELS fj (BEHE) B
BREEEE B S EELLRE - BED
RRERERCELESEN (BIEMREE SN
BRI REKEREREFHNERR)
RO PR A IR E o MER S EE B
B 72 5 Bl A7,539,00058 7T K13,485,000
B oo (Z & F £ F 7,589,000 T &
13,485,000/ 7 ) °

= = = )\ & % ¥ 5 & ANNUAL REPORT 2008161



CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICSLIMITED ¥ B M EFH R A 7

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

hE MR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2008 & E —ZZEN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

20. GOODWILL (Cont’d)

162

The recoverable amount of the relevant CGU had been determined
on the basis of value in use calculation. The value in use
calculation use cash flow projections which were based on
approved financial budgets covering a 5-year period, and the
discount rate of approximately 14% (2007: 9%). Zero growth was
projected for cash flows beyond the 5-year period. The projected
growth rate did not exceed the average long-term growth rate
for relevant markets. Other key assumptions for the value in use
calculations included the budgeted sales and gross margins, such
estimations were based on past performance and management’s
expectations for the market’s development. Management believed
that any reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions
would not cause the aggregate carrying amount of the CGU to
exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of the CGU.

20.

mE ()

HEReELBEVNAKE B RERE
EBEFfEEEE - FREEAEEZRBARESR
EFRR - AR T IRIR I E B F HA
BIEEREBREELN14% (ZTZLF - 9%)
AE - AFHN MRS RERREERNS
T o ARAIE R R BB AT SN R
TR REK - FREEFEENEMEIER
RERBEANHERLENEK - ZFHFTY
REBEBERANEEEHMSERNANE
he BEERS  ZEFRINVEMSIEAE
P TS ERRCELEUNKREAERS
ZRCELEBMNAIRC S AR -

i
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21. TECHNICAL KNOW-HOW 21. B#TsneE
2008 2007
—EENE —TTEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FATT
(restated)
(&E31))
COST DN
At 1 January Rn—H—H 41,404 38,606
Exchange adjustments B o, L 2,985 2,798
At 31 December Nt+=—A=+—H 44,389 41,404
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT B8 NORVE
At 1 January n—H—H 5,726 1,633
Exchange adjustments bE i AR 322 148
Provided for the year FRBME 4,197 3,945
Impairment loss recognised in E R R IERAREEE
consolidated income statement (Note 13)  (Fft5£13) 32,515 -
At 31 December Nt+t=HA=+—H 42,760 5,726
CARRYING AMOUNT BRTE
At 31 December WNt+=—_HA=+—H 1,629 35,678
Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over their B T IR AR AR A F EI10-12F DA E 42
estimated useful lives of ten to twelve years and included in EEHR - YRt AGZREWRERNITHRERNA °

administrative expenses in the consolidated income statement.
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22. INVENTORIES 22, 5E&

2008 2007
—EENF BT LF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
(restated)
(&%)
Raw materials R 248,987 235,113
Work in progress RS 261,124 319,033
Finished goods RIRK 302,610 242,756
812,721 796,902

23. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 23. FEUWERRR - RERTEFRIE
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FET FET
(restated)
(&%)
Trade debtors B 5 IR 798,039 909,261
Less: allowance for doubtful receivables R FEUSCR BR B (34,273) (22,189)
763,766 887,072
Deposits and prepayments e RIBNFIA 112,665 115,354
876,431 1,002,426
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23. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (Cont’d) 23. FEWARE « iH& RTEFRIE (&)

The Group generally allows credit periods ranging from 30 to
90 days to its trade customers, which may be extended to 180
days for selected customers depending on their trade volume
and settlement terms. The aged analysis of trade debtors,
including notes receivable, net of allowance for doubtful debts,
is as follows:

AEERTHESRFPNEESHR —MRAI0KX
F0K ' AR EFHEEHAIEE180K ¢
BIERENRFENSEEERMNE - EHEK
REBENESERUER (BREEREE)
HIERER DTN T ¢

2008 2007

—EEN\F —ETLF

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#ET FH&T

(restated)

(&%)

0 - 60 days 0E60X 339,130 574,841
61 — 90 days 61Z290K 108,013 121,002
91 — 180 days 91E180K 295,096 179,433
Over 180 days 180K £ 21,527 11,796
763,766 887,072

Included in the Group’s debtors are receivables of HK$6,384,000
(2007: HK$8,348,000) due from fellow subsidiaries arising from
transactions carried out in the ordinary course of business of the
Group. These amounts were unsecured, interest-free and are
repayable within the credit periods similar to those offered to its
customers.

Included in the Group’s debtors are receivables of HK$144,522,000
(2007: HK$88,444,000) which are past due at the reporting
date but are regarded as not impaired as there has not been
a significant change in the credit standing of the debtors. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these receivables.

Included in Group’s trade debtors are notes receivables with the
carrying amount of HK$351,895,000 (2007: HK$600,098,000), in
which HK$128,603,000 (2007: HK$101,603,000) are discounted
to obtain general funding. The amounts are unsecured, interest
free and with a maturity period of 180 days.

AEERBERBRASERAEXHER
R TTEV R 5 P EE A O PR WK IR Z BT B 2 RI5K
186,384,000/ 7t (ZZ = 4 : 8,348,000
ABTL) c RERAR/EER 2B RANE
RTEZPHEENEERNEE -

AEBMEKERBENHRS B HE KR
- B B UG BR 70144,522,0008 7L (— 2 ZE +
F : 88,444,000/ 7L) - HNEB ANER
AR EE KEE) - B ZERERER A
WA o AEBWEZER KRGS ER
IR o

AEBMNESRERERBERERAES
351,895,000 70 (== Z+ 4 : 600,098,000
Y& TT) M) FE IR 2 - E §128,603,000/% 7T
(ZZZ 44 : 101,603,000 7T) TR HTH1 LA
B —REME - ZRBAEER - 2ERKR
180KAEIH] o

= = = )\ & % & 5 & ANNUAL REPORT 2008165



CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICSLIMITED ¥ B # EFH R A 7

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

hE MR RN

For the year ended 31 December 2008 & ZE —ZZEN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

23. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (Cont’d) 23. FEWARER « i#& RTEFRIE (&)

The credit quality of trade debtors that are not past due and not
impaired has been assessed by reference to historical information
about counterparty default rates. The existing counterparties do
not have significant defaults in the past.

81% (2007: 90%) of the debtors are not past due and not
impaired and have either been subsequently settled or maintain
active trade business relationship with the Group.

Included in the Group’s debtors are receivables with carrying amounts
of HK$60,785,000 (2007: HK$42,841,000), HK$119,663,000
(2007: HK$173,217,000) and HK$20,310,000 (2007: HK$24,916,000)
which are denominated in United States dollar, Renminbi and
Hong Kong dollar respectively, being the foreign currency of the
respective group entities.

Aging of trade debtors which are past due but not impaired

WABH AW ERENE S REERNEER
BEDNVESEHF B EHERLERER/R
EFHE - RAUF HINBELBEERNER
FOER °

81% (ZT T : 90%) K FE Y R = K
BHRAYERE BERHBRENIEF
—HEASERSEREZIEBHER -

AEEMNERERBZEEREDE A
60,785,000/ 7T (= & & + 4F : 42,841,000
7 7T) ~ 119,663,000 7T (= & & + F :
178,217,000 7T) }&20,310,0007% 7T (=
T+ : 24,916,000/87T) HEUERTR © 5
RIAZETT - ARERBTAEMN (IS ESE
EEBHINE) o

E R {E KR B E 5 AR AR

2008 2007

—EEN\F —ETELEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET T

(restated)

(&%)

0 - 60 days 0£E60X 99,632 4,768
61 — 90 days 61Z290K 14,212 30,933
91 — 180 days 91E180K 19,868 47,111
Over 180 days 180K A 10,810 5,632
144,522 88,444
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23. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (Cont’d) 23. FEWARE « iH& RTEFRIE (&)

Aging of trade debtors which are past due but not impaired
(Cont’d)

In determining the recoverability of a receivable, the Group
considers whether there has been adverse change in the credit
standing of the debtor from the date credit was initially granted.
The concentration of credit risk is limited as the Group’s customer
base comprises of a large number of customers. Accordingly, the
directors believe that there is no further credit provision required
in excess of the allowance for doubtful debts already provided
for in the consolidated financial statements.

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually
impaired receivables due from certain trade debtors with an
aggregate amount of HK$34,273,000 (2007: HK$22,189,000)
which have either been placed under liquidation or are in financial
difficulties. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
receivables.

EREERBENE S EKIRMRARS (8§)

RETRUEREE A KREER  AEEZE
BEHANERRLERNELEERER
BEEATHMES - ARAEEN TP AR
BRAEEF #HEERRETAR -
It EERRREESRAMBRERMFLOR
BRI - BAELBIMEE R

REEBERERYS TESEBS ANMEZBR
EER XA #£34,273,0008 7 (ZEZT +4F -
22,189,000/ L) ° ZFEM A EH BB K
BB BN 2 o AN B K L% 5 e W BR X
A E KRS e

Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts RIREEEH
2008 2007
—EEN\F —ETLF
HK$’°000 HK$'000
FHET T
(restated)
(&%)
Balance at beginning of the year FREEER 22,189 18,154
Exchange differences M 0, = %8 1,415 1,301
Amounts written off as uncollectible iH AR S EE (182) (2,106)

Increase in allowance recognised RIE S FE R BB N

in profit or loss 10,851 4,840
Balance at end of the year IR 34,273 22,189

The Group has notes receivable of HK$4,998,000 (2007: Nil)
have been pledged to secure certain banking facilities granted
to the Group.

REB P 54,998,000/ 7T (Z T Z + 4 :
/) MEREEAERTR  AERETFTASE
EHETRTEE -
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24,

25.

168

BANK BALANCES/RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS

The bank balances carry interest at market rates ranging from
0% to 1.35% per annum (2007: 0% to 5.7% per annum). The
bank deposits carry interest at market rates of 1.15% (2007: 1%
to 1.2% per annum).

Restricted bank deposits of HK$492,000 (2007: HK$6,030,000)
were pledged to banks for letters of credit issued by those banks
for the Group and for employees’ mortgage loans.

Included in the Group’s bank balances are balances with
carrying amounts of HK$89,437,000 (2007: HK$17,852,000),
HK$11,448,000 (2007: HK$18,548,000) and HK$16,835,000
(2007: HK$14,954,000) which are denominated in United States
dollar, Renminbi and Hong Kong dollar respectively, being the
foreign currency of the respective group entities.

CREDITORS AND ACCRUED CHARGES

The aged analysis of trade creditors which are included in
creditors and accrued charges is as follows:

24,

25.

MITEERR HRFRITHER

RITERIETBERNTOER1.35E (T
+&F  EROERL7E) T8 o BITERIRT
BERIASE (ZZEZELF : FRIEF1.2F)
Es

5 [R 48 17 17 50492,000/8 7T (Z BT+ 4F -
6,030,000/ 70) ERIETTAAEE L AN{ER
BREBZBERIEAFZEFRIT -

7R £ [ /9 3R 17 45 £R B 4 BR T 1E /389,437,000
B (= & F £ F:17,852,0008 JT)
11,448,000/ 7T (= & & + £ : 18,548,000
7 Jr) }&16,835,0008 L (= T T £ F -
14,954,000 7C) BI&EER - DRIAET - AR
MRABTREN (IS EEEEEHINE) -

FEftER R FERT & R

AEBEMNEAREFERTEENEZEN
FRRHRER DA

2008 2007

—EEN\F —ZETLF

HK$’°000 HK$’000

FE T T

(restated)

(&%)

0 - 60 days 0£E60X 397,681 580,445
61 — 90 days 61Z290K 166,120 146,248
91 — 180 days 91E180K 313,228 240,859
Over 180 days 180K A 33,667 19,573
910,696 987,125
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25. CREDITORS AND ACCRUED CHARGES (Cont’d) 25. ETARARREER (8)
The other creditors and accrued charges mainly include: HtENERAREAEAZEZEIE
2008 2007
—EENE —TTLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT T
(restated)
(&71))
Payables for acquisition of property, IWWEEM S « RE Mk tE
plant and equipment B & T BR 3K 123,618 17,516
Accrued staff costs FE=TE & Bk AN 58,174 87,232
Deposits received BYIES 43,712 47,441
Current term portion of long-term payable & HAJE (< BR 3 #9 BN EA 2519 8,462 5,791
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries ARIEES N NGIE 16,846 291,223
Amount due to a group company of it —RB AR LEIER
a minority shareholder of a subsidiary S B A FIFIE 182,309 104,473

The amounts due to a group company of a minority shareholder
of a subsidiary and fellow subsidiaries were unsecured, interest-
free and are repayable within the credit periods similar to its
suppliers.

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 7 to 180
days. The notes payable have maturity period of 180 days. The
Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure
that all payables within the credit timeframe.

Included in the Group’s trade creditors are notes payable with
a carrying amount of HK$475,829,000 (2007: HK$430,922,000)
which are unsecured, interest free and with a maturity period of
180 days.

Included in the Group’s creditors are creditors with a
carrying amount of HK$33,212,000 (2007: HK$55,188,000),
HK$290,378,000 (2007: HK$119,648,000) and HK$2,070,000
(2007: HK$5,000) which are denominated in United States dollar,
Renminbi and Hong Kong dollar respectively, being the foreign
currency of the respective group entities.

EN—2HMBAR L BRRNEERERE
AWBARFAD AEERA - 28 RANE
AEBHEFMEAENEERREER -

EERRNTHEERATE180K - ERNE
BER180 RN EIHE - A& BB I E B 75 [ b

ERME - AERAARNEINEERA
BiE -

AEENEBESENERBREREEAS
475,829,000/ 7T (ZZEZ 4 : 430,922,000
BT MENER  HAEER . 28 KkR
180K A EIHH ©

7R & B /9 FE 15 BR SR B 35 BR T B /33,212,000
B (Z & ZE L F 55,188,000 JT) *
290,378,000/ 7T (ZEZ -+ : 119,648,000
78 7T) %2,070,000% 70 (=ZZ Z+4F : 5,000
PETT) MEERIR - D BIAETT - ARERS
TTAEMN (IS EEEEERHING)
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 & E —ZZEN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

26. BANK BORROWINGS 26. fRITIEE
2008 2007
—EENE —ETHEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FABIT
(restated)
(&E31))
Bank loans RITEK
Secured A HEA 128,603 178,028
Unsecured KR 2,300,878 1,599,974
2,429,481 1,778,002
Bank loans repayable; JEEERITER -
On demand or within one year MEKFF—FAEE 515,891 603,256
More than one year, but not exceeding Z A —F{B TR R R
two years 438,590 -
More than two years, but not exceeding ~ ZRMFENBATF
five years 1,475,000 1,174,746
2,429,481 1,778,002
Less: Amount due within one year B mENBE TR
shown under current liabilities R—FRE IR (515,891) (603,256)
Amount due after one year shown FERBEBRATN —F&
as non-current liabilities BB KA 1,913,590 1,174,746
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26. BANK BORROWINGS (Cont’d)

Note:

(@)

The bank loans include Hong Kong dollar revolving credit and term
loan facilities of HK$1,300,000,000 (2007: HK$1,100,000,000),
which carry interest at floating rate based on HIBOR plus a margin.
The average interest rate for the year is 2.9% (2007: 4.4%). The
loans have been guaranteed by CRH since 19 March 2008. Under
the terms of the loan facilities agreements, CRH, the controlling
shareholder of the Company, is required to remain as a majority
beneficial owner of the issued share capital of the Company and
shall maintain its management control over the Company. The loan
has maturity date on 14 March 2012.

The bank loans include United States dollar and Renminbi fixed rate
borrowings of HK$158,890,000 (2007: HK$189,254,000) which
carry interest rate ranging from 5.02% to 6.85% (2007: 5.67% to
8.02%) per annum and have maturity date within one year from the
balance sheet date.

The bank loans include United States dollar, Hong Kong dollar
and Renminbi floating rate based on LIBOR, HIBOR and People’s
Bank of China Lending rate plus margin of HK$970,591,000 (2007:
HK$488,748,000) which carry interest rate ranging from 0.99%
to 4.78% (2007: 3.83% to 7.87%) per annum and have maturity
date ranging from on demand to five years from the balance sheet
date.

At 31 December 2008, the Group had unutilised bank loan facilities
of HK$1,086,580,000 (2007: HK$1,178,838,000).

Included in the Group’s bank loans are loans with a carrying
amount of Nil (2007: HK$38,525,000), HK$227,180,000 (2007:
HK$129,157,000) and HK$700,000,000 (2007: Nil) which are
denominated in United States dollar, Renminbi and Hong Kong
dollar respectively, being the foreign currency of the respective
group entities.

26. R1T

BE (&)

GEE

(@)

= = 2 )\ & & E # & ANNUAL REPORT 2008171

RITERBREATLREEEREHERE
FA #81,300,000,000/ Jt (= T T + F :
1,100,000,000%8 7t) (TR BB RITR ZEHF 2
BINELOZEFIEETR) o FAKFHF R
B2.9% (ZETLF : 4.4%) c 2FEERA
T N\FZA+hBARREHEEER -
RIBEBE BRIER - A2 AR AR R E
EBBABREERRNRARIEBITRANKZE
BEXBEA  YWAEEBREHARRNER
EIE - ERXAHMEA-—T——F=+mr
E| o

BRTEEREEELTRARBEE F X
f& B158,890,000/8 L (= T T + F:
189,254,0007 7T) * H Ty 12 F 5022 =
6.85E (ZZEZT L F : 567F £8.02F) 5f
B WREE BB —FREIE -

BITEREHBIEAGREBTRERE &
BIRTTRIZEFRBERPBEARRBITEEF =X
BINEABEENET  BILRAREZE
F =& 14 E970,591,000/8 Tt (Z T T+ F ¢
488,748,000/ 7T) + HIIRF &/ F0.99/2
Z4.78B B (ZZEZT £ F : 3.83F=E7.87
B) YRIEEkNEZALEAEAATER
FHA o

R-ZBEENFE+-_A=+—H KEEHK
EFRITIEE A1,086,580,0008 7T (—EZ
+ 4 : 1,178,838,000/8 7T ) °

ALEWRTEEREEEEATAT (=
T T + 4 : 38,625,000% JL) - 227,180,000
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27. PROVISIONS 27. &
Staff Employee
housing termination
benefits benefit
BIEE & S8t Total
B = wst
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHERT FHET THERT
(Note a) (Note b)
(Fff5Ea) (Pff5Eb)
At 1 January 2007 R+ F
(Restated) —R—HB (&%) 37,881 39,230 77,111
Exchange adjustments PE A #E - 996 996
Utilisation of provisions B REMH (6,489) (3,577) (10,066)
Write back of provisions RO B - (25,858) (25,858)
At 31 December 2007 RIZET+HF
(Restated) +=ZA=+—H8 (&%) 31,392 10,791 42,183
Exchange adjustments b 5 AR - 339 339
Utilisation of provisions &) # (2,188) (1,031) (3,219)
At 31 December 2008 R=ZZZENEFE
+=—B=+—H 29,204 10,099 39,303
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27. PROVISIONS (Cont’d) 27. 45 (8)

The amount includes provision for staff housing benefits,
provisions for employee termination benefit and compensation
to suppliers.

(@) The provision for staff housing benefits represents
management’s best estimate of the liabilities of certain
subsidiaries established in the PRC in respect of housing
allowances available to the remaining eligible staff for the
purchase of residential properties, based on the local
government policy in this regard. The outflow is expected
upon the receipt of application to be submitted by the
eligible staff for such allowance.

(b) The provisions for employee termination benefit represents
management’s best estimate of the liabilities in relation to
restructuring activities of subsidiaries which are to be utilised
to meet restructuring expenses, including staff redundancy,
in accordance with the restructuring plans adopted when
such subsidiaries were acquired in prior years. The outflow
is expected within the next twelve months from the balance
sheet date.

December 2007,
reconsidered the restructuring plan of certain subsidiaries which

During the year ended 31 the Group
was contemplated when those subsidiaries were acquired in
2002 through the acquisition of the entire interest of Wuxi
China Resources Microelectronics Co., Ltd.. Consequently,
management considered that the provision for the restructuring
plan to the extent of HK$25,858,000 previously made is no longer
required and has been written back in the consolidated income
statement for that year.

ZPABEERETEFEMNER  EEMEE
P R R R (E -

(@ BIEEBHIIEREERERILTBF
WA BBER - 3LE T Bl S A Y
BRARIREEHNAERB TRHEBAL
EVMENER RN R EFELNRER
it e REBSERE TR ARIERZR
RO HFR - FEHANHEE -

b) EEMBENIEHEEEHNEBAR
BHERSHEMNA EEL M RERET -
BREBREBATFEREZSHE AT
BT EMATEIME A - UAXNE
HMER (BHEEREMRE) - BHERS
BREAT_EAARNLEER -

HE-_ZT+tF+-_A=+—HIEFE " &
SEEFEER ST _FERKNEEGE
BHEFERARMNEIRELIEE THEB
NEREETEEAZENB ARG E - &
% BEERSTBEREZAIGEMAREIG
IR 1525,858,000/8 7 + W E R FEHY
fRE W R E A AR o
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28. LONG-TERM PAYABLES 28. REARE(TARIA
The Group entered into an agreement to acquire certain AEEBA N —OR=ZZETFEEETA
machinery and equipment and technical know-how relating to 8 23 A Bl B9 B4 25 K2 5% B AN B2 1T 40 35 7Y 1
the manufacturing of wafers in 2006. At the balance sheet date, mOREBEEBERB  ATEASEER
the carrying amount of the outstanding consideration with an 86,041,000/ 7T (ZZ=ZF L4 : 92,858,000
aggregate undiscounted principal amount of HK$86,041,000 BIL) TR AREMRKEREENT :
(2007: HK$92,858,000), which are non-interest bearing, are as
follows:
2008 2007
—EEN\F —ZETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
(restated)
(&E71)
The present value of long term payable REERFOREDT
is as follows:
Within one year —F2ZA 8,462 5,791
More than one year, but not exceeding LR —FETBIBMF
two years 8,760 7,228
More than two year, but not exceeding ZIMFEETBRARF
five years 26,282 21,683
More than five years LR AEF 24,414 37,115
67,918 71,817
Less: Amount due within one year included & : /& & &R AL
in creditors and accrued charges R FERT &R
shown under current liabilities R—FEREHe A (8,462) (5,791)
Amount due after one year shown as FERBEBRATN —F&
non-current liabilities FI| BARYFRIE 59,456 66,026
The present values are based on cash flows discounted using REDREFESRE1R5.85% (ZEZ+
a rate based on the borrowing rate of 5.85% per annum (2007: F: FHX5.85%) HFEBER R SERIT
5.85% per annum). EATHE o
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29. DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities) assets
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior

EIEHIR

MR BB 8 B R E BRI
BUA () EREES :

29.

years:
Withholding
tax on Other
undistributed  Accelerated temporary
profit tax Provisions  differences
ADKEF  depreciation on assets Hity Total
MENBE NERERE EERE ERiHER @5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THT THERT TET TET TET
At 1 January 2007 RZZET+E
(Restated) —R—8 (Z371) = (6) 7,097 2,842 9,933
Exchange adjustments B 5 5% - - 421 - 421
Credit to consolidated income ~ RAFEZSKFEA
statement for the year A - - 532 - 532
At 31 December 2007 R-ET+LE
(Restated) +-A=+—A8 (7) - 6) 8,050 2,842 10,886
Exchange adjustments [ 5 A= - - 421 - 421
(Charge) credit to consolidated ~ NAFELGANFERA
income statement for the year — (#1B}) s A (4,712) - (1,167) 8,443 2,564
At 31 December 2008 R-ZENE
+=B=t+-8 (4,712) 6) 7,304 11,285 13,871

Other temporary differences mainly includes deferred income on
certain government grants which has been taxed upon receipts.

The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances for

financial reporting purposes.

HeEREZRIZRENA R B
Bh & HOIR TE W AT BN B B R

AT BB REFLRETEHBLERD
i

2008 2007

ZBENF —ETLHF

HK$’000 HK$’000

TER FHT

(restated)

(&%)

Deferred tax assets EETR A& B 18,589 10,892
Deferred tax liabilities BREHIEBE (4,718) 6)
13,871 10,886
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29. DEFERRED TAXATION (Cont’d)

176

At 31 December 2008, the Group had unused tax losses of
HK$304,447,000 (2007: HK$245,300,000) available to offset
against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of such losses due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. Losses of HK$112,524,000 and HK$125,464,000
will expire in 2012 and 2013 respectively. Other losses may be
carried forward indefinitely.

At 31 December 2008, the Group also had other deductible
temporary differences of HK$459,468,000 (2007: HK$66,526,000),
mainly arising from impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment, technical know-how, write down of inventories to net
realisable value and allowance for doubtful debts. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible
temporary differences as it is not probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences
can be utilised.

According to a joint circular of the Ministry of Finance and State
Administration of Taxation — Cai Shui [2008] No. 1, dividend
distributed out of the profits generated since 1 January 2008
shall be subject to PRC Enterprise Income Tax and which
held by the PRC entity pursuant to Articles 3 and 27 of the
Income Tax Law Concerning Foreign Investment Enterprises
and Foreign Enterprises and Article 91 of the Detailed Rules for
the Implementation of the Income Tax Law for Enterprises with
Foreign Investment Enterprises and Foreign Enterprises. Deferred
tax of HK$4,712,000 on the undistributed earnings has been
charged to the consolidated income statement for year ended
31 December 2008.

NF+ZRA=+—RHIFE

BEBIIE (48)

R-ZZENFE+_A=+—0 AEHEAEX
&) [ % T8 &5 18304,447,0008 T (ZEZ £
£ : 245,300,000/ 7T) A] 4K 85 7R 208 A ©
20 S i | I e S o=
ERELETIEHE E © E18112,524,000% 7T
125,464,000 T DR ZE——F K
“E-=FEH - EfuEsign A L&E - B

R=ZZFZNF+=-ZA=+—H A5£E3
EE@—HD T T B 4 2= %E459,468,000/% 7T
—TTF : 66,526,000/87T) 0 TERAY)
¥ BEREE - BTAEARERBE - M
BEEEA B FERRRBEMEL - A
A K AT REE £ AT 0 B R M = 2B m] A VB
HMERBUSF) - SO0 ez S o] IR E
ERERTMELHIBEE -

LRI E R BRI 48 B VB & B A B
[2008]F15% - RE=ZZTZENF—H—H#E
FREE &R A 9 KA AR B /88 B B Fris
AR IR INEG 1% & 1 5 RN 1 FE P13 BiA
EIRB2TIRA RN IR E b 2 RN 1 5
FrBR A B AR o EmP B EETE -
7R IR 2 A #) 3R JE 7 18 4,712,000 70 B 1R
HEZZZ ) \F+ZA=1T—HIEFENEL
& a0 -
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30. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACT 30. HIBERRELH

On 24 November 2008, the Group and CRH issued a financial
guarantee in which 19% contributed by the Group to the extent
of US$140 million to a bank of a term loan facility agreement
granted to the available-for-sale investment, CSMC Asia of
which US$26.6 million (representing the 19% interest held by
the Group) was attributable to the Group. The fair value of the
financial guarantee at the date grant amounted to US$7,281,000
(approximately HK$56,791,800) which was based on a valuation
conducted by an external valuer. The valuation was primarily
determined by reference to the default valuation method model to
estimate the value of the guarantee by considering the potential
economic impact of the guarantor. The fair value to the extent of
HK$10,790,000 (representing the 19% interest attributable to the
Group) was regarded as a contribution to the investee company
by the Group and has been adjusted to the carrying cost of the
investment in that investment (Note 19).

RZEZENF+—A-_1+HWMHE ' XEEK
EREERFETAUREERE (NEH L
2 (M) MEHERRE R —RRT
{EH € %832 140,000,000 Tt HY B IS & R
H 126,600,000 7T (18 E 7 7~ & B F7 5
M19%HEZ) AAEEAE - RIEHBH -
Z I I ER A {E R7,281,0003 T (4Y
56,791,800/ 7T) * W THRE — & SN k(B
EETHEEMETE - ZBEEE2EEH
BHEBEEIET  KERERANBLLE
HEMFHEROER ° 10,790,000 TH A
FE (HERAEEEER19%ER) HER
BAEEYHMEEQRNIEACARER
ZIREMIRERAEKAR (MFE19) ©
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31. SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

31. KAFKE

Number of shares Nominal value of shares
RGHE REAEE
2008 2007 2008 2007
BB\ ZTTLF “BEN\E “ZEtF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FAL
Shares of HK$0.10 each ZR0.10E THR 7
Authorised: ETE
At beginning and end of the year RENREL 10,000,000,000  10,000,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRAR :
At beginning of the year, e R T
as previously stated 5,791,872,096 2,725,843,629 579,187 212,584
Shares issued pursuant to BEAHEETORN
the Amalgamation (Note 1) GESD; - 3,050,581,517 = 305,058
At beginning of the year, as restated NEH - EE3 5,791,872,096  5,776,425,146 579,187 577,642
Shares repurchased and cancelled BERFENRA (62,080,000) = (6,208) -
Shares issued to CR Logic mERDIERERE
option-holders ABITHRR G 103,058,493 - 10,306 -
Shares issued under Equity Incentive RER B2
Plan BITRRRG 21,459,275 13,296,950 2,146 1,330
Shares issued under Share Option BEERET 2%
Scheme KRk {n 900,000 2,150,000 90 215
At end of the year RELR 5,855,209,864 5,791,872,096 582,521 579,187

The new shares issued during the year rank pari passu in all
respects with the existing shares.

In the sale and purchase agreement relating to the Amalgamation,
CR Logic has offered to its option-holders for cancellation of their
options by issuance of the Company’s shares at no consideration
or exercise their options to obtain the Company’s shares on the
basis of 180 shares in the Company for every 100 shares in CR
Logic held at the date of completion as if original share options
were exercised. On 5 March 2008, 46,707,693 shares of the
Company were allotted and issued to the relevant accepting
option-holders and 56,350,800 shares of the Company were
issued to the option-holders of CR Logic who exercised the
options.

178

FRAEBTHBROHEMB L EGRREGRNF

RS -

BEEBAHFEENEE K EEBRMER
EEFEARZEBBUATREZRTARRRG A
MBI SR 2R B B = BB 5100
F% A% 49 BT HR B A 511 80R% AR 17 17 18 187 5 0 B X
EREARRKRG  BNREREDETE - R
—ZTENF=AAH " AEERESRE ARRSE
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(i)

Equity Incentive Plan

The Company, as approved by its shareholders by way of
ordinary resolution, adopted an “Equity Incentive Plan” (the
“Plan”) on 8 May 2004. Under the Plan the Company may
allocate the Company’s shares to full time employees of
the Company and its subsidiaries, and the directors (the
“participants”). The objective of the Plan is to share the pride
of ownership among the executives and employees of the
Group and to reward their performance and contribution.
The term of the Plan is 10 years from the date of adoption.

Under the Plan, the total number of shares which may fall
to be issued must not exceed 15% of the shares of the
Company in issue from time to time. The initial total plan
amount, as approved by the shareholders on 8 May 2004 by
way of ordinary resolution, is fixed at 246,900,000 shares.

Furthermore, The total number of Shares issued and to be
issued to any Selected Employee in any twelve (12) month
period pursuant to any Awards shall not exceed one (1) per
cent. of the total number of Shares in issue.

In general, the shares allocated under the Plan will vest
in equal portions over a period of four years commencing
from the date of the grant or in such other proportions as
the Remuneration Committee may otherwise specify at the
time of the allocation of shares at intervals of every twelve
calendar months to the participants. Shares allocated will
only be issued once they vest and formal applications from
the respective participants are received. An administration
fee of US$0.01 per share is payable by the participant upon
application. Such vested and applied for shares will be
issued to the participants as bonus shares.

No shares were allocated under the Plan in the year 2008.
The fair value of the shares granted under the Plan in 2006
determined using the binomial model were HK$0.30 (third
grant) and HK$0.33 (fourth grant). The significant inputs into
the model were share price at the grant date of HK$0.38
(third grant) and HK$0.41 (fourth grant), exercise price of
HK$0.078, expected dividend pay out rate of 0%, annual
risk-free interest rate of within the range of 1.08% to 1.99%
and volatility rate of 27.7%. The volatility is measured based
on the volatility return on Hang Seng Index for the past ten
years.

32. iz XT3 5

(i)

R 15 € B =t &1

ARABRRR _ZEZTMNFEFRAANBRE
BEBRZR - HOERS [ I REE
&) (TRTE)) » RIFFTE - ARA A A
ARRAREMBARNEZREE NE
2 ([28%F]) DEARARNED - 5
SIEERASENTTERA B MEE& UK
REMHZEEKR - LEHRPFNHER
BLER - 58 B RM B ML SH T
o

RIRETE - AJREAS T EHITHRR (D R ECT
BREBARNRTEEEITRMDM15% °
At EBEBEEBRRER ST NF
TAANBERATBERAZRMERTE S
246,900,0008% ° thoh + 1R & F A 42 )
REM+Z(12)E A BEE ZETEE T
BT TEMNECETCEENRORE - T
FBARBTRMAEMNES Z—(1)°

mIEmE - RIBET 8D AR M8 3%
B HEE ST A0 O F IR B R D B R E
ME B e HEREENLIIE L+
“EARR2EELT - COBRHKRN
RERZERZCEBAEBALETR
EWEBAR2ERENEARFRT AT
AETT - 2EENEL B FERENSK
O0.01XTHITHER - ZFCKEEB M
R BB R AALIR T R T2 E
£ .

N )N\FE - WERETSIERT
A H - RZZZRNF - FMA-ERN
BAEEZRTEMRHBEMDHAFE
A0.30/ T (8 = R ) &0.33% T
(BxEE) - ZEXFTANEZHE
AR E BHERIRE0.388 T (= X%
H) ®0.4178 7T (BMRIRE) « 7B
0.078% 7T « TBHRE AR EE0% « £
1 K £ FI| R AT F1.08% 2= 1.99% K2 R &
KRBT 7% - BIEBRTIIREBETFIE
EHEHARIEROWRETE -
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

() Equity Incentive Plan (Cont’d)

Details of the shares under the Plan are as follows:

32. LS (8)
(i) BxPEEENETEI (&)

4=

AHEIETHRMDFBAT

Outstanding Outstanding
at Allocated Exercised Cancelled at Exercise
1 January during during during 31 December price Exercisable
2008 the year the year the year 2008 (in HKS) Grant date until
RZ2BNE RZZBNE
-A-A T=EETr=F ke
HAGE  FREAR  FREAE  FRCHH HREE (#7) RHEH  WTERLR
'000 '000 '000 '000 '000
TR TR TR TR TR
Directors EE
- Peter CHEN Cheng-yu -REF 2,330 - 2,330 - - 0.078 1 October 2003 7 May 2013
b %3 -g-Zf
tA-H BAtH
— Frank Lai Ni Hium — ik 1,400 - 1,400 - - 0.078 1 October 2003 7 May 2013
> %3 “g-ZE
tA-A BAtH
18,453 - 14,888 - 3,565 0.078 1 October 2003 7 May 2013
—2Bzf “B-ZE
tE-H LAtH
Managements and employees EEERES 2,309 - 1,089 8 1,142 0.078 26 January 2005 7 May 2013
“EERE -g-zf
—B=txA TAtH
2,544 - 770 403 1,371 0078  2January2006 7 May 2013
ZEERE -%-Zf
-A=A LAtH
1,202 - 318 - 884 0.078 16 May 2006 7 May 2013
ZEERE “E-ZE
TAtxA LAtA
Total Fat 28,238 - 20,795 481 6,962
Exercisable at the end of the year ~ FEATIERY 5,526
Weighted average exercise BT THER
price (HKS) (#1) 0.078 0.078 0.078 0.078 0.078
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d) 32. DX e 5 (48)
() Equity Incentive Plan (Cont’d) (i) RRPEEENETEI (&)
Outstanding Outstanding
at Allocated Exercised Cancelled at Exercise
1 January during during during 31 December price Exercisable
2007 the year the year the year 2007 (in HK$) Grant date until
RZBEtE RZZENE
-A-8 tzpzt-8  GBR
HAGE  FRESR  FREAR  FREH# HAGE (B7) RERE  AAERLAR
'000 '000 ’000 '000 '000
TR TR TR TR TR
Directors Bz
- Peter CHEN Cheng-yu -REF 2,330 - - - 2,330 0.078 1 October 2008 7 May 2013
—TZ= 2%
TA-A nAtH
- Robert LEE Nai* -Eh% 1,665 - - - 1,665 0.078 1 October 2003 7 May 2013
—TZ= 2%
TA-A nAtH
- Elvis DENG Mao-song** ~ B 1,330 - 1,330 - - 0.078 1 October 2008 7 May 2013
—TZ= 2%
+A-A nAtH
26,149 - 6,968 993 18,188 0.078 1 October 2003 7 May 2013
—TZ= —E-%
+A-A hAtH
Managements and employees EEEREE 6,737 = 3,829 599 2,309 0.078 26 January 2005 7 May 2013
“BZnE =%
—RE=1+xH hAtA
5,632 - 1,675 1,513 2,544 0.078 2 January 2006 7 May 2013
ZRINE ZE-zf
—R=H hAtA
2,040 - 260 578 1,202 0.078 16 May 2006 7 May 2013
ZERINE ZE-zE

il R IAtH

Total fay 45,883 - 13,962 3,683 28,238
Exercisable at the end of the year ~ EEFI/T#EMRE 23,634
Weighted average exercise METHTEERR

orice (HKS) (87 0.078 0.078 0,078 0.078 0.078
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

182

() Equity Incentive Plan (Cont’d)

Notes:

*

Mr. Robert LEE Naii resigned as an Executive Director and
President of the Company from 1 July 2007.

*k

Mr. Elvis DENG Mao-song was appointed as an Executive
Director and the President of the Company from1 July 2007
and resigned on 20 March 2008.

In respect of the share options exercised during the year, the
weight average share price at the date of exercise is HK$0.38
(2007: HK$0.62).

(i) Share Options Scheme

The Company, as approved by its shareholders by way
of ordinary resolution, adopted a “Share Option Scheme”
(the “Scheme”) on 27 May 2005. Under the Scheme, the
Company may issue options to the directors and employees
of the Company and its subsidiaries and any advisors,
consultants, distributors, contractors, contract manufacturers,
suppliers, agents, customers, business partners, joint venture
business partners, service providers of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Scheme participants”). The objective of
the Scheme is to provide the Scheme participants with the
opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the Company
and to encourage the Scheme participants to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the
benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a whole. The
term of the Scheme is 10 years from the date of adoption.

32. LS (8)
(i) MBpEEENEHEI (48)

P EE

* EDNBERER_ZELFLA B
BEARBRITES LA -

v BEAKER-PRLFLA-AE
BEEARAANTEERER - T
WoBR\F=A=ABE -

EARBEITERNBRENS - N7 R H
B NAE R E R0.38B T (ZTTLF -
0.62/87T) °

(i) RRAx#ESTE

RARBBRRIAEBRZERTT AL
RKRARRZZEZRFREA-TLEK
M— IR TRERER 8] - RIBE ST
g ARRAIAARE REME A ER
EXREE  URARBREKEAF
MEMERER - BA - DHE - AR
BABRLER HER RE F
P axEREH  a2EXBHRIRKE
e ([FHa32nE)) ROUBERE- B
BEFENBE ARSI EEE RS
BRARRINMAEED - WEEE
SLEEHNRARB REBRRNOEBET
BRAARBREROOEE - BEE
Bl F R R B PR ST -
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd) 32. LR35 (8)

(ii) Share Options Scheme (Cont’d) (i) BRR%HERTE (&)

The exercise price is determined by the Remuneration
Committee, from time to time, at its absolute discretion and
notified to the participant in the offer and shall not be less
than the higher of:

— the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited on the date of grant;

— the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and

— the nominal value of a Share on the date of grant.

Based on the approval of Remuneration Committee, the
share options granted under the Scheme on 8 September
2006 will vest in equal portions over a period of four years
commencing from the commencement of the “Vesting Date”
as approved by the Remuneration Committee. Share options
granted under the Scheme on 28 May 2007 subject to
one-year vesting period from the participant’s employment
starting date as approved by Remuneration Committee.

No option was granted during the year. The fair value of the
options granted was determined using the binomial model
were HK$0.094 (second grant) and HK$0.0414 (first grant)
in 2007 and 2006 respectively. The significant inputs into
the model were share price at the grant date of HK$0.75
(second grant) and HK$0.36 (first grant), expected dividend
paid out rate of 0% (second grant) and 0% (first grant),
annual risk-free interest rate for the shares vested 1, 2, 3
and 4 years after the grant date are 1.08%, 1.38%, 1.69%
and 1.99% respectively and volatility rate of 27.43% (second
grant) and 27.7% (first grant). The volatility is measured
based on the volatility return on Hang Seng Index for the
past ten years.

TEEEHEZEBETHFMZES T
RERBERELHNSEENN2EE - 1T
EEIFERATEETHNREE -

RELAREEBMES X ZABERRA
A2 Y B R R AT 1) A9 B £ e T
=

EEZROBEHAAEESXAEE
BAaRZAERARELNARER
FROIEIRAD F A THE &

— BRI B I E(E -

RIEFNEEE  RZETRF
jlﬁ)\EI*E?Fﬁﬁﬁﬂié?riﬂiﬂjﬁ’]ﬁ%ﬁﬂié
HEFMEE S AN [FERH] &
ST FERNRERLLLAIERS - R-_TF
+ERAZTNR  BRIEBRESEIX
HEERES RN R NF M E S g Pt
EN2EEZEAARGBAEN—F5

B -

FRWER D ERERE R =TT+
FR-ZTZNFREHMNBRENAFE
BEHEA-HEAERER D FIEE 50.09478
TC (=R H) &0.0414%8 7T (B IR
BH)  ZEXNRANEZHRSRH
HEMARE0.758 L (F— A& E) &
0.368 7T (BRI ) ~ TBEIKZA R
B E0% (= kEH) R0% (F X%
) RIFHBHR -2  3R4FHB
B R& 1D MY & B R F IR 5 5l 21.08%
1.38% * 1.69%%1.99% K% K (8 =
27.43% (% X T W) K27.7% (B IR
BH) o REXRTLIBEAETFEETR
HHY R I8 R B Rt E o

= = = )\ & % & 5 & ANNUAL REPORT 2008183



CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICSLIMITED ¥ B M EFH R A 7

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

hE B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 HZE —ZZEN\F+_A=1+—HILFE

32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd) 32. Lk Ze3e s (8)

(i) Share Options Scheme (Cont’d) (ii) BEBBRHEETEI (48)
Movement in the number of share options outstanding and AR B ERESE MEBITEED
related exercise price are as follows: FET -
At Granted Exercised Cancelled At Exercise
1 January during during during 31 December price Exercisable
2008 the year the year the year 2008 (in HKS) Grant date until
RZZENE RZBENE (g
-B-B  FRERY  FREAR  FAEZH t=A=t-A (#x) REAS FAAEALA
’000 '000 '000 '000 '000
T TR TR TR TR
Managements and employees EEERES 18,341 - 900 2,250 15,191 0.36 8 September 2006 26 May 2014

“RENE CR-RF

ABAR EAZTAH

1,587 - - - 1,587 075 28 May 2007 26 May 2014
“ERLERR CR-RE

ZtAB  EAZtAH

Total ek 19,928 - 900 2,250 16,778
Exercisable at the end EEATRR

of the year 10,455
Weighted average exercise METHTER

price (HKS) (#7) 039 - 036 0.36 040
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd) 32. LR35 (8)

(ii) Share Options Scheme (Cont’d) (i) FEBRHERTEl (48)
At Granted Exercised Cancelled At Exercise
1 January during during during 31 December price Exercisable
2007 the year the year the year 2007 (in HK$) Grant date until
R-BELE RIBRLE fTeE
-A-B  FRERY  FREAR  FrEHE# T-A=t-H (B7) RYAH AARALR
'000 '000 '000 '000
TR TR TR TR
Managements and employees ~ EEERES 21,291 = 2,150 800 18,341 0.36 8 September 2006 26 May 2014
ZETNE CERmF
AANR  ERZ=tAR
- 1,987 - 400 1,587 0.75 28 May 2007 26 May 2014

“ERLE CT-IF
AAZTN  RAZtTRAH

Total fagy 21,291 1,987 2,150 1,200 19,928
Exercisable at the end EEATRR

of the year 5,333
Weighted average exercise METHTER

orice (HKS) (%7) 036 075 036 049 039

In respect of the share options exercised during the year, the FERNDETENBEREM S N1TE HEH
weight average share price at the date of exercise is HK$0.42  ji#EFHR%E £0.42/8 T (ZEZ L 4F : 0.60/6
(2007: HK$0.60). JL) °

= = = )\ & % & 5 & ANNUAL REPORT 2008185



CHINA RESOURCES MICROELECTRONICSLIMITED ¥ B M EFH R A 7

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

hE B RRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2008 &% — =&

32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)
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(iii) Restricted Share Award Scheme

The Company adopted the Restricted Share Award Scheme
on 18 December 2008. The objective of the Restricted Share
Award Scheme is to provide incentives and help the Group
in retaining its existing employees and recruiting additional
employees and to provide them with a direct economic
interest in attaining the long-term business objectives of the
Company.

Pursuant to the Restricted Share Award Scheme, existing
shares of the Company will be purchased by trustee from
the market out of cash contributed by the Group and be
held on trust for the selected employees until such shares
are vested with the selected employees. No restricted
shares will be granted if the aggregate number of restricted
shares awarded throughout the duration of the scheme
to be in excess of the 2.5% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the adoption date of the scheme. The
maximum number of the restricted shares which may be
awarded to a selected employee under the scheme shall not
exceed 0.25% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at adoption date of the scheme.

For the year ended 31 December 2008, no shares were
purchased by trustee from the market and no Restricted
Shares were granted to eligible employees pursuant to the
Restricted Share Award Scheme.

For the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group recognised the
total expenses of HK$1,277,000 (2007: HK$6,954,000) relating
to equity-settled share-based payment transactions in respect of
the share options granted by the Group.

ENFT_A=1T—HLFE

32. LS (8)
(iii) PR IR 1 28 Bh 12

ARBR_ZFZNE+ - A+/\BERH
R Il 1 B 0 22 B T 81 - BRI 1A D 22 B
AEEERHEEB B ARERE R
REREBLFEEZES  UpZEIAR
AR RHBEBEARSFREERE
B S o

IR PR 1 M AR D 2B 8l - RFEAASLA
$E@ﬁﬁME§%ﬁ%L$A$Qﬁ
WERG - WAMEERERNREEALEE
EA%E-Eiaﬁh@ﬁ%%m%ﬁ
MEEBS AL o WEZTEIHEART
B PR 5 M AR ) AR BB B AR A Rl 7% =T &
BB E ETRAM2.5% - BIR
SR BEMZRHIRG o AIREZE
BT E RS EE & B /YR Bl 1A (D LR
HETHBHBBAQRNZTSEMA
BB I THRZNHY0.25% ©

RBE_ZEZNF+_A=+T—HILF
B - RARR IR () 2B ET B - REEA
WELEHHBATARD MEBEES
TMERE R AL IR B MR AD -

REBEE_ZTTN\F+_A=+—HILFE "
ANER B B EL IR O BB AR M R R DA BR A A5 A
B MHORZHEFAT1,277,0008 7T (=
TT L4 : 6,954,000/87T) °
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33. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES 33. BRARTEFITE

Hong Kong

The Group participates in both a defined contribution scheme
which is registered under the Occupational Retirement Scheme
Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) and a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) established under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Ordinance. The assets of the schemes are held
separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control of
trustees. Employees who were members of the ORSO Scheme
prior to the establishment of the MPF Scheme were offered a
choice of staying within the ORSO Scheme or switching to the
MPF Scheme, whereas all new employees joining the Group on or
after 1 December 2000 are required to join the MPF Scheme.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions from both
employees and the Group based on a specified percentage of
the employee’s basic salary, depending on the length of service
with the Group. Where there are employees who leave the ORSO
Scheme prior to vesting, the contributions payable by the Group
are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions. No forfeited
contributions were utilised in this manner for both years.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes 5%
of relevant payroll costs to the scheme, which contribution is
matched by the employees.

At the balance sheet date, there is no amount of forfeited
contributions to reduce contributions payable in the future
years.

Mainland China

The employees of the Group in the Mainland China are members
of state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the
local government in the Mainland China. The Group is required
to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to
the retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
schemes is to make the specified contributions.

Tt

7 5 B[R] B 2 D0 AR 18 B 3R IR AR [R5 81 15
& 50 B0 SE B RGE &) (TH R R IR AT
2l1) - ARARER SR B DG 2 6 GBI B3R
HHEATEEFE ([RERFTE)) - ZFatE
MEEEASENEEDRRE - YHX
AEE - fHEBRBES A BIAKILATE &K
RBERKNREFSIMKE - AR EEE
EABERARETEHEBMS MAEEE
g MR_TTTF+_A—Hzl2&mMA
AEBWAMBHEBHEZNBESE -

BEERARREFERSHEERASERE
BEAFEHREADL (RTFEREER
AEBHREFHRTE) FAELHEK - 4
{2 8 72 A R [ ¢ SR B1 R B SR RRIE &
2 RIBOR W) RS P (R IR AN R B R A
MR o IO E 6 E BB IR ML 75 B A i

SRUBLEIR o

ERBRESFENENHE  AREENEH
BE#HEM5%MAZaT & FHHER - ME R
BB & R EHS %MK -

RER B - BEE AU SRR B R
RIFE R B -

hE A it

AREENTBERMREE S B A B
LENBEREEENEBNFTENKE - AK
BB R & AR BV S TE B 0 L AR IR AR AU ET
SRR - MR MRIKER - NEEH
R FERNENG B ME— B ERIERIEE
EEK
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34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Other than disclosed in Note 30, as at 31 December 2008,
the Group has issued guarantees of HK$1,984,000 (2007:
HK$3,750,000) to a bank in respect of the mortgage loans
borrowed by the employees of a subsidiary. Management
anticipates that no material liabilities to the Group will arise from
such guarantees.

35. OPERATING LEASES

The Group as lessee
At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for future

minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
which fall due as follows:

34.

35.

HAAMR/

BRI ES0FTEEIN  R=ZEZE/\F+=A
=+—8 AEEER—RHBARESRE
ARIZRIBE R+ M —RIB1T 311,984,000
BT (ZZZT £ 4 : 3,750,000/ 7t) HY 1
R EBREEMASETEZEZSEREL
BEREE -

EEHEY
FREEARBEA
REER  AEBEE T A BEELE A&

o ZFEAERATHENNRRZEEE
DRV E

2008 2007

—EEN\F ZETEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET T

(restated)

(E31))

Within one year —F R 6,218 5,451
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EFLT (BREEEMFEEA) 7,403 6,497
After five years hFi& 1,893 2,847
15,514 14,795

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group
for office and factory premises. Leases are negotiated and rentals
are fixed for term ranging from one to ten years.
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36. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND OTHER 36. EXREREM=HE
ARRANGEMENTS
2008 2007
—TENF —ETELF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
(restated)
(&%)
Capital expenditure in respect of BREWEDE  BER
acquisition of property, plant and B E ARFAS
equipment
Authorised but not contracted for EREERFTLN 356,968 2,711,486
Contracted but not provided for (Note) B ] 4B ARE# (M) 47,230 890,623
Note: fizE :

Pursuant to an agreement entered into with a company related to a RIFEE—KIE R RN DBBRERNEEAR ([FH )
minority shareholder of a subsidiary (the “Vendor”) in 2006, the Group has R ZZZREFFI LK — D= - NEEFAE  RZZT
undertaken to make incentive payment of US$5,000,000 (equivalent to ~ tHFZ-ZF—TFfH  —BEAEEEZ D HRRNEE
HK$38,752,000) to the Vendor in the event that the cumulative revenue  faI i /B & ] #9535 1 7T B8 ifn 12 4 5981 AR 7% &9 R 51 U
from the assembly and testing services provided by the Group arising 8 tH 1% 7F 258 » Rl & @& 75 s #£55,000,0003% 7T
from orders placed by customers of the minority shareholder or any of (18 & 738,752,000/ 7T) * A i - IRIBFAEEEITH
its subsidiaries for the years 2007 to 2010 exceeds an agreed amount. &Il * EERR TR LERHE ST - BULBAGER
However, no fair value was ascribed to the undertaking as at the balance  #&& B WA T EfF A F(E °

sheet date, as the directors consider that the agreed amount is unlikely

to be achieved based on the Group’s assessment.
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

190

Transactions with related parties

In addition to the related party transactions set out in other
notes to the consolidated financial statements, during the year,
the Group entered into the following significant transactions with
related parties:

37. BEANTRS
EEAEAN TS
MR E SRR EMHITEESNBEEALR

9 ARBERFANEBAEALET NIE
AR5

2008 2007
—EEN\F ZETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
(restated)
(&%)
Sales to fellow subsidiaries HETRZRKMEAR 13,080 19,159
Rental expenses paid to a EN—RARWBAFNES
fellow subsidiary sz 2,636 2,495
Commission paid to a subsidiary of B —RPHREN—KRH B
a minority shareholder of a subsidiary NEINAE 9,760 1,622
Subcontracting income from a fellow KE—RERMBRRNDE
subsidiary WA 1,346 13,785
Purchases from a fellow subsidiary BB NGIEES: 3,586 20,478
Consultancy fee paid to a company FA—XKEBAARN B FEEEEE5
controlled by a director of the Company MARZTEMZER 3,417 1,513
Supporting and administrative service RE—REARNEARAI X
fee income from a fellow subsidiary (Note) RiTERTGE B A (HzE) 57,058 -
Rental income from a fellow KE—XKRARMBARNES
subsidiary A 490 662
Acquisition of property, plant and Wi —XR RMME A A8
equipment and inventories from M - BEREEBEREFE
a fellow subsidiary 17,285 -
Additions to property, plant and RE—KMBA AR D EATR
equipment from a subsidiary of KB R RIMYIE - WE K
a minority shareholder of a subsidiary HIEHIANE 76,843 103,806
Expenses related to the Group borne [ ZME R RIAER AN K E
by fellow subsidiaries el 3,749 25,434
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d) 37. FAEANTRZS (8)

Transactions with related parties (Cont’d)

Note:

During the year, the Group, through a wholly owned subsidiary, entered
into an agreement with a fellow subsidiary to provide certain research and
development and general administrative supporting services to the fellow
subsidiary from 30 April 2008 to 31 December 2010. This subsidiary
provides supporting and administrative services to the fellow subsidiary
as well as other group entities. Pursuant to the agreement, the Group
will charge the fellow subsidiary service fee income based on an agreed
portion of the actual costs incurred by the Group.

Transactions/balances with other state-controlled entities

The Group itself is part of a larger group of companies under
CRNC which is controlled by the PRC government. Apart from the
transactions with the parent company and its subsidiaries which
have been disclosed in other notes to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group also conducts businesses with entities
directly or indirectly owned or controlled by the PRC government
in the ordinary course of business. The directors consider those
entities other than the CRNC group are independent third
parties as far as the Group’s business transactions with them
are concerned. In establishing its pricing strategies and approval
process for transactions with other state-controlled entities, the
Group does not differentiate whether the counter-party is a state-
controlled entity or not. The Group is of the opinion that it has
provided, at the best of its knowledge, adequate and appropriate
disclosure of related party transactions in the consolidated
financial statements.

EEEALIRS ()
GEE

RER AEEFEE—HE2ENB AR E—HF
EMBARR L #E B 2T NFHA=1H
BEZZ-—ZF+-_A=+—HILRAZFARHNE
NERME THERITRE R RS - 28
NI CES PNV SR e SE T4 b
NEERS - REBEZ G ARESRERNEE
TR BT S AR B S B 338 T B 0 [ (R 3% Y 8 2 ) MR
IRi% % -

HHEMERIEFHERENZ S EER

AEEARE BT EEER (ZRAHP BT
ZH) ET—EREARRRENKE - i
BRI BN TN E RS AR AW
BRARETHRSI AEETERER
53872 T i BT B 3 s R A S
MERBETEHER - EEZRA - AKE
HFFETHXHME - KHEEBRESN
VRS ERHABIUE=T - REEMER
22 15 B B8 MY A2 5 T il T RE (B SR S M HE AR AR
B AEEY AN ERIE T EEBERERZES
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37.

38.
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ENFT_A=1T—HLFE

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d) 37. AEALRS ()
Key management compensation EEEEEHRN

2008 2007
—EENF —EELHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET AT
(restated)
(E75)
Short term employee benefits SR SR T 8,570 6,175
Share-based payments VAR (7 B B R R E - 701
8,570 6,876
The remunerations of the Group’s key management personnel REBTEEBAE (EEEAAFTHITE
include those of the executive directors of the Company only, B)MEeI2EFHEZEEeNEREE B

which are determined with reference to the terms of remuneration
committee, are disclosed in Note 14.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants of HK$146,012,000 (2007: HK$111,967,000)
represent subsidies granted by PRC governmental authorities
for the purpose of financing the purchases of machinery and
equipment of HK$124,782,000 (2007: HK$89,436,000) and
relevant expenses for the development and production of new
products of HK$21,230,000 (2007: HK$22,531,000). The amounts
received are repayable if the production facilities do not meet the
standard specified in the grants or the production volume of
the new products do not exceed the specified amounts in the
grants. The government grants recognised as income for the year
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy amounted to
HK$30,481,000 (2007: HK$10,520,000).

38.

MisE143% 58 -

BB &

I8 /T #8 B) 146,012,000 T (Z 2 & £
% :111,967,000/% 7T) 6 H BT B =2
B E R - 124,782,000 T (=
=T+ F 189,436,000/ T) AR E B #
22 N 3R 121,230,000/ 70 (BT A4 -
22,531,000/ 70) R FEFTE MmN A @k
Yo WEERB I FEHEE R THEZELESR
TEMMESERHYSATHNES @ BIE
eazﬁauﬂzam,%m o % EWTHI BN SR IEA

B e st BRI R A E I AZ0,481,0007%
T (_"iti : 10,520,000/ 7T) °
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 39. XEMBATEH
Place of Issued and Proportion of
incorporation/ fully paid share/ ownership interest
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital held by the Group Principal activities
MR ERTRBRE rEBFEEES
ME AR AR B 3 B B AR AR EEZE DT FEEK
2008 2007
—BEN\F  ZBBLHF
% %
L EERER AR AT Hong Kong Ordinary 100 - Design and sales
China Resources b HK$1 of integrated
Semiconductor LBAT1B T circuit design

International Limited

RYIEEYRHE Mainland US$1,800,000 100 100
BRAF China 1,800,0005 7T

Shenzhen China Resources ==l iy N
Semico Microelectronics

Co., Ltd.*
EXMMEFRINARAF  Mainland Us$7,550,000 100 100
Semicon Microelectronics China 7,550,000% 7T

(Shen Zhen) Co., Ltd. AR B A B
EHEBNETERAR Mainland RMB570,000,000 100 100
Wuxi China Resources China AK#570,000,0007T

Microelectronics Co., Ltd.* AR B A

EHEBYEMMETERAA!  Mainland RMB65,000,000 100 100
Wuxi China Resources China AR#65,000,0007T

Semico Co., Ltd* =l iy N
FEHEBERMETERAA  Mainland RMB335,000,000 99.662 99.662
Wuxi China Resources China AR #335,000,0007T

Huajing Microelectronics PR B A e

Co., Ltd®
ESERRLLERARAF  Mainland RMB330,348,671 100 100
Wuxi CR Semiconductor Wafers ~ China AR#330,348,6717T

& Chips Ltd.* A B A i
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RETRHERKER

Design of wafer
R AelE

Testing and
packaging
of wafers

Y ESE LR

Manufacture and
sales of integrated
circuit, packaging
and testing of
integrated circuit,
investment holding

BUERHERKER -
HERAHEK
B  RERK

Design, testing and
sale of integrated
circuit products
and chips

Rat - AIHAREHEEK
EREMRTH

Manufacture and
sale of integrated
circuit

RIERHERKER

Manufacture and
sales of integrated
circuit

SUERHERKER
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 39. =EMBATIEE (&)

(Cont’d)
Place of Issued and Proportion of
incorporation/ fully paid share/ ownership interest
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital held by the Group Principal activities
AL ERTRBRE rEEREEERE
B RARE FRL it 2 B AR AR EEREDLL FEEK
2008 2007
“EENE CZEBitHF
% %
EHERHLEREER AR Mainland RMB320,000,000 75 75 Testing and
Wuxi CR Micro-Assemb China AR #320,000,0007T packaging
Tech. Ltd.® 1Eiy NS of wafers
RIS R &
EHERFEFERARADFT  Mainland US$109,844,153 100 100  Manufacture and
CSMC Technologies China 109,844,153% T sale of integrated
Fab 1 Co., Ltd* B A B circuit and related
products
SERHESEKER
KABREE m
IERER FEFEEAFRAFT  Mainland US$18,800,000 100 100  Manufacture and
CSMC Technologies China 18,800,000 7T sale of integrated
Fab 3 Co., Ltd* B BE circuit and related
products
SERHESEKER
K ABRAE m

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at R-ZZZNFE+ =B =+—H RERN(EAEH -
31 December 2008 or at any time during the year. B B A B A (A BT RN EIE B S o

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, ZTEERAE X ERFAINARAGHNE QA EHAEFH
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results HMEEHEEEBRBEEEAFE - EF=R5 - &
or assets and liabilities of the Group. To give details of other  FIE B A GBS IES AR EBNRILE ©
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in

particulars of excessive length.

@ Fquity Joint Venture °  AEPE
# Wholly Foreign Owned enterprises o INEEELXE
*  For identification only and not registered name Y EHER - FIERERE
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40. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT 40. £EHEEIE

On 20 February 2009, the directors of the Company announced
that the Company’s controlling shareholder, CRH has informed
them that it is presently considering placing a privatisation
proposal before the Company’s shareholders. If such a proposal
is put forward, shareholders, other than CRH and members of
its group, will be offered a cash consideration for their shares
of HK$0.30 per share and be offered the opportunity to retain a
direct or indirect investment in the Company (through retaining
shares in the Company or its immediate holding company, both
of which will be unlisted companies on the implementation of the
privatisation proposal), provided a sufficient percentage of the
shareholders elect to retain such an interest. If the privatisation
proposal is put forward, the Executive Director of the Corporate
Finance Division of the Securities and Futures Commission or any
delegate of the Executive Director (the “Executive”) has indicated
that the cash consideration to be paid must not be less than
HK$0.30 per share. On the implementation of the privatisation
proposal application will be made for the withdrawal of the listing
of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange.

On 25 February 2009, CRH further announced that there is no
intention to increase the offer price for the possible privatisation
proposal.

On 18 March 2009, the Company and CRM (BVI) Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of CRH, jointly announce that CRH,
through CRM (BVI) Limited has requested the Board to put
forward to the shareholders of the Company a proposal regarding
a proposed privatisation by way of the scheme of arrangement
and withdrawal of listing of the Company. The shareholders,
other than CRH and parties acting in concert with it, will receive
from CRM (BVI) Limited in cash consideration of HK$0.30 for
every share held, or in share alternative of one share in CRM
(BVI) Limited for every share held (subject to the condition as
specified in the joint announcement), or a combination of both,
for the cancellation of their shares held in the Company. An
independent board committee of the Company has been formed
comprising all three independent non-executive directors to advise
Shareholders, other than CRH and parties acting concert with it.
A composite document will be despatched to the shareholders
as soon as practicable.

R-ZTEZNFE_A-+H AQRREER
fih - ARRRERRREFEEDBANKSE -
HIBIEZERAARRRTIERALBLEZ °
MZERERR  RERSERESEKE
N T BASINE AR 5% 35t L AR 10 2 42 it | 1% 0.30
BITHEeREBTERUENARAIREEE
SEERENHKS (BREERENARA
SEEEERARNRKND - MERBITLA
tEERAEEXNRIELTRR)  HEEE
AR IR ERRE Z R o WALB1E
BEERER  BALRHESBKEREZE SN
TERETATEFIATESHERNZE
AT#TEZ]) EXRBBEZIENERE
MR DLREFAR0.30TT - RFELBLERE
B - RQEHS R A 2 B (D RO B 3P
By _ETHBAL o

R-BEZNF_A-_+HH EHEEE—
A EEZRS A LA ERNKE
-

RZZEZFTALF=A+N\H  KXARQFLECRM

(BVI) Limited CEHEEH 2 EN B A A
B E NS EHEEDEBCRM (BV)
LimitedBZskEF@MARRRRIREL —18
i AR EE A NETRELA LR
TN HEE AN A T Fir o IR (EHEE
MEHE—HITE A TRIN) BEEHFE K
B3 [ACRM (BVI) LimitedER0.3078 T HY R
R E  HEFE—KREKRMDIKE—KRCRM
(BVI) Limitedfiz fn (ZB& P& N EFTETBRAY
164F) > SRRIFFIZIEA EME - WEHEES
RENARREIRG - XARBKIBEZE=
BB TESENNBLEEEZES
PAMBR R (EHERKEE —HITEA TR
SN BRIEER - —HEREXHBBRTET
fg3R o
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Shareholders can obtain copies of Annual Report by writing to:

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Rooms 1806-1807

18th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

If you are not a shareholder, please write to:

China Resources Microelectronics Limited
Rooms 4003-05, 40th Floor

China Resources Building

26 Harbour Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

Attn: IR Department

This annual report is also available online at
http://www.crmicro.com

SHAREHOLDER ENQUIRIES

Our enquiry hotline is operational during normal office hours:
Telephone: +852-2299-9128

Facsimile: +852-2299-9300
Email: ir.crmicro@crc.com.hk
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EEREBEFR183%
A AL
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TaE 0 +852-2299-9128

{HH : +852-2299-9300
FEFIAF ¢ ir.crmicro@crc.com.hk
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